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INNOVATIVE TEXTILE SOLUTIONS

Turnover increased by 39.33% to ` 8,900.86 crores

Exports increased by 36.62% to ` 3,029.55 crores

EBIDTA increased by 39.64% to ` 2,624.75 crores

Operating PBT increased by 21.95% to ` 761.77 Crores

Dividend at ` 0.30 per share

Total Assets at ` 18,238.35 crores

Total Networth at ` 3,655.50 crores

Book Value at ` 44.24

EPS at ` 4.69

CEPS at ` 15.80



Alok Industries Limited, India's largest vertically integrated
textile company, provides end-to-end solutions through five
core divisions Cotton Yarn, Apparel Fabric, Home Textiles,
Garments and Polyester Yarn.

The Following chart aptly brings out Alok’ presence across the
textile value chain

With over two decades of experience, Alok is the choice for
quality textile products at internationally competitive prices and
dependable delivery schedules. The company constantly adopts
new technology to widen its product range. Through a planned
and focused expansion, Alok is today a leading player in each of
its product segments.

Alok's large customer base comprises domestic and overseas
retailers, garment exporters in India and converter countries
who are vendors to major international labels, they include
some of the world's largest retailers and India's largest
manufacturers of apparel and home textiles.

About 35% of Alok's production is exported to over 90 countries
with major markets being US, Europe, Latin America, Asia and
Africa

TM
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About Us



VISION

To be the world's best integrated textile enterprise,

 with a leadership

position across products & markets exceeding

customer & stakeholder expectations

driven by research & innovation,

The barometer of our success would be the ROCE

OUR MISSION 

We will:

�

businesses

�Maximize people development initiatives

�Optimize use of all resources

�Become a process driven organization

�Exceed compliance and global quality standards

�Actively explore potential market & products

�Offer innovative, customized and value added 
services to our customers

�Be an ethical, transparent and responsible global 
organization

Be a knowledge leader & an innovator in our 
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Vision and Mission
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Allahabad Bank
Andhra Bank
Axis Bank Limited
Bank of Baroda
Bank of India
Bank of Maharashtra
Canara Bank
Central Bank of India
Corporation Bank
DBS Bank Limited
Dena Bank
Export Import Bank of India
Indian Bank
IDBI Bank Limited
Indian Overseas Bank
ING Vysya Bank Limited
Oriental Bank Of Commerce
Punjab National Bank
Standard Chartered Bank.
State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur
State Bank of Hyderabad
State Bank of India
State Bank of Mysore
State Bank of Patiala
State Bank of Travancore
Syndicate Bank
The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited
The Federal Bank Limited
The Karur Vysya Bank Limited
UCO Bank
United Bank Of India
Union Bank Of India
Vijaya Bank

Statutory Auditors
Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Gandhi & Parekh
Chartered Accountants

Internal Auditors
Bhandarkar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Devdhar Joglekar & Srinivasan
Chartered Accountants

N.T. Jain & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

T.R. Chadha & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors & Solicitors
Kanga & Co.

Sunil O. Khandelwal

President Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary
K. H. Gopal

Demat ISIN Number in NSDL & CSDL
Equity Shares – INE 270A01011

Website Address
www.alokind.com

E-mail Address
info@alokind.com

17/5/1 & 521/1 Rakholi/ Saily, Silvassa-396230
Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar Haveli

Peninsula Tower, ‘A’ Wing,
Peninsula Corporate Park,
G. K. Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai – 400 013

Domestic
Delhi
F-2/9, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Estate
Phase I
New Delhi – 110 020

Bengaluru
8-3/1, Pentaford Tower,
Langford Town, Shanti Nagar,
Langford Road
Bengaluru – 560 025

Chennai
156, First Floor, Doshi Towers
Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk,
Chennai – 600 010

Overseas
Sri Lanka
26, Hallmark Building, Vajira Road,
Colombo – 04,
Sri Lanka
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Bangladesh
Asset Rosedale,

Dhaka – 1212, Bangladesh

China
Room No 701,
Youngong Communication Plaza,
East Wing Building, Zheijiang,
China

Dubai
6 WA, 232, 2nd Floor,
P. O. Box 54917,
Dubai Airport Free Zone

USA
th Street,

DALLAS, TX 75207

Czech Republic
Husova 734, 508 01 Horice
Czech Republic

British Virgin Islands
Pasea Estate,
Road Town, Tortola
British Virgin Islands

Store Twenty One
Unit 1, Plot C1
Central Boulevard, Blythe Valley Business Park
Solihull - B90 8AH

Listing & Code

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13 Pannalal Silk Mill Compound,

Mumbai – 400 078

Works
Spinning

Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Weaving

Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

Dadra, U. T. of Dadra and Nagar Haveli.

Bhiwandi – Dist. Thane

Processing

Taluka Pardi, Dist. Valsad, Gujarat

TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, Navi Mumbai
Dist. Thane.

Knitting

Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Hemming
103/2, Rakholi, Silvassa,
Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Polyester Yarn (POY & Texturised Yarn)
17/5/1, 521/1, Rakholi / Saily and 409/1 Saily 
Silvassa, Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Garments

Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Atiawad, Daman, Union Territory

Dist. Valsad, Gujarat

Home Textiles
Bed Linen

Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Pardi, Dist. Valsad,
Gujarat

Terry Towel
263/P1/P1 and 251/2/P1 Balitha,
Taluka Pardi, Dist. Valsad
Gujarat

GENERAL INFORMATION
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Milestones



2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012 Turnover crosses ` 8900 crores Exports reach  3030 crores.

Completion of Expansion of polyester production from 900 
tons/day to 1400 tons/day.

The amalgamation of Grabal Alok Impex Limited (GAIL) into 
the company was completed on 1 March 2012 with effect
from 1 April 2011.

Gold Trophy for Global Exports of Bleached / Dyed / Yarn Dyed /

Printed Fabrics in Fabrics Category

Gold Trophy for Exports of Bed Linen / Bed Sheets /Quilts in

Made-ups Category

Silver Trophy for Highest Global Exports Category

Silver Trophy for second best export performance for the year

2010-11 in the category of Polyester Yarn

`
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900



Future Ready

Foresight is one's ability to sense the future ahead of others.

Maturity is ones trait to spot and ascertain the right

opportunities. Agility is ones intrinsic strength to act quickly

and precisely. Resolve is ones commitment to prepare hard

and master the art of maximising from ones rigour. The sum

total of foresight, maturity, agility and resolve is Future

Ready.
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Future companies are the ones that successfully

encounter current challenges and also constantly evolve and

build capabilities to face unpredictable, unforeseen future

challenges. They develop and grow a unique business model

to mitigate risk and make business sustainable under all

circumstances. These companies not only quickly attain but

also maintain their leadership position. Future Ready

companies are gloriously ahead of time and the industry

looks up to them for direction and trends.

At Alok, we saw the unfolding of the golden decade of Indian Textile years

ago. We spotted integrated operations and diverse product mix as tight

opportunities. We acted with speed and purpose to expand our

manufacturing competence in India and marketing capabilities across the

globe. We prepared hard towards optimising efficiencies, maximising

quality and reducing turnaround time.

At a time when the world is looking at India for their textile needs, we are

ready to respond with the only thing that we have mastered all these years.

Making textiles and making it well. Yes we are ready.

We are ready to strike an intricate balance among interests of our varied

stakeholders. We are ready to embark on a phase of sustained profitable

growth to capitalize on opportunities and face challenges.

ready

9Innovative Textile Solutions
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India: Emerging

sourcing destination

for global buyers
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The global textile trade which was governed by quotas till December 2004 has since

then started shifting their sourcing to low cost Asian countries. The USD 600 bn

global textile trade is growing at a CAGR of 5% and it is expected to reach USD 1000

bn by 2020. This growth would be due to both shifting of manufacturing base as well

as increase in textile consumption.

China, the largest exporter of textile in the world is shifting focus towards high-end

technological industry being its transformation into the world's second biggest economy.

China's competitiveness is also gradually eroding with high wage inflation and appreciation of

Chinese Yuan. Rising per capita income in China is also leading to higher domestic

consumption, limiting further its ability to exports.

Market share of another key producer, Europe has

been on a consistent decline due to higher cost of

production. The above factors are giving India an

edge to play a bigger role in global textile trade.

The global textile buyers therefore are looking at

India as one of the major sourcing destination.

Indian textile industry is competitively placed vis-à-

2005 2010

China

EU - 27

India
Turkey

United States

Others
Total

132.8
148.3
16.1
18.9
17.4

149.5
483

27.5%
30.7%
3.3%
3.9%
3.6%
31%
100

216
166
24
22
17

157
602

35.9%
27.6%
4.0%
3.7%
2.8%

26.0%
100%

Value Value% %
Top Exporters
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vis other global destinations. India offers higher skills, lower costs, modern technology, global

acceptance, and a highly creative pool of design talent. A supportive policy regime and

absolute commitment of private enterprises is further strengthening India's prospects.

India is amongst few textiles manufacturing countries, which is fully integrated from fiber to

finished products. It is also only textile manufacturing country, which is cotton surplus. It is

accordingly, poised to double its share in global textile market from present 4% to about 8%

by 2020 to reach USD 80 bn exports from present USD 24 bn.

India is ready to be a top souring destination for global buyers and to take off into what could

possibly be her brightest decade in textiles.

4.60

15.00

24.12

45.00

80.00

1990

India Textile & Apparel Export Trend
& Future Potential USD Billion

20.40

11.40

2000 2005 2008 2010 2015(P) 2020(P)

1990 1995 2000 2005 2008 2009 2010 2015(P) 2020(P)

108

104

158

152 157 205
253 211 251

300 350
198

278
365

316
351

500

650

212
310 355

483

618
527

602

800

1000

In USD Billion

CAGR : 5.6%

Quota Phase Out
Regime

Post Quota Global
Slowdown &

Recovery

CAGR : 8.6%

CAGR : 6%

CAGR : 5%

CAGR : 5.5%

The Way Ahead...

-1.2% Growth

E: Figures of 2010 have been estimated based on US & EU imports for 2010
P: Projections

Source: WTO, OTEXA, Euostat, Technopak Analysis TextileApparel Total



India: A 

burgeoning

domestic textile

market
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India continues to be the second fastest growing economy

in the world. It is home to more than 16% of the global

population, 60% of which is between the earning age group

of 15-60 years. India's favourable demographics,

burgeoning middle class, growing urban population, faster

adoption of global lifestyles, and growing consumerism

augur well for domestic textile industry.

Country's per capita consumption of all kind of fibres is at just 8 kg as against

the global average of 12 kg. The same stands at 31 kg for North America, 22 kg

for West Europe and 17 kg for China.

In line with the growth in the GDP of the country, Per Capital Income would

also go up, which would increase consumption. As a result, the domestic

market is poised to grow at a CAGR of 10% to reach USD 140 bn by 2020 from

present about USD 55 bn.

13Innovative Textile Solutions
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30

47
52

89

140

2005 2009 2010(E) 2015(P) 2020(P)

India Domestic Textile & Apparel Market

31

22

17

8

12

North America

Fibre consumption per capita (kgs) - 2011

Europe China India World

CAGR 11%

USD Billion



Alok: Reaping

benefits of

integrated

operations
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Future Ready companies strive to be the best in their

respective segment.

We are India's largest integrated textile company. We are present across the entire value

chain in textile, from fiber to garments and made ups. Integrated operations allow us to

expand our margins with maximum value addition. It also empowers us to sell products at

various stages of our value chain like yarn, fabric and garments and thereby enhance

margins. Besides, this high level of integration gives us full control on the quality of input and

output and also insulates the business from fluctuations in input prices.

The high level of automation also optimizes manpower requirement and improves quality by

minimizing the human element. With strategically planned balanced capacity at each level,

we are ensuring an optimum utilization, self-sufficiency and better margins. We are

gradually moving up the value chain by increasing the proportion of higher value add

products that should further improve the realizations. Lately, we are carefully expanding our

capacities across various divisions that should result in higher volume growth and margins in

years ahead. The integration of Alok in cotton and polyester is depicted in the graph below:

Our huge economies of scale help us to plan and procure raw material at competitive pricing,

while our expanded and diversified product portfolio help us in addressing the need of our

customers across the value chain. We have established a strong global presence, including a

100% stake in an integrated textile company based out of Czech Republic with a strong well-

established distribution network in USA and Europe. We have a well-diversified customer

base across various geographies and we export about 35% of our total production. Our

global clientele includes most reputed retailers, brands and importers from over 90

countries.

Capitalising on our integrated business model, we are ready to expand our geographies &

products and enhance our market share in the domestic and overseas markets.

15Innovative Textile Solutions

INNOVATIVE TEXTILE SOLUTIONS



26 Annual Report  2011-12

Alok: Leveraging

technology and 

R&D prowess



Future Ready companies constantly seek to adopt the latest

technology in their operations and driven by innovation.

We are new generation textile company which has effectively leveraged technology.

We have created process driven organization with state of art facilities and integrated

management system that requires minimum human intervention.

Our personnel ceaselessly invest efforts and resources in research and development

in order to introduce new products and finishes and to remain ahead of competition.

We are also in the process of setting up an Innovation Centre that will constantly use

breakthrough technology with revolutionary thinking for the introduction of new

products. We are providing added impetus on specialized products with special

emphasis on technical textiles and working towards achieving integration in technical

textiles too from fiber to finished garments. This new thrust on innovation and

specialized products has driven the change in our motto from “Integrated Textile

Solutions” to “Innovative Textile Solutions”.

As a quality conscious company we have in-house quality assurance department that

ensure adherence to processes and quality. Our Quality Control (QC) department

inspects incoming and outgoing material against the indicated specifications. The

output of same is recorded in our centralized SAP system.

With the purpose of improving asset turnover of our integrated cotton business, we

are scaling up our production of value added and specialized products, with clear

investment strategy for future. With our high investments in technology, our

alternative fibres like polyester offer not just an alternative to cotton but a distinct

advantage over it. Yesterday's 100% cotton wear of athletes have today been replaced

by polyester. Our high investment in polyester would not only help us to serve the

growing demand of polyester but also improve our returns given the high asset

turnover and low working capital requirement of polyester as compared to cotton.

Backed by state of the art technology and unique R & D centre, Alok is ready to provide

specialized textile products with a high degree of attention to innovation and product

development to further consolidate its leadership position.

17Innovative Textile Solutions
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Alok: Focusing on 

core strengths



Future ready companies are focused companies. They

understand their core strengths and continuously sharpen

capabilities to remain ahead in the market curve.

At Alok, our core strength is our integrated textile business model. We have

three core businesses: Integrated Apparel Fabrics - Woven & Knits, Integrated

Home Textile - Bed Linens & Towels, Integrated Garments and Integrated

Polyester Yarn Business. We are further consolidating our position in these

segments by focusing on higher value added products, developing newer

products and expanding market boundaries.

We have decided to exit our non-core businesses i.e. realty. Our efforts to

monetize our real estate assets have started yielding positive results. These

efforts should provide us with strong cash flows and yield decent profits. A

major portion of the real estate monitisation should happen in 2012-13 and the

balance realization by next financial year. These funds will be utilized to retire

the debt of the company at the consolidated as well as standalone level. We are

also finalizing a strategy for our domestic and overseas retail businesses which

include turning them around and / or exiting them at an opportune time.

With focus on our core business where we are well entrenched, we are ready to

encash the emerging opportunities in the Indian textile industry which is likely

to grow three times in this decade from USD 77 bn in 2010 to about USD 220 bn

by 2020 (Source: Technopak).

With focused attention on core textile business, we are ready to grow and

enhance our stakeholder value.

19Innovative Textile Solutions
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Alok: Ensuring 

sustainable and 

inclusive growth
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Future Ready companies are sensitive to the environment

and believe in sustained and inclusive growth. They always

manage to strike the right balance between business

objectives and sustaining natural resources.

At Alok, we are conscious about our responsibility towards Mother Nature and have ensured

that our manufacturing operations are carried out in an environment friendly manner. We

have taken several measures towards this:

�We have developed green belts in and around our plants.

�We ensure that our plants not only strive to be fully compliant on social and

environment audits but exceed the norms stipulated by the various governmental

agencies, our international clients and lenders.

�We have invested heavily in state of the art effluent treatment and reverse osmosis

plants to remove harmful elements before discharge of treated water and to recycle

water for use in sanitation and gardening.

�Our captive power plants use gas as fuel, which is much greener and cleaner way of

generating power.

�We actively promote use of organic cotton and, fair trade cotton products. Organic

cotton is produced without using fertilizers and pesticides and hence is environment

friendly. Fair Trade cotton ensures that the farmer gets a just and equitable price for

his produce.

�We maintain world class facilities with strong adherence to environment, health and

safety standards.

We are amongst the first Indian textile companies to be awarded certifications for our eco-

friendly products. Being a responsible corporate, we have been consistently working for the

development of the towns and its people where we have our manufacturing units. We have

started a public school under CBSE Board in Silvassa and also plan to set up a charitable

hospital there. To provide gainful employment to tribal women, we provide intensive

training and orientation to them on weaving looms and garment stitching.

We have entered into Private Public Partnership with the local administration to convert the

Industrial Training Institute into contemporary knowledge driven centers of excellence.

Alok in now ready to harmonize its operations with Nature to embark on a phase of

sustained profitable and inclusive growth.

21Innovative Textile Solutions
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Alok:

Acknowledging and 

Appreciating Human

Capital
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Future Ready companies respect and appreciate that

human capital is the one resource that appreciates with

time and take exceptional care to develop and nurture

people employed with them.

We acknowledge that human resource is the most valuable resource that we

possess and have invested significantly to develop and retain talent. The result

is our present committed work force of about 30000 Alokians working for a

common goal of making Alok the world's best textile enterprise.

All divisions and key functions are headed by professionals cultivated to be

entrepreneurs and empowered to take independent decisions.

The work environment at plants and offices is congenial and informal with two

way communication at all levels. Suggestion boxes have been provided at

strategic locations to invite ideas and suggestions for constant improvements

in all areas of the business.

We have built quality housing for our staff and workers near our plants along

with quality recreational facilities including a cricket stadium at Silvassa.

Alok is now ready to provide a competitive environment for high performers to

flourish in for personal growth and to figure amongst the 'preferred

companies' to work for.

23Innovative Textile Solutions

INNOVATIVE TEXTILE SOLUTIONS



26 Annual Report  2011-12

Alok: Adhering to a 

high level of

Corporate

Governance



Future ready companies adopt best practices and the

highest level of corporate governance.

At Alok, we believe in following best practices in all spheres of business be it

manufacturing, procurement, dealings with employees, customers, suppliers,

lenders, investors and society at large.

We are certified under the Integrated Management System which encompasses four

certifications, namely:

ISO 9001: 2008 (Quality Management System)

ISO 14001: 2004 (Environment Management System)

OHSAS 18001: 2007 (Operational Health & Safety Assessment System), and

SA 8000:2008 (Social Accountability)

We have an eminent Board of Directors comprising Five representatives from lenders

and investors, Two independent and Four executive directors. Our committees like

Audit committee, Remuneration committee, etc are headed by independent /

nominee directors.

We have adopted the SAP platform as our IT backbone for transacting our business

and have appointed the best of audit firms to ensure adherence and compliance with

accounting standards, internal controls and processes.

We maintain a cordial relationship with our work force and our track record with

suppliers and lenders are impeccable. Our endeavor is to share information with all

stake holders and we put in efforts to provide company and industry related

information in a detailed manner.

We are always available to meet our investors & equity analysts and take initiatives to

reach out proactively to them. We believe our plants are the real strength of the

company and actively encourage our stake holders to inspect our plants for better

understanding of the company.

Alok is now ready to imbibe best practices in its functioning to transform into a

responsible and ethical corporate citizen.

25Innovative Textile Solutions
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Alok: Renewing

Focus on ROCE
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Future Ready companies continuously work on addressing

their weaknesses and improving their strengths. By better

management of their assets, they attain a ROCE better than

the industry and generate adequate free cash flow.

We have worked out a strategy to address weaknesses and build upon our strengths

and are following a multi-pronged strategy to progressively boost our return ratios.

The key components of the strategy are:

�

Improve debt-equity by:

�Exiting the non–core real estate business and monetising the same. The

proceeds would be used towards repayment of consolidated / standalone

debt.

�Equity infusion in the company to boost the net worth and improve the

debt equity ratio and rating of the company

�Increase Asset Turnover and ROCE:

Double the asset turnover and the ROCE in next two years by:

�Improving the asset turnover of the Cotton Integrated Business by focusing

on value added products like yarn dyed and technical textiles.

�Focus more on increasing the share of polyester division, where the asset

turnover and ROCE is high.

�Free Cash Flow:

Focus on generation of free cash flow by:

�Restricting the capital expenditure to the extent of depreciation charge

�Reducing the working capital cycle

With a clear road map, Alok is ready to achieve ROCE superior to industry standards

and to work towards attaining the mantle of being the world's best textile company

on all parameters.

Improvement in Debt Equity:

27Innovative Textile Solutions
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-10 31-Mar-09

Net Sales  8,900.86  6,388.43  4,311.17  2,976.93 
(Export Sales) (3029.55) (2217.43) (1558.99) (1054.50)
EBITDA  2,624.75  1,879.70  1,272.48  822.61 
Depreciation  713.43  518.79  362.61  233.50 
Misc. Exp. W/off -  -  -  - 
PBIT  1,911.32  1,360.91  909.87  589.11 
Interest  1,149.55  736.27  535.08  304.12 
PBT (operating)  761.77  624.64  374.80  284.99 
Exceptional Items (Forex MTM - Non Cash)  121.27  41.45 - -
PAT  380.53  404.36  247.34  188.37 

 1,334.19  1,083.98  711.89  513.98 
Dividend  28.81  22.97  22.97  17.28 
Net Cash Accruals  1,305.38  1,061.01  688.93  496.70 
Financial Position
Gross Fixed Assets  11,840.67  9,920.88  8,215.61  6,692.71 
Net Fixed Assets  9,466.25  8,333.76  7,145.11  5,983.86 
Current Assets  8,596.31  5,793.77  4,801.88  2,685.93 
Foreign Currency Translation A/c  -  -  0.17  11.20 
Investments  175.79  139.93  229.69  478.58 
Total Assets  18,238.36  14,267.46  12,176.85  9,159.57 
Equity Share Capital  826.28  787.79  787.79  196.97 
Reserves & Surplus  2,829.22  2,309.81  1,928.40  1,410.39 
Miscellaneous Expenses  -  -  - -
Share Application Money  -  -  -  137.50 
Share Warrants  -  -  -  10.20 
Tangible Net worth - 1  3,655.50  3,097.60  2,716.19  1,755.06 
Deferred tax liability - 2  626.77  507.66  406.98 307.97
Total Long Term Borrowings
Preference Share Capital  -  -  - -
Secured Loans  6,926.44  5,956.06  6,056.69  4,948.43 
Unsecured Loans - FCCB  -  -  107.21  121.01 
Unsecured Loans  86.62  95.34  272.81  51.09 

 7,013.06  6,051.40  6,436.71  5,120.53 
Total Short Term Borrowings
Secured Loans  2,233.10  1,851.37  1,186.19  608.64 
Unsecured Loans  569.39  881.83  43.00  168.02 
Working Capital Borrowings  2,956.67  1,034.60  843.78  699.16 

 5,759.16  3,767.80  2,072.97  1,475.82 
Total Borrowings - 3  12,772.22  9,819.20  8,509.68  6,596.35 
Total Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities & Provisions - 4 *  1,183.87  843.00  544.00 500.19
Total Liabilities - 1 to 4  18,238.36  14,267.46  12,176.85  9,159.58 
Capital Employed  15,132.88  11,611.32  9,835.58  8,006.47 
EPS  4.69  5.13  4.57  9.64 
CEPS  15.80  13.47  9.04  24.04 
Book Value  44.24  39.32  34.48  89.10 

Note:

* The current maturity component of debt is included in short term borrowings and excluded from current liabilities
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(` In Crores)

31-Mar-08 31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06 31-Mar-05 31-Mar-04 31-Mar-03

 2,170.41  1,824.68  1,420.70  1,224.50  1,068.85  795.41 
(1036.89) (641.71) (394.55) (306.53) (111.48) (26.20)

 547.75  410.96  301.26  244.53  198.40  137.14 
 161.96  123.04  80.48  57.56  38.28  25.42 

 -  -  -  -  1.15  0.85 
 385.79  287.92  220.78  186.97  158.97  110.87 
 131.83  89.04  66.78  63.68  66.40  51.51 
 253.96  198.88  154.00  123.29  92.57  59.36 

- - - - - -
 167.73  135.18  109.21  89.25  71.08  42.31 
 393.14  302.50  189.69  146.81  110.51  68.58 
 26.28  28.75  30.20  27.92  11.65  7.04 

 366.86  273.75  159.49  118.89  98.86  61.54 

 4,368.05  2,954.20  2,121.89  1,047.57  690.84  453.59 
 3,891.30  2,583.80  1,874.24  879.27  579.53  380.39 
 3,377.53  1,992.66  1,403.87  1,359.21  846.68  593.15 

 618.96  219.49  39.70  7.85  4.07  4.07 
 7,887.79  4,795.95  3,317.81  2,246.33  1,430.28  977.61 

 187.17  170.37  157.47  134.02  88.23  87.69 
 1,134.01  854.07  650.06  460.73  218.00  162.73 

- - - - -  1.15 
 -  -  -  -  18.10  - 

 110.16  -  -  3.32  3.32  - 
 1,431.34  1,024.44  807.53  598.07  327.65  249.27 

 210.48  141.82  100.10  75.10  50.52  36.33 

 -  -  68.00  84.33  83.67  5.00 
 3,706.66  2,049.13  1,392.13  823.89  371.48  262.70 

 94.87  202.87  220.63  -  -  - 
 103.28  6.48  61.32  17.63  19.97  15.95 

 3,904.81  2,258.48  1,742.08  925.85  475.12  283.65 

 550.00  215.00  85.00  102.08  75.00  27.80 
 745.01  294.36  62.34  61.77  50.77  34.43 
 567.49  568.92  323.08  313.54  301.20  203.29 

 1,862.50  1,078.28  470.42  477.39  426.97  265.52 
 5,767.31  3,336.76  2,212.50  1,403.24  902.09  549.17 

 478.66  292.93  197.68  169.92  150.02  142.84 
 7,887.79  4,795.95  3,317.81  2,246.33  1,430.28  977.61 
 5,524.91  3,575.90  2,487.00  1,504.51  1,072.47  775.44 

 11.40  9.70  6.68  7.25  7.90  7.36 
 20.53  16.99  12.61  12.68  12.53  12.07 
 76.47  60.13  1.96  2.05  34.70  28.43 
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KEY RATIOS

Particulars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-10 31-Mar-09

EBITDA (%) 29.49% 29.42% 29.52% 27.63%

8.56% 9.78% 8.69% 9.57%

4.28% 6.33% 5.74% 6.33%

Return on Capital Employed (%) 12.63% 11.72% 9.25% 7.36%

Return on Net worth (%) 13.88% 13.05% 9.11% 10.73%

Balance Sheet Ratios

Net Total Debt - Equity  3.14  2.75  2.62  3.56 

Net Total Debt / EBITDA  4.37  4.53  5.59  7.60 

Current Ratio  1.24  1.26  1.53  1.22 

Coverage Ratios

PBDIT/Interest  2.28  2.55  2.38  2.70 

Net Fixed Assets/Secured Loans 
(1st Charge holders)

 2.31  2.58  2.27  1.89 

Debtors Turnover - Days  88  99  93  108 

Inventory Turnover - Days  139  114  125  116 
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KEY RATIOS
31-Mar-08 31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06 31-Mar-05 31-Mar-04 31-Mar-03

25.24% 22.52% 21.21% 19.97% 18.56% 17.24%

11.70% 10.90% 13.19% 12.80% 11.79% 11.67%

7.73% 7.41% 9.78% 9.71% 9.43% 9.05%

6.98% 8.05% 10.22% 14.65% 17.94% 18.61%

11.72% 13.11% 16.13% 18.28% 30.22% 28.51%

 2.86  2.49  2.08  1.52  2.27  2.10 

 7.47  6.21  5.57  3.71  3.75  3.83 

 1.33  1.32  1.82  1.92  1.34  1.33 

 4.15  4.62  4.51  3.84  2.99  2.66 

 1.73  1.46  1.56  1.44  1.56  1.45 

 102  109  91  120  149  122 

 116  93  92  108  70  128 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Rasquinha (51) is an Independent Nominee Director of
the company since October 2009, nominated by Export Import
Bank of India. He holds a first class graduate degree in Economics
from Bombay University. He also holds a Post Graduate
qualification in Business Management from XLRI, Jamshedpur,
where he was awarded a Gold Medal in Economics. He is with
Export Import Bank of India since 1985, and is working as
Executive Director.

He has a wide range of exposure and experience in the fields of
export credit, treasury, multilateral agency funded projects,
planning & research, risk management, trade finance and project
finance.
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Dear Shareholders,

The global economies in 2011-12, witnessed slowdown. Euro zone was worst affected. US economy, though 
impacted, has now started showing sign of mild recovery. China and Indian economies which were driving the 
global economy for some time are also showing signals of slow down.

Surely, the prevailing economic environment has had an impact on the global apparel and textiles industry. 
Having said so, we strongly believe that economic cycles will always exist and companies like Alok, which have 
a long term vision will have to rely on identifying and delivering on pockets of opportunity that are always there 
even in the worst of economic conditions. The healthy growth in revenue in 2011-12 is testimony of the same 
as indicated below:

Domestic sales was up 41% to ` 5871 crore; Exports was up 37% to ` 3,030 crore; and total sales was up 
39% to ` 8,901 crore

Operating EBIDTA increased by 40% to ` 2,625 crore in 2011-12, while operating PBT increased by 22% 
to ` 762 crore in 2011-12

` 381 crore as compared to ` 404 crore in 2010-11 representing 
a decline of 6%. This is mainly on account of Mark to Market (MTM) losses on foreign exchange transactions 
taken by the Company due to the unusual depreciation in the value of the Indian Rupee (INR) against US Dollar 
(USD) during the year. The same has been booked as an exceptional item loss of ` 121 crore. These losses are 
an accounting entry, which have not yet materialised and subsequent reverse movements in the rupee dollar 
exchange rate could actually wipe out this loss. So, looking at operations based parameters for the Company 

garment manufacturing for both cotton and polyester. The market goes through various ups and downs in each 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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Company with greatest value

On the demand side, the Company continues to penetrate newer markets in terms of geography and products. 

Similarly, the presence in cotton and polyester, which are often treated as substitutes in the market, gives the 

sales has grown to 34% and the focus on value added polyester products like Cationic yarn is paying dividend.

The major capex programme for developing this large integrated production capacity was completed by March 
2012. Going forward, in the next few years the focus is on value added and balancing capex related capital 
investments. The new capital investment would, however, be limited to the extent of the annual depreciation 

global scale capacities to a phase of consolidation when efforts will focus on getting optimum returns from these 
capacities. There are three fundamental goals in this phase:

Maximising ROCE (Return on Capital Employed)

Monetising and exiting non-core businesses

Maximising ROCE

and one expects to see substantial positive results soon.

business by increasing the volume of value added products like yarn dyed (structured) fabrics, technical textiles 
and institutional work wear. There also stress at growing the share of the Polyester business where asset 

Exiting and Monetising non-core businesses

The Company has in-principle decided to exit all non-core businesses. Active steps are being taken to sell the 
commercial real estate that the Company had invested in. For Ashford Centre and Peninsula Business Park, we 
have appointed a leading global real estate consultant and have already entered into around ` 500 crore worth 

are being developed for the retail businesses in India and UK to make them thin on capital intensity and bring 
back some of the capital invested in these ventures back into Alok.

With the intensive capex programme almost complete, the efforts at monetisation of non-core business assets 

reduce our debt burden and de-leverage the Company.

I urge you to read the details of our operations in 2011-12 that has been elucidated in the chapter on Management 
Discussion and Analysis.

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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Going forward, we expect the macro-economic conditions to be subdued in the next couple of years. At Alok, 
we have the integrated capacity base in place supported by the increasing growth in customer relationships. We 
are going to leverage both these to gain market share and continue with our growth path. We remain cautiously 
optimistic on delivering results with a strong focus on delivering improved returns on capital employed.

export thrust in global markets. In the last 10 years global textile trade has been dominated by China. But, 
recently, China is witnessing an increase in labour costs, currency appreciation and environmental concerns that 
have affected their competitiveness. In the long run, the need to cater to a growing domestic demand with the 
shift to becoming an advance economy that has less emphasis on sectors like textiles will provide an opportunity 
to country like India to expand its market share. This opens up opportunities for Alok.

This ambition and vision, which focuses on continuous delivery at the highest standards is only possible with the 

are made to ensure that the most appropriate people are recruited into the organisation. Across the Company 
and its subsidiaries and associates, we seek to continuously promote a culture of training, people development 

satisfaction of working in an organisation that encourages skill development and learning and monitors career 
growth.

extend a special word of gratitude to all our vendors, employees and customers. Finally, thank you to our 
shareholders for reposing faith in our business.

Yours Sincerely,

Executive Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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Having built sizeable capacities across the value chain in cotton as well as in polyester, your company has now 
commenced its phase of consolidation in right earnest. We would be taking several initiatives towards this end:

exiting all non-core businesses

being more disciplined in our use of cash, rationalization of new capital expenditure and intensifying our 

expanding our product portfolio and business markets;

creating and encouraging a high performance culture.

We will internally reinforce strategies to bring about overhead reductions, procurement savings and newer 

leverage that to accelerate revenue and earnings growth. We would continue our efforts to be the market 
leadership through product innovation and expand our presence in new business geographies.

Our objective now is to be seen as the innovation leader for our industry. This focus cements our commitment to 
customers to continually improve the value proposition we offer.

With optimization of new expanded capacities and the completion of the balancing capex programmes, we 

objective would be to focus on innovation, expanding our position across new markets and to leverage our 
dominant position to accelerate growth.

Your company now embarks on the most important leg of its journey thus far. This is an exciting time for the 
company and we expect sustained growth and continued improvement in shareholder returns since all building 
blocks are in place.

Managing Director

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE  



INNOVATIVE TEXTILE SOLUTIONS

 39Innovative Textile Solutions

In the 26 years of our existence, Alok has gained in strength in all aspects of its operations.

Our remarkable journey to the forefront of the textile business is achieved out of a vision to be rated alongside 
the best in the world. As our journey steams ahead, we are expanding our vision to conquer new horizons.

We at Alok strive to be distinct in our efforts to provide textile solutions that are innovative and the best. We will 

textile enterprise, driven by the quality of our products and the passion of our human capital. Our entire value 
system revolves around Innovation and Excellence. For over two decades, we have relentlessly invested in 
cutting edge technology that has provided us the ability to offer a wide suite of products across the cotton 
and polyester segments on a scale and at price points that match global standards.Our country is witnessing, 
perhaps her most exciting phase in textiles and we see Alok being fully ready to ride this opportunity.

We are committed to adhere to socially responsible business practices that ensures the well-being of the 
communities in which our business operates. We have set high standards for our operating divisions in the area 
of environmental responsibility — by striving for performance that reduces our environmental impacts. We try to 
maximize use of renewable energy and optimize use of natural resources.

Over the past few years, we have successfully created an enterprise of global standards in terms of capacity, 
size, infrastructure, product range and innovative approach. We will continue our march towards transforming 
ourselves into a company that will stand for inclusive growth and reward stakeholders consistently.

customers, legal counsel, suppliers, bankers, auditors and various government authorities for their cooperation. 
I also would like to appreciate the tremendous efforts and enthusiasm of our employees who are primarily 
responsible for the results.

Joint Managing Director

JOINT MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE



The skills required to start a business are often very different from

the ones required to lead it. As second generation entrepreneurs,

we draw a huge advantage in terms of getting a ready platform in

Alok to work from.

Of course there are different set of challenges that we have to

face, as the company which is in operation for more than two

decades has developed a certain culture and set mind-set of

doing business.

We have realized that our main role will be to constantly evolve to

another level of efficiency and level of service. We need to be not

only effective managers but also process innovators.

We do understand that the business environment and challenges

were quite different when this business was founded and built.

Now in this fast paced world, everything is changing from

technology, competition, processes to human aspects. This is the

real challenge for new generation entrepreneurs.

We believe that imbibing of the following traits are key to

achieving success consistently: vision, constant learning, trust,

values and people skills.

Alok has offered us the opportunity to:

�Scale the business further from where we started our career

and freedom to add value and build something of our own;

�Follow the path already laid, extend it further and even

make new roads, and

�Allow people to think outside the box and make thoughts

work.

It will be our endeavor to build on the efforts of the existing team

to take Alok to greater heights.

We are committed to transform Alok into the largest and best

textile company in the world for all stake holders with special

emphasis on R&D, product innovation, generating free cash flow

and improving key ratios, especially the ROCE.

“We are committed to

transform Alok into the 

largest and best textile

company in the world

for all stake holders

with special emphasis 

on R&D, product

innovation, generating

free cash flow and 

improving key ratios,

especially the ROCE. ”

Seated: Niraj D. Jiwrajka

Standing L to R : Alok A. Jiwrajka,

Varun S. Jiwrajka
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Mr. Sunil O. Khandelwal 
Chief Financial Officer

Under the challenging market conditions prevailing last year, Alok's 
sales growth of 39% and export growth of 37% to reach Rs. 8901 crore 
and 3030 crore respectively is creditable. 

What clearly emerges is that the strategy adopted by Alok i.e. that of 
aggressive expansion since 2005 and building up a large scale 
integrated model in cotton and polyester with state of the art 
technology, is now proving to be a prudent one.

The journey till here for Alok has been eventful. We have grown into 
the largest integrated textile company in the country and amongst the 
biggest in the world. We realize our core strength is textiles. We 
believe that having derived much insight into our business and a clear 
path to follow,  our journey from here onwards will be more 
interesting and rewarding.

We have formulated following strategy to improve the performance 
and return ratio significantly from here:

?Exiting the non-core business of real estate and use its 
proceeds to reduce debt. 

? Equity infusion into the company to improve debt equity and 
rating. The improved rating would reduce our interest cost. 

? We have formulated a strategy to nearly double our Return on 
Capital Employed (ROCE) in the next few years by focusing on:

?Improving the asset turnover of the capital 
intensive  integrated cotton textile business by 
focusing more on value added products such as  
yarn dyed fabrics and technical textiles; and

?Gradually increasing the capacities of polyester 
integrated yarn business which commands a higher 
asset turnover, lower working capital days  and 
thereby higher ROCE. 

?Start generating free cash flow by limiting our capital 
expenditure and reducing working capital cycle.

I have also rediscovered my role as CFO as ‘Cash Flow from 
Operations’ and making every one in the company ROCE conscious.

We believe in the current golden phase of Indian textile industry, Alok 

is well placed to capitalize on both domestic & export opportunity. 

With a clear focus on our strategy, we are committed to meet the 

expectations of our stake holders and are now better equipped and 

confident of delivering better returns in times to come.

“I have also 
rediscovered my role as 
CFO as ‘Cash Flow from 
Operations’ and making 
every one in the 
company ROCE 
conscious.”
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It is with a feeling of pride and satisfaction that we look back on

the last 26 years that have rolled by. We have been growing at a

consistent rate on both, sales and PAT, a fitting testimony to our

conviction and vision. We have invested close to USD 2 billion in

the last six years in vertically integrating ourselves in the cotton

and polyester value chains. This smart move provides a natural

hedge to the business model while allowing for growth

opportunities in both segments to be capitalized on.

Having achieved critical economies of scale, we are now

streamlining efficiencies, reducing costs of production effectively,

right-sizing manpower, sharpening risk management tools and

enhancing levels of governance. These measures are part of our

strategy to transform ourselves into the largest and best textile

enterprise in the world well before the end of this decade.

As our company comprehensively moves towards attaining a

dominant position in the global textile arena, we will reinforce our

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) tools and techniques. Our

aim will be to move beyond a “silo” scope of risk to a

comprehensive, fact-based scope of risk that allows for risk to be

managed coherently and facilitate strategic decision-making. We

will develop and implement rigorous processes to assess and

address risks from all sources that threaten the achievement of

our strategic objectives

We will also continue to inculcate best-in-class corporate

governance practices to ensure commitment of the Board in

managing the company in a transparent manner for maximizing

long-term value of the company for its shareholders and all other

partners. Our fundamental objective of governance is to enhance

shareholders' value and protect the interests of other

stakeholders by improving the corporate performance and

accountability.

We will focus on our invaluable human resources with renewed

vigour. We will endeavor to develop a HRD framework for helping

employees develop their personal and organizational skills,

knowledge, and abilities. Our transformational focus of all aspects

of HRD will be on developing the most superior workforce so that

the organization and individual employees can accomplish their

work goals in service to customers.

As our country confidently embarks on what could be touted

India's most exciting decade in textiles, we at Alok are realistically

optimistic of carving out a dominant share in the global markets as

we now possess the necessary size, skills, knowledge,

infrastructure, products, ethics, values, talent and management.

“

confidently embarks on 

what could be touted

India's most exciting

decade in textiles, we at

Alok are realistically

optimistic of carving out 

a dominant share in the 

global markets as we

now possess the 

necessary size, skills, 

knowledge,

infrastructure, products,

ethics, values, talent

and management.”

As our country

Mr. K. H. Gopal

President (Corporate Affairs) & 

Secretary
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Mr. Sapan Mukherjee

Chief Executive Officer-Spinning

'Spinning a Web of Success'

Alok's Spinning division was set up in 2007, as a backward

integration measure. Commencing operations with a rather modest

50000 ring spindles and 900 rotors, we consistently added

capacities to become amongst the largest spinning units in the

country with 4,11,000 ring spindles and 5960 open end rotors.

The technology adopted is highly modern and automated. The unit

is capable of producing wide range of cotton / blended yarn starting

from 6 OE count to 120 count ring yarn both compact and regular

yarn. We also have in-house gassing and doubling capacities for

higher applications.

All these were made possible through the able guidance,

continuous support and vision of the top management and our

eminent Board. Of course, part of the credit also goes to the

dedicated team of spinning professionals who have contributed

immensely into the company through their vast experience and

untiring efforts.

Since our inception, we have crossed many milestones and reached

good levels of productivity and quality of yarns. Almost 95% of our

production is consumed in-house in our weaving and knitting units.

The requirement, however of our weaving, knitting, terry and yarn

dyeing divisions is much higher than our production with our

division contributing to about 60% of the total yarn requirement. In

view of this, we may consider adding some more capacities in

Spinning in the near future to de-risk vagaries of the markets.

Alok has identified technical and specialized fabrics as its area of

growth in future and towards this end, we are setting up a dedicated

spinning unit of 11332 spindles and 360 rotors capable of producing

specialized yarn, thus making Alok integrated in technical textiles as

well.

In the years to come we will further improve aspects like

productivity, quality to make this business unit even more

profitable. We are ready to face challenges of a tougher,

competitive and uncertain market. We will continue to put in our

best efforts and retain skilled work force through good training

programs which will be vital when we add capacities and achieve

greater milestones.

Achieving the highest level of productivity with the lowest possible

input cost and maintaining the highest level of quality across

products lines will be the key area that we intend to focus for the

times ahead.

“Achieving the highest

level of productivity

with the lowest

possible input cost and 

maintaining the highest

level of quality across

products lines will be 

the key area that we

intend to focus for the 

times ahead.”
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The polyester division recorded sales of Rs. 2979.22 crore in 2011-12,

a growth of 76.48 % over 2010-11. Revenues from polyester

constituted about 33.47% of the overall revenues of the company.

Our continuous polymerization plant produces melt to produce

various types of polyester yarn in capacities that match a global scale.

The CP plants are set up with state-of-the art technology from

Chemtex- USA, POY machinery from Barmag- Germany, FDY

machinery from TMT- Japan & Barmag- Germany and Polyester

Staple Fibre from CTMTC.

With this unique set-up, the company offers a wide range of products

that include POY, DTY, FDY, polyester chips, cationic yarn and PSF for

diverse applications. The distinguishing feature of Alok's polyester

division is its focus towards finished products, which constitutes

almost 70% of its polyester capacity.

Polyester business is highly volatile in nature on account of large

fluctuations in raw material prices which are linked with movement

in cotton prices as well as crude oil and global demand and supply.

Our objective is to mitigate this risk effectively and position ourselves

as a dominant player in the segments that we operate.

Our philosophy is to produce products with a wide range of

applications at the lowest possible cost in order to be competitive

with the product quality exceeding global standards for customer

delight. The entire strategy is to place our volumes in niche markets

globally for a wide array of specialized applications. With the launch

of PSF in the second half of this year, we should be able to offer a

larger product basket and higher profitability.

Our key initiative for the current year would be to place at least 75%

of our production (which would be a wide range of products like

Dope Dyed Yarn, Cationic Yarn, Full Dull Yarn and Micro Filament) in

the overseas market, where margins are better. Our large investment

in automation should result in better product quality with minimal

damage and a superior product for the customer.

We are confident about the prospects of the Indian Textile industry

and will contribute our part in making it a reality. The innovation in

polyester in improving its feel and breathability to provide similar

comfort like cotton should be the order of the day for the growing

Indian domestic market. We look forward to the future with quite

optimism.

“

the prospects of the Indian 

Textile industry and will 

contribute our part in 

making it a reality. The 

innovation in polyester in 

improving its feel and 

breathability to provide

similar comfort like cotton

should be the order of the 

day for the growing Indian 

domestic market. We look 

forward to the future with 

quite optimism.”

We are confident about 

Mr. Reshabh Raizada

Chief Executive Officer-

Polyester & Retail

44 26 Annual Report  2011-12

MANAGEMENT SPEAK : POLYESTER YARN



“With our fully 

integrated business set

up, large scale, modern 

plants and 

infrastructure, we

believe Alok is best

equipped to derive

maximum advantage of 

the emerging

opportunities in the 

Indian Textile industry.”

Mr. Rohit Seru

President-Apparel Fabrics

Alok is leader in woven apparel fabric segment and our range is

wide enough to capture almost all requirements of our

demanding customers. It's also a major revenue segment for Alok,

constituting about 43.41% of the total revenue of the company.

Our key result areas in 2011-12 have been:

�Total woven apparel fabric sales achieved a growth of

41%, which increased to Rs. 3863 crores in 2011-12 from

Rs. 2731 crores in 2010-11.

�Exports sales recorded higher growth of 108% and

increased to Rs. 568 crore in 2011-12 from Rs. 272 in

2010-11.

�Average price realisation increase from Rs.103 per meter

to Rs. 107 per meter.

Alok is looking forward to a robust business plan in woven apparel

fabrics. We shall strive to continue to hold a leadership position in

this segment. Our passion is to continuously strive for high

standards of quality and delivery and have a delighted customer

always.

Our focus in 2012-13 would be to:

�Achieve sales growth by focusing on volume growth and

improvement in overall average rate per meter.

�Change our product mix in line with our focus on value

added products, such as:

I. Yarn dyed woven fabric business,

ii. Printed apparel and institutional business; and

iii. increase our presence in the specialized Work

Wear and technical textile business

�Develop business with major Work Wear brands in USA &

Europe. And target international defence business in the

uniform and specialty business.

With our fully integrated business set up, large scale, modern

plants and infrastructure, we believe Alok is best equipped to

derive maximum advantage of the emerging opportunities in the

Indian Textile industry.
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Mr. Tulsi Karnani

Chief Executive Officer-Weaving

“Having built the 

country's largest

weaving capacity we

feel this is just the 

beginning. With our 

special thrust on 

research and 

innovation, we are

committed to make our 

textiles “a different

business for a different

future. ”

The products manufactured by our weaving unit are normal width

and wider width greige fabrics. The financial year 2011-12 in many

ways was a landmark year for our weaving plant:

We are privileged to have the largest number of air jet/ rapier

looms at one location in the country. Also with about 800 Airjet

looms under one shed, we possess probably, the largest weaving

shed in the world.

In the year under discussion, we achieved a record production.

And we are getting ready to break our own record in 2012-13 as

we optimize our capacities and increase the running speed and

efficiency of the looms.

We produce a wide range of fabrics with different weaves such as

plain weave, satin weave, twills, dobbies, jacquard, yarn dyed and

technical fabrics, amongst others.

We continuously put in efforts to improve efficiency, reduce

inventory and make our products more competitive. We also

continuously explore efficient means to reduce our cost per pick

(thereby cost per meter), shrink our total lead times and enhance

customer satisfaction by producing quality products and

introducing new developments.

For example, in case of woven apparel fabrics, yarn dyed fabric,

our value added product  segment, we reduced the overall lead 

time of 131 days in April-2011 to 60-65 days in Feb-2012 / March

2012. Similarly, we improved the production of this value added

fabric during the year. We are further increasing the production of

this value added yarn dyed fabric and expect to double it from the

present level in the next few months by increasing yarn dyed

capacities.

Having built the country's largest weaving capacity we feel this is

just the beginning. With our special thrust on research and

innovation, we are committed to make our textiles “a different

business for a different future.

46 26 Annual Report  2011-12

MANAGEMENT SPEAK : WEAVING



Our splendidly modern plants covering almost all kinds of narrow

and wider width fabrics, knits, yarn dyeing and terry towel

possess dye-print-finish capabilities of the highest order.

Being at the end of the final value chain for finished fabrics, we

impart maximum value addition to the fabrics. The testimony of

the quality of our products is indicated by the fact that the

company is a preferred vendor to blue chip retailers, importers

and brands around the world and in the domestic market.

Alok has invested heavily in the processing segment and boasts of

having the highest processing capacity in the country. Alok's

processing facilities occupy the pride of place not only for the

company but also for the country.

With the most versatile and largest processing capacity, we are

quite naturally and justifiably proud of our set-up and aim to turn

it into the best in the world, in terms of production, cost and

quality.

We have targeted higher productivity with lower cost of

production by intelligent use of our resources and conversion of

fuel from CNG to coal within the third and fourth quarter of the

current year. In addition to this, rationalization and development

of right skills in employees has also been initiated to encounter

shortage of skilled manpower.

With strategic focus on value added fabrics such as yarn dyed,

technical and specialty fabrics, we will be strategically expanding

capacities in order to capitalize on the opportunities available to

the Indian Textile Industry as also to better balance out the

integrated set up of our company.

“With strategic focus on 

value added fabrics such 

as yarn dyed, technical

and specialty fabrics, we

will be strategically

expanding capacities in 

order to capitalize on the 

opportunities available

to the Indian Textile

Industry as also to better

balance out the 

integrated set up of our 

company.”

Mr. S. S. Aich

Chief Executive Officer-Processing
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Mr. Sanjay Bhatt

Chief Executive Officer- Embroidery

“As a strategic

initiative for 2012-13, 

we propose to

penetrate the South 

American market to

sell our products. ”

At our embroidery plants, we produce an exquisite range of schiffli

and multi head embroidered products that impart high value

addition to dress materials, garments and home furnishings.

Last year was challenging for us as our major market; the African

continent was facing a downturn; no different from the rest of the

world. We managed to tide over the circumstances and posted

sales of Rs. 161 crore, including exports of Rs. 105 crore.

We were co-promoted by Alok and an Austrian collaborator as an

independent company called Grabal Alok Impex Ltd., but with the

amalgamation of our business with Alok during financial year

2011-12, we have become an integral part of our parent company.

We see a lot of synergy in our business merging with Alok and

hope to provide an incisive edge to Alok's already formidable

range of products.

We can rightfully classify as having the largest embroidery

capacity in the country and amongst the largest in the world too.

We believe in a simple philosophy which has helped us grow our 

business year on year. We believe that our customer's shop is our

shop and our factory is the customer's factory. We complement

each other - we have grown because of our customers and our

customers look up to our support in terms of new designs and

developments to grow their business.

We cater to various markets, domestic and overseas. Our

marketing strategy is rather unique in the sense that we add two

or three markets every year. Also, to maintain exclusivity of our

designs and as a measure of comfort to our existing clients, we

avoid adding new customers in existing markets.

As a strategic initiative for 2012-13, we propose to penetrate the

South American market to sell our products.
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Mr. Arvind Maurya

Chief Executive Officer-Knits

“Our goal would be to

make the most of this 

situation and position 

our division as a 

preferred / nominated

vendor for global buying 

houses and retailers due 

to our QCD (Quality, Cost

and Delivery)

parameters.”

Last year was a bit challenging year as our major markets, USA

and Europe witnessed slow down. But we believe, challenges

do not come alone, they bring with them opportunities and

glory. Accordingly, we were able to sight opportunity to grow

our business on domestic turf and recorded a growth of 11% in

sales which increased to Rs. 268crores in 2011-12 as compared

to Rs. 241crores in 2010-11.

Looking at the growing opportunities in domestic and export

markets, we are increasing our knitting capacity from the

current 18200 tons per annum to 25000 tons per annum in the

current fiscal year.

It would be our endeavor to establish ourselves as the best and

biggest weft knitted fabric supplier in the SAARC (The South

Asian Association for Regional Cooperation) region by the end

of fiscal year 2012-13. The other important area where we

would be focusing this year is on developing technical wear and

sportswear fabric segments. To support us in these endeavors,

we are setting up a competent and world class R&D facility

within Alok.

We realize that India is on the threshold of an exciting new

phase of prolonged growth in textiles with the domestic market

also offering sizeable opportunities.

Our goal would be to make the most of this situation and

position our division as a preferred / nominated vendor for

global buying houses and retailers due to our QCD (Quality, Cost

and Delivery) parameters.

49Innovative Textile Solutions

IINNNNOOVVAATTIIVVEE  TTEEXXTTIILLEE  SSOOLLUUTTIIOONNSS

MANAGEMENT SPEAK :  KNITTED FABRICS



Alok's home textile division recorded Sales of Rs. 1250 crore in 2011-

12, a growth of 25% over the previous year. This division's export

revenue of Rs. 1220 crore accounted for 40% of Alok's overall export

revenue and can rightfully be regarded as the export growth driver

for the company. It has recorded a consistent CAGR of 29% over the

past 8 years, i.e. from the time it was incepted.

In a year where global economy was in turbulence and the market

size of the Home Textile remained flat, Alok had a healthy growth in

the Home Textiles business. We achieved some major milestones:

�We expanded more 'owned brands' and had proprietary

technologies placed in the private label programs of major

retailers, giving us a distinct competitive advantage.

�Alok also received patent in a fitted sheet technology –

Optifit. We signed rights to major brands – Ellen Tracy, Royal

Sateen, Mary Jane Farms, Caribbean Joe. This helped us

grab market share in areas where we were unable to

compete earlier.

�We launched new categories – Table top, Soft Window,

which should be major growth vehicles in the years to

come.

�Terry towels took a firm footing with strong programs in

market place and product being placed in better and best

end of the market.

Our division secures its strength from the impressive spinning,

weaving and finishing facilities of our company. This infrastructural

advantage is unique and unparalleled when combined with the

marketing acumen of a group of strongly motivated professionals.

To retain our advantage in an increasingly competitive world:

�We will continue to boost operational efficiency

�We will be keeping one eye on our existing customers and

endeavouring to delight them, while keeping the other eye

on diversifying our markets further into new territories.

�We will strive not only to meet their expectations, but to

exceed them. This would translate into excelling on quality,

delivery and price.

�Also, in order to retain our competitive edge, we will

continuously introduce innovative products customized to

meet specific customer needs.

As our company marches assertively towards carving out a niche

space in the new exciting phase of the Indian textile industry, we will

focus efforts in reinforcing our triple bottom line of: Delighting

customers, Empowering employees; and Rewarding stakeholders.

“Our division secures its 

strength from the 

impressive spinning,

weaving and finishing 

facilities of our company.

This infrastructural

advantage is unique and 

unparalleled when 

combined with the 

marketing acumen of a 

group of strongly

motivated

professionals.”

Mr. Arun Agarwal

Chief Executive Officer,

Alok International Inc. 
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Mr. Sanjay Deora

 Chief Executive Officer-Terry

Towels

For Alok's Home Textile division, already with a strong foot hold in

the sheeting business, investment in terry towels was just a step

towards making Alok a one stop destination for Home Textile

Buyers.

Alok's Terry Division started two years back and has recently

doubled its capacity to 1100 tonnes / month, with plans to double

this in the next two years.

We achieved revenues of Rs. 159 crore (about USD 30 mn) in sales

for fiscal 2011-12 and are targeting to double sales in the current

year backed by the additional capacities and a strong order book.

Currently our major markets are USA, UK, Japan, Australia and New

Zealand. We are exploring new markets like Russia and South

America and will b constantly looking to expand our markets.

In the competing environment, especially from domestic

companies, we are making our mark with major retailers worldwide

through strong R&D. In two years we have launched new

technologies like Cloud Zero, Dura and quick dry towels , giving us a

leading edge with many leading retailers.

Our major focus remains introducing terry towels through

innovation in new fiber and process technologies. With atomization

at every stage of production we are confident of achieving better

margins and high economies of scales as we add capacities.

Though markets globally are bit slow and India's terry capacity is

poised to increase further. We do boast an overflowing order book 

for the next 9 months. We aim to position ourselves as the best in

the terry industry and plan to aggressively increase our market share

year on year.

We would continue our endeavor to be a ONE STOP SOURCE for our

Home textile buyers and are confident of growing our business by

delighting our customers with our service and product innovation.

“We would continue

our endeavor to be a 

ONE STOP SOURCE for

our Home textile

buyers and are

confident of growing

our business by

delighting our 

customers with our 

service and product

innovation.”
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The previous year was a satisfactory one for us. Despite a

slowdown in our major markets we could achieve revenue of Rs.

217 crore, representing a growth of 25 %.

As we look ahead, prospects seem bright for the garment business

at Alok. Till date, we were oriented towards fashion garments. We

are, however now focusing on new emerging opportunities in

Industrial and Work Wear garments. There are some prerequisites

to be strictly adhered to in this segment like constant innovation,

networking and better supply chain management with ability to

link up to the global value chain. This would also complement our

Technical Textile division, where we make specialized fabric for

various applications.

Though our garment division is presently export oriented, we

firmly believe that the readymade garment segment will be the

principle driver of growth in the domestic industry once the FDI in

the retail sector is opened up, which in our opinion is just a matter

of time.

Having built up the right size with the right infrastructure, Alok is 

ideally placed to take on competition by offering large volumes at

competitive prices with attractive lead times. Alok, with its

vertically integrated operations and a varied product basket,

offers itself as an ideal partner for any brand in the Indian and

overseas markets.

The "Women Empowerment Program" started in year 2007 has

brought about a social change and given a productive and stable

work force. It has made the division grow by almost 500% since

then.

Every individual in the division is tuned to operate with a

marketing focus rather than production, as with a marketing focus

one operates from a position of servicing a client while with

production focus one operates mainly from a position of cost. This

continues to remain our mantra for success.

“Every individual in the 

division is tuned to

operate with a 

marketing focus rather

than production, as with 

a marketing focus one 

operates from a position 

of servicing a client

while with production

focus one operates

mainly from a position 

of cost. This continues to

remain our mantra for

success.”

Mr. Romi Agarwal

Chief Executive Officer-

Garments
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 Mrs. Mala Mukherjee

Head-Hemming

“Integrating Business 

Opportunities to Sustainability”

At Alok's Hemming division, the products

manufactured are 'Handkerchiefs' and 'Cotton Bags'

with a strong focus on 'Sustainability'. These

products are not only value additions in terms of

revenue and volumes to the mainstream fabric

business but aim at supplying Organic, Fair Trade and

Better Cotton products to Alok's global customer

base.

Over the years we have not only created a new

business group but have been successful business

partners with global retail giants.

For the year 2011-12, our division recorded a sales of

about Rs. 20 crores.

Going forward we want to expand our horizon to

cover many more customers across the globe.

Towards this end, we have added more products to

our existing product line such as table-linen and

other fashion accessories which will further

reinforce our vision.

“Going forward we want

to expand our horizon to

cover many more

customers across the 

globe. Towards this end, 

we have added more

products to our existing

product line such as 

table-linen and other 

fashion accessories 

which will further 

reinforce our vision.”
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Despite the tough market conditions Mileta a.s. keeps its position

amongst the top European shirting producers, delivering fashion

and quality to international brands. Last financial year was not easy

in Mileta's core markets. South Europe is slowing economically and

the strong markets in the North are not fully compensating it. We

continue our efforts to grow in non-European markets. In shirting

our American and Canadian customers together with China, Middle

East and Turkey contribute positively to our turnover. Our next

target is South America and Russia, where we recently opened a

new office for the Alok Group.

Our African business in local fashion fabrics got a boost due to a

new product line launched. We expect to double our turnover as

against the last two years. Similar growth is to be expected in

Middle East, where we are becoming an important player in Arabic

robes and headscarves.

Being a proud member of Alok Group, Mileta a.s. benefits mainly

from combined purchasing power and focused sourcing. We are

extending lines for Home and Hotel collection, produced by Alok

and distributed by Mileta in Central European markets.

“

member of Alok 

Group, Mileta a.s. 

benefits mainly from

combined purchasing

power and focused

sourcing.”

Being a proud

Mr. Petracek Otakar

Chief Executive Officer,

Mileta a.s., Czech Republic
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Mr Anupam Jhunjhunwala,

Chief Executive Officer,

Store Twenty One

Last year represented a very challenging trading climate for the whole

clothing Retail Industry across the UK. This was mainly due to Global

recession, Cotton price increase, Adverse weather conditions,

Increased competition within the value clothing market from other

retailers and internet sites, Massive discounting within the middle

market brands thus eroding price differentials

This turmoil in the Retail Industry affected the sales and profitability

of Store Twenty One as well.

Going forward, our plans are to be totally focused on being responsive

and reactive to the changing market and the economic conditions in 

the UK.

Our strategic focus is to be Value led as this is what the customer

wants and needs. We will be buying less weather dependent ranges

and focus heavily into core and essential products to ensure that we

have something to offer our customer, no matter what.

A huge amount of work has recently gone into bench marking our

prices against the supermarkets and other peers to ensure that we

remain competitive and can offer an edge to our price sensitive

customer. For this we are looking objectively at our marketing

strategy.

Additionally in terms of marketing our brand; we are focusing on our

windows as they are our key way to communicate to our customers.

We will be much more aggressive with their stance and make them

much more promotional and offer-led to continue driving this Value

message.

We have also brought in some external industry expertise to help

drive the business into profit. These new additions will help in

strengthening our management team and driving the company

forward.

We have established a strong niche in the UK market and we are in a

good position to significantly drive the company forward this year.

“We have established

a strong niche in the

UK market and we are

in a good position to

significantly drive the

company forward this

year.”
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the members of ALOK INDUSTRIES 
LIMITED
at Survey Nos.17/5/1 & 521/1, Village Rakholi/ Saily, Silvassa – 396230, Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

as an Ordinary Resolution:

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6.

“RESOLVED THAT

th

th

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

7.

NOTICE
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` st

8.

` st

9.

` st

    K.H. Gopal

17/5/1 & 521/1,
Rakholi / Saily,
Silvassa – 396 230,
Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

NOTES:

attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

hereto.

thereof will be made:

NOTICE
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8.

10. st

on the dates given in table below:

unpaid dividend
Due date for Transfer 

to IEPF
31.03.2005 29.09.2005 28.09.2012 28.10.2012
31.03.2006 29.09.2006 28.09.2013 28.10.2013
31.03.2007 25.09.2007 24.09.2014 24.10.2014
31.03.2008 29.09.2008 28.09.2015 28.10.2015
31.03.2009 25.09.2009 24.09.2016 24.10.2016
31.03.2010 17.09.2010 16.09.2017 16.10.2017
31.03.2011 29.09.2011 28.09.2018 28.10.2018

unpaid dividend
Due date for transfer to 

IEPF
31.03.2005 30.09.2005 29.09.2012 29.10.2012
31.03.2006 30.09.2006 29.09.2013 29.10.2013
31.03.2007 30.09.2007 29.09.2014 29.10.2014
31.03.2008 30.09.2008 29.09.2015 29.10.2015
31.03.2009 30.09.2009 29.09.2016 29.10.2016
31.03.2010 30.09.2010 29.09.2017 29.10.2017
31.03.2011 29.09.2011 28.09.2018 28.10.2018

address.

NOTICE
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12. :

Dalal Street, Fort,

th

  K. H. Gopal
  

17/5/1 & 521/1,
Rakholi/ Saily,
Silvassa – 396230,
Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

NOTICE
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

th

01st `

` 1,50,000/
st

`

K. H. Gopal

17/5/1 & 521/1,
Rakholi/ Saily, Silvassa – 396230,
Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

NOTICE
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Dear Shareholders:

given below in Table 1.

`

PARTICULARS Stand alone  Consolidated
2011-12 2010-11 2011-12 2010-11
8,900.86 6,388.43 9,784.72 6,614.90

65.60 41.09 95.51 67.07

6,341.71 4,549.82 7,408.31 4,827.74
2,624.75 1,879.70 2,471.92 1,854.23

Interest 1,149.55 736.27 1,234.70 782.15
713.43 518.79 749.14 530.97

121.27 41.45 121.27 39.87

— Deferred

- - 0.08
- - -

Notes:

`
`

`

Dividend

` ` ` 0.25

` ` 4.02
` `

Capital

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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`
th

`
`

Reserves

`
` `

`

`
`

Loans

`

`
`

Capital Expenditure

`

`

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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%Holding

th February 2011 

Business and Operations

by

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Fixed Deposits

insured.

29th

rd

th

basis.

Auditors and Auditors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Cost Auditor

` 18.90 and at `

during the year.

Date:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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ANNEXURE I

Grant 1 Grant 2 Total
1,280,000 9,511,500 10,791,500

` 18.90 ` 21.42
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil

18,000 185,550 203,550

year
Nil Nil Nil

1,262,000 9,325,950 10,587,950

1 Nil Nil
Designation

10,000 64,500 74,500
10,000 57,000 67,000
10,000 39,100 49,100

Rohit Seru 10,000 36,300 46,300
Nil 12,100 12,100
Nil 34,150 34,150

10,000 40,000 50,000
Romi Agarwal 10,000 Nil 10,000

2 Nil Nil
3

the year
Nil Nil

4.55

2 ` 6.30 ` 3.78
3

higher by ` 4,18,32,341/

fair value method for 

4
lower by ` 4,18,32,341/-

been lower by ` 0.05,

fair value method of 

` 18.90 ` 21.42
2 ` 11.10 ` 9.75

weighted average
1 Risk free interest rate
2 Average life taken as 

1 years from date of 
Vesting

3
4

working
5 ` 25.20 ` 25.20

ANNEXURE  TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
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ANNEXURE II

energy.

use.
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ANNEXURE  TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

FORM “A”
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy.

2011-12 2010-11

Units:  445,002,536.00
`  143.47

`  3.22
Own Generation through Diesel Generator Set
Units:  163,060,781.40

`  92.94
`  5.70

Own Generation through Co-generation
Units  1,779,900.00

`  6.43
`  3.62

Units  45,049,016.00
`  20.86

`  4.63

`  46.90

`  70.42

`  5.79

`  2.51
 2.80

2011-12 2010-11
 123,335,121.28

 1.06  1.00
 9,747,096.99

 0.48
 325,947,157.97

 0.41
 136,745,381.08

 0.20
 7,712,014.35

 0.93
 5,724,537

 0.46
 8,631,748.04

 0.26  0.22
 160,505,055.64

 0.42
 55,150,739.02

 4.06
 9,994,518.00

 0.05
 198,757,761.19

 0.12  0.10
 15,814,130.80

 1.06
 –
 –
 –
 –

 2,366,097.49
 0.97

 3,851,882.43
2.18

 12,417,172.13
 1.01  0.93
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FORM “B”
 2011-12  2010-2011

 2011-12  2010-2011

2,767.98 2,032.34

0.18 0.06

Total

15.01 9.96

48.28 33.26

17.03 1.74

10.00 7.16

12.98 8.84

3.49 10.25

4.66 2.96

1.28 0.11

4.31 4.68

Total

ANNEXURE  TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
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inventory investment strengthened. However, the overall 

Chart A: Output Growth
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Chart B: Global Trade (% growth)
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Chart C: Global Trade (% growth)
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India

growth, the year witnessed an all-time high food-

investments into India.

the growth momentum.

with moderation in demand as also lower non-oil 

Chart D: Quarterly Real GDP growth (%)
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Chart E: Rupee versus USD and EURO
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1,018 bn by 2020.

Yarn Apparel Retail

India India India India US
US US Thailand

Taiwan Indonesia Vietnam
Turkey Turkey India

Others Others Others Others Others

Yarn Apparel Retail
Value

53 million tonnes 68 million tonnes
meters

145 billion -

100 102US$ billion

Chart G: Global Fibre Demand (in million tones)
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2010(E) 2012(P) 2015(P)
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121

US$
billion

230 241 261 293

Chart H: Global Yarn Demand (in million tones)
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2020(P)
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Chart I: Global Fabric Demand (in billion sq mtrs)
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2020(P)
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Chart J: Global Garment Demand (in billion pieces)
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Chart F: Global Textile & Apparel Trade (In US$ Billion)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 
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Chart N:
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Chart M: Average Prices of Raw Materials (in US Cents / Kg)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 

trade. However as a result of natural transition towards a 

China will remain the

biggest exporter but

with rising costs and

rising domestic

demand, it may cede

some export

opportunity

China will add US$

315 Billion to its

domestic apparel

demand by 2020

China’s Constraints 50

Chart S: China Textile & Apparel Industry (in US$ billion)
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Chart Q:China Average Wage Level (in US$)

Chart R: Minimum monthly Wage (in US$)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 

Apparel
US$ 40 bn

INR 190,300 Cr

Indian Textile and Apparel Market
US$ 89 bn

INR 418,000 Cr

Domestic Market
US$ 58 bn

INR 273,000 Cr

Exports
US$ 31 bn

INR 145,000 Cr

Home Textiles
US$ 4 bn

INR 18,400 Cr

Technical Textiles
US$ 14 bn

INR 64,650 Cr

Textiles
US$ 18 bn

INR 83,000 Cr

Apparel
US$ 13 bn

INR 62,000 Cr

urban India.

will derive momentum from fresh investments in retail.

Chart T: Indian Textile and Appparel Industry
Size and Projection

2011(E) 2015(P) 2020(P)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 

Opportunities Threats

retailers in India

Chart X: Country-wise Share of India’s export of textiles and apparels
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Chart V : Exports Growth of Various Textiles  and
Apparel Products (in US$ billion)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 

Opportunities Threats

and limitations

Chart Z: 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 

Country
Apparel Exports

Country
Apparel Exports
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - 

investment of `

`
`
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of India.

real estate business.

`

` `

`
`

`

2011-12 2010-11 % Change

Net Total Sales 8,900.86 6,388.43 4,311.17 2,976.92
Export Sales 3,029.55 2,217.43 1,558.99 1,054.51
Operating EBIDTA 2,624.75 1,879.70 1,272.48 822.61

713.43 518.79 362.61 233.5
Interest 1,149.55 736.27 535.08 304.12

761.77 624.64 374.79 284.99
PAT 380.53 404.36 247.34 188.37

1,334.19 1,083.98 711.89 513.98

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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year.

`

2011-12 2010-11 % Change
% to Sales % to Sales

Net Sales 8,900.86 6,388.43
65.60 41.09

TOTAL INCOME
4,393.13 3,344.12

267.28 199.76
1,681.30 1,005.94

OPERATING EBIDTA
713.43 518.79

OPERATING EBIT
1,149.55 736.27

OPERATING PBT
121.27 41.45

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less: Provision for Taxes

157.64 78.15
102.33 100.68

PAT

Net Sales ` `
`

2011-12 against ` ` `

` `

Material Cost was ` `

People Costs ` `

Other Expenses ` `

` ` 34.19

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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`
11 to `

` `

` `

Interest ` `

` `

` `
was ` 640.50

was ` `
the year 2011 – 12 was `  to `

Chart AB: 5 Yr Trends - Sales & Operating
EBIDTA
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Chart AC: 5 Yr Trends - PBT & PAT
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2011-12 2010-11

Coverage Ratios

2.28 2.55

2.31 2.58

Debtors Turnover – Days 88 99

Inventory Turnover – Days 139 114

Operating EBIDTA Margin 

Operating PBT Margin 

EBIDTA/Interest
was at 2.28 in 2011-12

 stood at 2.31 in 2011-12.

Current ratio 

Inventory turnover 

Cash Flows

`

PARTICULARS 2011-12 2010-11
1,126.08

353.96

Cash And Cash Equivalents
673.4

-
108.29

108.29
978.32

53.24

`

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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`
assets.

`
`

Ratings

“CARE A” 

“CARE A1” 

Textiles Business: Operations Review

Sales:

` `

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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`

PARTICULARS Change
%Export Total % To 

Total
Sales

Export Total % To 
Total
Sales

128.32 193.95 416.4 136.5
APPAREL FABRIC

3,295.41 568.04 2,458.85 272.77
153.43 114.76 116.77 124.79

30.02 1,220.39 54.08 946.03 1,000.11
21.7 195.6 11.07 162.99

2,242.41 736.81 1,113.83 574.35
TOTAL 100.00% 100.00%

Chart AD Division wise sales

2011-12  2010-11

Apparel
Fabrics,

46%

Polyester
yarn,  34%

Garments,
2%

Raw cotton
and

yarn, 4%Home
Textiles,

14%

Apparel
Fabrics,
46.54%

Polyester
yarn,  26.43%

Garments,
2.72%

Raw cotton
and

yarn, 8.65%Home
Textiles,
15.66%

`
`

Export Sales

` `

Chart AE Region wise sales

2011-12 2010-11

USA, 36%

Asia, 29%

South
America,

18%

Europe, 14%
Canada & 
Mexico, 2%

Africa, 1%

South
America,

18%

Europe, 17%

Canada & 
Mexico, 2%

Africa, 1%

USA, 39%

Asia, 23%
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Cotton and Cotton Yarn

Overview of Cotton Spinning Division

in 2011-12

`
`

`

ChangeExport Total % To Total 
Sales

 Export Total % To Total 
Sales

22.61 98.71 335.03 97.60

105.71 95.24 81.37 38.90
Total

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Target

Highlights
Industry `

level

Current

Future plans

`

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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`

Change
Export Total % To 

Total
Sales

Export Total % To 
Total
Sales

3,295.41 568.04 2,458.85 272.77
153.43 114.76 116.77 124.79

Total

`

traders.

`
and their industry uses are given below:

User Industry

Flame Retardant

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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User Industry

High Visibility

Industrial

Highlights

`
`

Future plans

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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.

terry towels

`

and give better margins

`

Change
Export Total % To Total 

Sales
Export Total % To Total 

Sales
 15.16  1,075.79  1,090.95  7.70  881.80  889.50

Terry Towel  14.86  144.60  159.46  46.38  64.23  110.61

Total 1,000.11
`

`

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Target

Highlights

Industry

Current
Terry towels – 13,400 tons

Future plans
manner

`

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Change
Export Total % To Total Sales Export Total % To Total Sales

21.70 195.60 11.07 162.99
Total

` `

Highlights

segments

from about USD 36 bn in 2010 to about USD 100 bn by 2020

Future plans

Polyester Yarn

Overview of Polyester Division

division, with sales of `

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Change
Export Total % To Total 

Sales
Export Total % To Total 

Sales
2,242.41 736.81 1,113.83 574.35

Total

`

and Asia.

Target
segment

Highlights

Industry

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Divisions Units Current
under Expansions

COTTON SPINNING Tons  80,000  3,600  83,600
APPAREL FABRIC

mn mtrs  130  –  130
mn mtrs  186  –  186

Tons  18,200  6,800  25,000
HOME TEXTILES

mn mtrs  92  –  92
mn mtrs  105  –  105

Tons 13,400  –  13,400
GARMENTS  22 -  22

Tons 5,00,000 - 5,00,000
Tons 3,00,000 1,66,000
Tons  1,30,000  40,000  1,70,000
Tons  70,000  –  70,000
Tons - 24,000 24,000
Tons  – 70,000  70,000

`

EQUITY SHARE
APPLICATION 2012 2011

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

- - - 0.22
0.05 - 0.05 0.05
0.50 - 0.50 0.50
0.00 - 0.00 0.00

0.04 - 0.04 0.04
0.00 - 0.00 0.00

- - - 0.00

0.05 - 0.05 0.05

36.05 - 36.05 36.05

1.00 9.00 10.00 10.00

17.25 - 17.25 17.25

75.13 - 75.13 71.50

1.31 - 1.31 -

0.00 - 0.00 -

35.33 - 35.33 -

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Name of The Companies EQUITY SHARE 
APPLICATION

31 MAR 
2012

31 MAR 
2011

Grabal Alok Impex Limited - - - 3.99
SUB TOTAL (A) 166.71 9.00 175.71 139.65
Other Non Current Investments at cost
In Equity Shares 0.08 0.28
SUB TOTAL (B) 0.08 0.28
TOTAL (A+B) 175.79 139.93
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
In Bonds and Debentures 2.00 2.00
In Mutual Funds 1.94 25.25

TOTAL (C) 3.94 27.25

TOTAL (A+B+C) 179.73 167.18

Details of some of the major subsidiaries of Alok are given below:

Subsidiaries – Textiles
In the textiles space, the two primary subsidiaries or associate companies are Mileta and Alok Apparels Private Ltd.

Mileta
Through its wholly own subsidiary Alok Industries International limited, Alok has a 100% stake in Mileta, a Czech 
based manufacturing company . Mileta’s facilities are located in Horice (Weaving and Administration) and Cerny 
Dul (processing) in the Czech Republic.

Mileta has provided huge benefits to Alok from its technology skills in yarn-dyed fabrics and hemming that 
has resulted in higher per unit realisations and new product lines. The Mileta range of products includes 
handkerchiefs, high quality shirting, batistes and voiles, complete line of functional table linen and bed linen. 
Their brands including ‘Mileta’, ‘Erba’, ‘Cottonova’, ‘Wall Street’ and ‘lord Nelson’ are being introduced in the 
Indian domestic market. Alok also leverages Mileta’s extensive marketing network in Europe, Russia and Africa 
to promote its existing products.
While there were signs of a continued good performance during the first half of 2011, the poor market conditions 
in Europe affected the Company’s business in the second half. During 2011-12, the company achieved a sales 
of CZK 489.58 mn as against CZK of 532.88 mn in 2010-11, which has shown a decrease of about 8%. Although, 
as the Euro appreciated against the Rupee, in Rupee terms sales were stagnant. And due to the drop in sales 
the Company generated operating loss of CZK 29.5 mn as against profit of CZK 16.5 mn.
Alok Apparels Private limited
Alok’s 100% subsidiary, Alok Apparels Pvt. Ltd., manufactures woven and knit fashion garments at Silvassa. 
In 2011-12, the unit achieved sales of ` 15.20 crore. This business is expected to grow both through own 
manufacturing as well as outsourcing.
Subsidiaries – Retail
In order to further reach out to the end customers, Alok entered the retail space. In India, this endeavour is 
through the ‘H&A’ stores, while in UK the Company has chain of stores under the store brand ‘Store Twenty 
One’.

MANAgEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - BUSINESS OVERVIEw
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During 2011-12, H&A established

`

Store Twenty One: UK Retail

debt. Table 18 gives details of this investments 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Sr. No. ALOK’s
Equity Share 

Type

Area Proposed Use

Date
1 Surangi

Village,
Silvassa,

Division Industrial Use Ready

2 Ready

Ashford Royale Residential
2014

Division Ready

Residential
2014

6 Residential Ready
Ready

`
been funded by term debt of `

`

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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saleable area is around 1.1 mn

` 600
`

` `

In addition, Alok had entered into  for the 

Quality

system:

Assessment System

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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will go live with this.
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board.

mitigation measures. Some of these are highlighted below:

Cotton
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is about 3-4 months.
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Europe

India

` 10793

world.

`
of `

running.
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India

stakeholders:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



108 26 Annual Report  2011-12

Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

Alok Industries Limited (‘Alok Industries’ or ‘the Company’) is committed to creating long term value for all 
its stakeholders – shareholders, employees, customers, associates, partners and the wider community. This 
commitment is driven by the Company’s strong value system, which promotes the highest standards of integrity, 
professionalism and execution. The implementation of this vision is supported by commensurate processes and 

The essence of the Corporate Governance practices across Alok Industries is the balance struck between 
independent decision making and effective business controls. This is achieved through the continuous promotion 
of high degree of transparency through comprehensive disclosures and a robust review mechanism. The entire 
system is governed by very effective Board. This enables management and operational independence and 

of world class Corporate Governance practices is not only a statutory requirement but an important business 
enabler that helps to realize long term goals while optimizing stakeholder returns.

Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

Number of Board Meetings

February 14, 2012. The maximum gap between any two meetings was less than 4 months.

Directors’ attendance record and Directorship held

Name of the Directors Category Attendance Particulars No. of other Directorships and Committee 
membership / Chairmanships in other Indian 

public companies
Number of Board 

Meetings
Last
AGM

Other
Directorships

Committee

Held Attended Memberships Chairmanships
Promoter, 4 2 Yes 11 - -

Promoter, 4 4 Yes 12 - -

Promoter, 4 4 Yes 12 - -

4. Mr. Chandrakumar Bubna 4 3 Yes - - -

Independent 4 3 No - - -

6. Mr. K. R. Modi Independent 4 3 Yes 1 2 -

Limited) *

Independent 1 1 No - - -

8. Mrs. Thankom T. Mathew
(Nominee of Life 
Insurance Corporation of 
India.)

Independent 4 2 No - - -

Bank of India)

Independent 4 4 Yes 3 - -
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Name of the Directors Category Attendance Particulars No. of other Directorships and Committee 
membership / Chairmanships in other Indian 

public companies
Number of Board 

Meetings
Last
AGM

Other
Directorships

Committee

Held Attended Memberships Chairmanships
10. Mr. Timothy Ingram Independent 4 2 Yes - - -
11. Mr. M.V. Muthu

(Nominee of IFCI Ltd)**
Independent 4 4 No 1 2 -

12. Ms. Maya Chakravorty

Limited)***

Independent 3 2 No - - -

Note:

M.V. Muthu was appointed.

Directors with material pecuniary or business relationship with the Company

below the Board.

shares

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 28 of ‘Notes forming part of the Accounts’ annexed to 

Note:

The Company had sales transactions aggregating to ̀  2.14 crores (previous year ̀  2.38 crores) and a subsidiary 
of the Company had purchase transaction aggregating to ̀  0.83 crores (previous year ̀  2.17 crores) with entities 

made are not material enough to impinge upon the independence of independent director.

Information Supplied to the Board

The information supplied to the Board includes:
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sold by the company

view regarding another enterprise that can have negative implications on the Company

/ industrial relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of voluntary retirement scheme, 
etc.

adverse exchange rate movement, if material

as non payment of dividend, delay in share transfer, etc.

meeting. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the company, prepared by 
the company as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances.

Code of Conduct

conduct for all Board members and Senior Management of the company. The code of conduct is available on 
the website of the company – www.alokind.com. All Board members and senior management personnel have 

Committees of the Board

a) Audit Committee

-

2011 and February 14, 2012. Table 2 gives attendance record.

 Table 2: Attendance record of Company’s Audit Committee

Name of the Member Position Status Audit Committee 
Meetings Held

Meetings
Attended

Committee
1 1

Chairman of the 
Committee

3 3

Member 4 3
Mr.K R Modi Member 4 3

Member 4 4

Mr. M.V. Muthu Member 4 4
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the Committee.

the Chairman of the Committee.

Notes:

Secretary, is the secretary to the Committee.

The functions of the Audit Committee of the company include the following:

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors

approval, with particular reference to:

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

approval.

6. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 
control systems.

7. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

frequency of internal audit.

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board.

as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

11. Reviewing the company’s risk management policies.

12. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

year and commenting on any deviation from the Accounting Standards.

14. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference, to:
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a) Investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it requires from any 
employee.

relevant experience and expertise, when considered necessary.

  The Company has systems and procedures in place to ensure that the Audit Committee mandatorily 
reviews:

by management.

funds raised through public issues, rights issues, preferential issues for purposes other than those 
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice.

in particular, the investments made by the unlisted subsidiary companies (if any), in view of the 

  The Audit Committee is also apprised on information with regard to related party transactions by being 
presented:

business

b) Share Transfer and Investors’ Grievances Committee

non-receipt of Annual Report and non-receipt of declared dividends. The Committee comprises Mr. Ashok. 

The Committee met 8 times during the year. Table 3 gives the details of attendance

 Table 3: Attendance record of Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committee for 2011-12

Name of Members Status Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Chairman of the Committee Independent 8 8
Member 8 8
Member 8 8
Member 8 8

Terms of Appointment of Whole – time Directors

appointed for a period of 5 years with effect from the date of respective agreements executed between them 
and the Company and are governed by Board and shareholders’ resolutions, the salient features of their 
appointments are as under:
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Name of the 
Directors

Contract Period Notice period for 
termination of 
contract

Fixed Salary Commission

Mr. Ashok B. March 10, 2008 to Six calendar 
months notice, in 
writing to the Board 

Company

` 15,00,000/ – per 
month

Restricted to 1% of 

Company

March 10, 2008 to Six calendar 
months notice, in 
writing to the Board 

Company

` 15,00,000/ – per 
month

Restricted to 1% of 

Company

Mr. Surendra B. March 10, 2008 to Six calendar 
months notice, in 
writing to the Board 

Company

` 15,00,000/ – per 
month

Restricted to 1% of 

Company

Mr. Chandrakumar 
Bubna 30, 2014

Six calendar 
months notice, in 
writing to the Board 

Company

` 15,00,000/ – per 
month

Restricted to 1% of 

Company

c) Remuneration Committee

-

their performance based on predetermined evaluation parameters and the Company’s policy of rewarding 

member at the Committee meeting held during the year.

 Table 3A: Attendance record of Remuneration Committee for 2011-12

Name of Members Status Category No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Independent 1 1
Mr. Timothy Ingram* Chairman of the Committee Independent - -
Mr. Rakesh Kapoor** Member Independent 1 1

Member Independent 1 1
Mr. M.V. Muthu ** Member Independent - -

Member Promoter, 1 1

Mr. M.V. Muthu was appointed

`
options at an exercise price of ` 21.42. 18,000 options from Grant 1 and 185,550 options from Grant 2 were 

period of 2 years, 50% at end of one year from date of grant and balance at the end of 2nd year from the 
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` 10/ 

Remuneration paid to Directors

-

are governed by Board and shareholders’ resolutions. The remuneration structure comprises Salary, Com-

are also detailed in Table 4.

Table 4: Details of remuneration paid to Directors for 2011-12

Name of the Director Sitting
Fees 2

Salary and 
Perquisites

Provident & 
Superannuation

Funds

Commission 3 Total

In `
- 18,000,000 - 12,500,000 30,500,000
- 18,000,000 - 12,500,000 30,500,000
- 18,000,000 - 12,500,000 30,500,000

Mr. Chandrakumar Bubna - 18,000,000 - 12,500,000 30,500,000
60,000 - - - 60,000

Mr. K. R. Modi 60,000 - - - 60,000

 4
20,000 - - - 20,000

Mrs. Thankom T. Mathew
(Nominee of Life Insurance 
Corporation of India) 4

40,000 - - - 40,000

India) 4

80,000 - - - 80,000

Mr. Timothy Ingram 40,000 40,000
Mr. M.V.Muthu (Nominee of IFCI 
Limited) 4

80,000 - - - 80,000

Ms. Maya Chakravorty (Nominee of 
 4

40,000 - - - 40,000

Notes:

2. Sitting fees to non-executive directors include payment for Board-level committee meetings.

considered as performance linked incentive.

ncial institution they represent.

d) Executive Committee

e) Rights Issue Committee

the terms and all other consequential conditions pertaining to the Rights Issue. The committee comprises 
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M
meetings held during the year.

Subsidiary Companies

whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated 
turnover or net worth respectively, of the listed holding company and its subsidiaries in the immediately 
preceding accounting year.

Shares and convertible instruments held by the non-executive Directors

holds any equity shares in Alok Industries Limited.

As on March 31, 2012, none of the non-executive directors held any convertible instruments of the Company.

Management

Management Discussion and Analysis

Disclosures by Management to the Board

they vote on such matters.

generally accepted accounting principles in India, the applicable Accounting Standards and the provisions 

Details of non-compliance by the company

to capital market during the last three years.

Code for prevention of insider-trading practices

which advises them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of 

dividend and material events, as per the Code.

Shareholders

Reappointment/Appointment of Directors

of retiring directors out of which one third shall retire at every annual general meeting. Accordingly, Mr 

General Meeting of the Company.
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Details of directors seeking re-appointment.

Chairman include envisioning our Company's strategic initiatives and overseeing the home textiles 
business.

2. Alspun Infrastructure Limited
3. Alok Infrastructure Limited
4. Alok Apparels Private Limited
5. Alok Realtors Private Limited

Limited
11. Alok Retail ( India) Limited
12. Alok Industries International Ltd.
13. Grabal Alok International Ltd.
14. Grabal Alok UK Limited
15. Alok Singapore Pte. Ltd.

NIL
Number of shares held in the Company 20,270,684

began his career as a management trainee and thereafter he started the business of trading in textiles 

envisioning our Company's growth strategy, responsibility for the apparel fabric and garment divisions 

2. Alspun Infrastructure Limited
3. Alok Infrastructure Limited
4. Alok Apparels Private Limited
5. Alok Realtors Private Limited

Limited
11. Alok Retail ( India) Limited

13. Alok Industries International Ltd.
14. Grabal Alok International Ltd.
15. Grabal Alok UK Limited
16. Alok Singapore Pte. Ltd.

NIL
Number of shares held in the Company 20,507,053
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Means of Communication with Shareholders

Alok Industries Ltd. puts forth key information about the Company and its performance, including quarterly 

Company, however, furnishes the quarterly results on receipt of a request from any shareholder.

Investor Grievance and Shareholder Redressal

The Company has appointed a Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, 

shareholders’ grievances.

General Body Meetings

The date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below in Table 5.

Table 5: Details of last 3 Annual General Meetings

Financial
year

Date Time Venue Resolutions passed

September 11.00 A.M. Textiles Committee 
Auditorium

P Balu Road, Prabhadevi 
Chowk Prabhadevi, 
Mumbai 400025

1. Re-appointment of a 

Company.

September
17, 2010

12.00 noon
Rakholi / Saily, Silvassa – 

1. Authorising the Board to 
borrow money in excess 
of paid-up capital and free 
reserves of the Company.

2. Authorising the Board of 

mortgage on the assets of 
the Company.

3. Increase of remuneration 

2010-11 September 12.00 noon
Rakholi / Saily, Silvassa – 

1. Authorising the Board to 
borrow money in excess 
of paid-up capital and free 
reserves of the Company.

2. Authorising the Board of 

mortgage on the assets of 
the Company.

The resolutions mentioned in table 5 were taken up in the last three AGMs, and were passed with requisite 

approving amalgamation of M/s. Grabal Alok Impex Limited with your Company.

No special resolutions passed at the above Annual General Meetings were required to be put through postal 
ballot. No resolution is proposed to be passed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting through postal 
ballot.
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POSTAL BALLOTS

Companies (Passing of the Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001 for obtaining the consent of the 
Shareholders of the Company during the year 2011-2012.

Compliance

Mandatory requirements

Non Mandatory Compliance

The details of compliance of the non-mandatory requirements are listed below.

NON EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN’S OFFICE:
hence, this provision is not applicable.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
are given in the section ‘Committees of the Board’.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS – FURNISHING OF QUARTERLY RESULTS:
rights in this regard are given in the section ‘Communication to Shareholders’.

AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS:

WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY: Alok encourages an open door policy, where employees have access to 

non-adherence to the Code or any observed unethical behaviour is to be brought to the attention of the 
immediate reporting authority; the immediate reporting authority has to bring it to the notice of the Code 

Committee

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS – 

in global economy and legislation. They attend various workshops and seminars to keep themselves abreast 
with the changing business environment.

MECHANISM FOR EVALUATING NON-EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS – The Company has not yet 

AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
from the Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance, as mandated in 
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Additional Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting

August 14, 2012

Time: 12.00 noon

Venue: 17/5/1, 521/1, Rakholi / Saily, Silvassa - 396230, Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

Financial Calendar

Financial year: April 1 to March 31

For the year ended March 31, 2012, results were announced for:

First quarter : Provisional
Second quarter: Provisional
Third quarter: Reviewed February 14, 2012
Fourth quarter and annual: Audited May 18, 2012

For the year ending March 31, 2013, results will be announced by:

First quarter : Reviewed
Second quarter: Reviewed
Third quarter: Reviewed
Fourth quarter and annual: Audited

Book Closure

The books will be closed from Tuesday August 7, 2012 to Tuesday August 14, 2012 (both days inclusive) as 
annual closure for the Annual General Meeting.

Dividend Payment

Listing

Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code

521070
ISIN No.

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

Sr.
No.

Particulars No. of 
NCDs

Amount
(In Crore)

Stock Code (BSE) ISIN NO.

1 2000 – 11.50% Secured 

` 10,00,000/ – each 
aggregating to ` 200 crores 
issued and allotted on 

placement basis.

700 70.00
700 70.00
250 25.00

71 7.10
50 5.00
40 4.00
5 0.50
5 0.50
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Sr.
No.

Particulars No. of 
NCDs

Amount
(In Crore)

Stock Code (BSE) ISIN NO.

2 1000 – 10.75% Secured 
` 10,00,000/ – 

each aggregating to ` 100 
Crores issued and allotted on 

placement basis.

334 33.40
333 33.30

333 33.30

3. 2000 – 12.50% Secured 
` 10,00,000/ – 

each aggregating to ` 200
crores issued and allotted on 
March 04, 2011 on private 
placement basis.

370 37.00
300 30.00
370 37.00
300 30.00
360 36.00
300 30.00

4. 3000 – 12.00% Secured 

` 10,00,000/ – each 
aggregating to ` 300 crores 
issued and allotted on 
February 01, 2012 on private 
placement basis.

375 37.50
375 37.50
375 37.50
375 37.50
375 37.50
375 37.50
375 37.50
375 37.50
8000 800.00

Stock Market Data

in Table 2 and Chart A and B respectively.

Table 2: High, lows and volumes of company’s shares for 2011-12 at BSE and NSE

Month BSE (In ` per share) NSE (In ` Per share)
High Low Volume High Low Volume

Apr-11 28.00 22.00 10,04,63,708 21.80
May-11 27.80 23.75 5,13,10,448 27.80 23.75 20,61,22,818

28.50 22.85 5,12,81,533 28.50 22.80
26.30 24.10 28.70 24.05 7,13,63,385

Aug-11 25.70 15.60 25.70 15.60
Sep-11 16.40 20.55 16.40 16,02,63,475

21.50 17.50 21.30 16.00
Nov-11 21.30 16.05 2,25,12,027 21.30 15.70 11,00,44,021

20.50 17.25 21.05 17.25 12,08,36,570
20.55 17.50 2,81,32,043 20.55 17.50

Feb-12 23.85
Mar-12 18.55 3,31,24,781 18.00

Chart A: Alok Industries’s Share Performance versus BSE Sensex

SHARE PERFORMANCE VIS-À-VIS STOCK MARKET INDICES
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Chart B: Alok Industries’s Share Performance versus NSE NIFTY
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Distribution of Shareholding

Table 3 and 4 lists the distribution of the shareholding of the equity shares of the company by size and by 
ownership class as on March 31, 2012.

Table 3: Shareholding pattern

Shareholding Class No of shares held  % of total shares 
held

No of 
shareholders

% of total 
shareholders

Upto 500 3.52 141,458 71.80
501 to 1,000 27,833 14.13
1,001 to 2,000 2.64 13,678
2,001 to 3,000 1.45 4,558 2.31
3,001 to 4,000 8,250,684 1.00 2,270 1.15
4,001 to 5,000 2,041 1.04
5,001 to 10,000 21,533,271 2.60 2,821 1.43
10,001 and above 84.71 2,353
Total 826,269,357 100.00 197,012 100.00

Table 4: Shareholding Pattern by ownership as on March 31, 2012

CATEGORY AS ON MARCH 31, 2012
Total No. of 

Shares
Percentage (%)

A. Promoter’s Holding
Promoters
 Indian Promoters 262,616,518 31.78
Foreign Promoters 0 0.00
Persons acting in Concert 0 0.00

 TOTAL (A) 262,616,518 31.78
B. Non Promoter’s Holding

1. Institutional Investors
a. Mutual Funds and UTI 2,425,200
b. Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies/

Central Governments/State Governments
11.00

c. FIIs 125,288,651 15.17
TOTAL (B1) 218,608,656 26.46

62,503,204 7.57
24.15

0.76
7.55

14,281,867 1.73
7,450 0.00

TOTAL (B2) 345,044,183 41.76
TOTAL B (BI+B2) 563,652,839 68.22
GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 826,269,357 100.00
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Registrar and Transfer Agent

to whom all shareholders communications regarding change of address, transfer of shares, change of mandate 
etc. should be addressed. The address of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents is as under: –

Name and Address of

as the case may be
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound

Tel no.
Fax no.

Share Transfer System

The shares of the company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form. Shares received in physical form are 

in all respects.

De-materlisation of Shares

There are no legal proceedings against Alok on any share transfer matter. Table 5 gives details about the nature 
of complaints and their status as on March 31, 2012.

Table 5: Complaints Received and Addressed during 2011-12

Particulars Complaints

Non-
Receipt of 

Non-receipt of 
dividend/Interest/

Redemption of 
warrant

Non Receipt 
of Annual 

Report

Others Total

Received during the year 05 70 07 14
Attended during the year 05 70 07 14
Pending as on 31 March 2012 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants

as of March 31, 2012.

Details of Public Funding Obtained in the last three years

2009-10

` 10.00 each at a premium 
of Re. 1.00 per share to the existing shareholders of the Company on rights basis and also issued and allotted 
164,003,131 partly paid up equity shares (paid upto the extent of ` 6.00 per share i.e. Face Value ` 5.00 and 
Premium – Re.1.00) to the existing equity shareholders of the company on rights basis in the ratio of 83 rights 

` 10.00 each.

` 10.00 each at a premium 
of `

` 10.00 each.

2010-11

NIL

2011-12

` 10.00 each at a 
premium of `
against the conversion of warrants held by them. The said warrants were originally issued to Arum Investments 

Investments Private Limited
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2012, pursuant to the amalgamation of Grabal Alok Impex Limited with Alok Industries 

Limited whose name appeared in the register of members of Grabal Alok Impex Limited (in the ratio of 1:1), 

capital as on March 31, 2012 stands at ` ` 10/ 

Table 6 gives the details.

Table 6: Details of public funding obtained during the last three years and its implication on paid up 
Equity Share Capital

Financial Year Amt. Raised through Public Funding Effect on Paid up equity Share Capital
` 10.00 each at 

a premium of Re. 1.00 per share to the existing 
shareholders of the Company on Rights basis.

` 10.00 each at 
a premium of `

After the Rights issue of equity shares 

Issue, the total paid-up equity capital 

` 10.00 each

2010-2011 NIL
forfeited and total paid-up equity capital 
of the Company became 787,784,357 

` 10.00 each
2011-2012 ` 10.00 each, 

at a premium of `
Investments Private Limited

` 10.00 each, to 
the shareholders of Grabal Alok Impex Limited 
pursuant to amalgamation of Grabal Alok Impex 
Limited with the Company. (*)

into equity shares, the total paid-up 
capital of the Company increased from 

` 10.00
`

10.00 each
After the amalgamation Company’s 
equity share capital as on March 31, 
2012 stands at `
Shares of `
paid equity shares of ` 10/ – each.

February 3, 2012.

As on March 31, 2012, 73.31% of the promoters’ holding have been pledged with FIIs, MFs and other lenders 

of the Company).

Plant Locations

Spinning

Weaving

Knitting

Processing

Garments
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Made ups

POY/ Texturising

Hemming
Continuous
Polymerization
Plant
Terry Towel Unit
Packing Unit

Investor Correspondence Address

For shares held in physical form For shares held in dematerialised form
Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound
L.B.S. Marg

mbai@linkintime.co.in

National Securities Depository 
Limited

th Floor
Kamala Mills Compound
Senapati Bapat Marg
Lower Parel
Mumbai 400013

info@nsdl.co.in
www.nsdl.co.in

Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited

17th

Mumbai 400 023

investor@cdslindia.com
www.cdslindia.com

K.H. Gopal

Alok Industries Limited

Peninsula Towers ‘A’, Peninsula Corporate Park

G.K. Marg, Lower Parel

Mumbai 400013

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

The Notes to the Notice details the due dates on which unclaimed dividends lying in the unpaid dividend accounts 

Protection of Investors) Rules, 2001, a sum of ` 347,134.00, being the unclaimed dividend for the year 2003-04, 

SHAREHOLDER’S INFORMATION
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To,

 The Members

ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED

year ended 31st

was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 

statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of the information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 

respects with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

R D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh
Partner Partner

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

As Per Clause 49 Of The Listing Agreement Of The Stock Exchange
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To,

ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED

March 2012. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out 
by me and explanations furnished to me by the Company and as per the Auditors Report submitted by the 

1. The Company has kept and maintained all the registers as per the provisions of the Act and the rules made 

Accounts.

made there under.

proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

th September, 
2011 after giving due notice to the members of the company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly 
recorded in Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

5. The Company has paid/posted warrants for dividends to all the members within a period of 30 days from the 
date of declaration of dividend.

lodgement thereof for transfer/transmission or any other purpose in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act.

a. Allotment of 2,24,85,000 equity shares of ` 10 each pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation of Grabal 
Alok Impex Limited with the company.

b. Allotment of 1,60,00,000 equity shares on conversion of warrants of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 41 per 
share .

rd February, 2012 and became effective from 1st

March, 2012.

10. The Company has altered the clause V of the Memorandum of Association and clause III of Articles of 
Association due to the amalgamation of Grabal Alok Impex Limited with the Company with effect from 1st

March 2012.

12. The Company has appointed Cost Auditors under Section 233B of the Act.

Virendra Bhatt
 Practising Company Secretary

 ACS 1157/CP 124

Place: Mumbai

COMPANY SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE



INNOVATIVE TEXTILE SOLUTIONS

 127Innovative Textile Solutions

We, Dilip B. Jiwrajka, Managing Director and Sunil O. Khandelwal, Chief Financial Officer of Alok Industries 
Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that –

a. We have reviewed financial statements and cash flow statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 and 
that to the best of our knowledge and belief :

 (i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

 (ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting 
and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to 
rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee –

 (i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 (ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements; and

 (iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 
the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting.

e. We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the Audit Committee of the Company (in respect 
of matter involving alleged misconduct).

Place: Mumbai . Dilip B. Jiwrajka  Sunil O. Khandelwal
Date : May 18, 2012  Managing Director  Chief Financial Officer

DECLARATION 

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER CLAUSE 49 I (D) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT 
REGARDING ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with the Clause 49 sub-clause of the listing Agrement with the Stock Exchanges, I further confirm 
that all the directors and senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance to their 
respect Code of conduct, as applicable to them for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Place : Mumbai Dilip B. Jiwrajka
Date : May 18, 2012 Managing Director

CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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TO THE MEMBERS OF

ALOK INDUSTRIESLIMITED

ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
31st

on our audit.

Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

basis for our opinion.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report as follows:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

report are in agreement with the books of account;

Statement dealt with by this report are in compliance with the Accounting Standards referred to in 

(e) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said 

a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2012;

that date and;

that date.

st March, 2012 and taken 
stMarch, 2012 from being 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

R. D. Kamat
Partner
Membership No 36822

For Gandhi & Parekh
Chartered Accountants

Devang B. Parekh
Partner

Mumbai, May 18, 2012 Mumbai, May 18, 2012

AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Re: Alok Industries Limited

Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 

st March, 2012was conducted by the management during the year, which is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business and no material 

(ii) In respect of inventories:

during the year by the managementat reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of 

relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical 

information and explanations given to us:

Alok Impex Ltd was amalgamated with the Company vide scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the 
rd February, 2012 and effectivefrom 1stMarch, 2012. The appointed date for 

such amalgamation was 1st April, 2011 (Refer note no 36) and as such,these transactions have not been 
considered for reporting under thisclause.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
controlsystem commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business with regard to 

(v) In respect of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained in pursuance of section 301 of 

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301 that needed to be entered 
in the register have been so entered.

` 5 lakhs in respect of any party, the transactions have 
been made at prices which are prima facie reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices 
at the relevant time.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 

the public. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the 
Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or 
any other Tribunal.

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
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appointed by the Management have been commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of 
its business.

prima
facie,
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or 
complete. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any other product of the 
Company.

(ix) According to the information and explanation given to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 

authorities during the year, except for service tax dues aggregating to ` 1.74 crores including interest 
of ` 0.21 crores,which have been deposited subsequent to the year end.

stMarch, 2012 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

stMarch , 2012 on account of disputes, 
except as follows :

Name of the 
statute

Nature of dues Amount (` in 
crores)

Period to which 
the amount 
relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, Income tax 

dues)

AY 2006-07 to 
2011-12

Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals)

Tax
FY 2004–05

of Sales Tax

(x) The company neither has accumulated losses at the end of the year, nor incurred cash losses during the 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans and 
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and any other securities. 
Accordingly, clause 4 (xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a chit 

company.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not dealing 
in or trading in shares, securities, debentures or investments. Accordingly clause 4 (xiv) of the order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the explanation given to us, the terms and conditions of the guarantees 

notprima facie

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
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co-relating the funds raised to the end use of term loans, we have to state that, the company has, prima-
facie, applied the term loansfor the purposes for which they were obtained, other than amounts temporarily 
invested pending utilisation of the funds for the intended use.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 
of the Balance Sheet, we report that funds raised on short-term basis have not been used during the year 
for long – term investment.

(xix) Security / Charges have been created in respect of debentures issued as detailed in note no 4 to the 

(xx) The Company has not raised money by public issue during the year.

(xxi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

R. D. Kamat
Partner
Membership No 36822

For Gandhi & Parekh
Chartered Accountants

Devang B. Parekh
Partner

Mumbai, May 18, 2012 Mumbai, May 18, 2012

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
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In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director

Surendra B. Jiwrajka Jt. Managing Director

R. D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal

Partner Partner K. H. Gopal President (Corporate Affairs) & 
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai                                Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2012                    Date: 18 May 2012 Date: 18 May 2012

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS NOTES  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

I EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 2  826.28  787.79

Reserves and Surplus 3  2,829.22  2,309.80

 3,655.50  3,097.59

(2) Non-current Liabilities
Long-term Borrowings 4  7,013.06  6,051.40

Deferred Tax liabilities (net) 5  626.77  507.66

Long-term provisions 6  176.39  79.35

(3) Current Liabilities
Short-term Borrowings 7  4,126.42  2,846.19

Trade payables 8  506.42  562.92

Other current liabilities 9  2,058.20 1,050.49

Short-term provisions 10 75.60  71.87

TOTAL 18,238.36  14,267.47

II ASSETS

(1) Non-current Assets
Fixed assets

  Tangible assets 11  8,514.54  7,384.29

  Intangible assets 11 37.55  42.92

  Capital work-in-progress 11  914.16  906.55

Non-current Investments 12  175.79  139.93

Long-term Loans & Advances 13 257.04  324.92

(2) Current Assets
Current Investments 14  3.94  27.25

Inventories 15  3,379.91  2,002.62

Trade receivables 16  2,152.15  1,740.19

Cash & Bank Balance 17 1,294.84  1,139.85

Short-term Loans & Advances 18  1,395.04  425.03

Other current assets 19  113.40  133.92

TOTAL  18,238.36  14,267.47
III

accompanying notes forming part of the 
1 to 40

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2012
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In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director

Surendra B. Jiwrajka Jt. Managing Director

R. D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal

Partner Partner K. H. Gopal President (Corporate Affairs) & 
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai                                Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2012                    Date: 18 May 2012 Date: 18 May 2012

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS NOTES  Year Ended 
31-Mar-12

 Year Ended 
31-Mar-11

I. REVENUE

Revenue from Operations (gross) 20  9,134.81  6,500.91

Less : Excise Duty  233.95  112.48

Revenue from Operations (net)  8,900.86  6,388.43

II. Other Income 21  65.60  41.09

III. Total Revenue  8,966.46  6,429.52

IV EXPENSES

Cost of Materials consumed  5,748.34  3,224.04

Purchase of Traded Goods  161.45  342.62

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
22  (1,516.66)  (222.55)

23  267.28  199.76

Finance costs 24  1,149.55  736.27

Depreciation and amortisation expense  713.43  518.79

Other expenses 25  1,681.30  1,005.95

Total Expenses  8,204.69  5,804.88

V  761.77  624.64

VI Exceptional Items (refer note no. 33 (i))  (121.27) ( 41.45)

VII  640.50  583.19

VIII Tax expenses

– Current tax  (157.64)  (78.15)

Include MAT adjustment of ` 44.12 Crore (`
26.53 Crore pertaining to the previous year 
(preavious year ` 42.42 crores))

– Deferred tax  (102.33)  (100.68)

Total Tax expenses  (259.97)  (178.83)

IX  380.53  404.36

X EARNINGS PER SHARE (in `) 30

Basic  4.69  5.13

Diluted  4.69  5.13

1 to 40

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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(` Crore)
 PARTICULARS  Year Ended 

31-Mar-12
 Year Ended 

31-Mar-11
A] Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax  640.50  583.19
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation  713.43  518.79
Exchange rate difference  124.47  41.45
Dividend Income  (2.57)  (2.37)
Employee Stock option outstanding  2.27  –
Interest Paid (net)  1,032.10 651.30
(Profit) / Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  (9.65)  1.74
Profit on sale of Current Investments (net)  (0.12)  (1.16)
Operating Profit before working capital changes  2,500.43  1,792.94
Adjustments for
(Increase) in Inventories  (1,331.29)  (528.21)
(Increase) in Trade Receivable  (356.12)  (637.81)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances  (932.09)  148.61
Increase in Current Liabiltites and Provisions  136.14  468.38
Cash generated from operations 17.07  1,243.91
Income taxes paid  (132.46)  (117.83)
Net cash (used)/generated from operating activities  (115.39)  1,126.08

B] Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets  (1,499.37)  (1,835.36)
Sale of fixed assets  17.86  1.74
Purchase of Investments  (116.74)  (131.15)
Sale of Investments 162.48  194.82
Fixed Deposits & earmarked balances matured/(placed) (refer note 2 below) 285.66  (314.67)
Dividends received  2.57  2.37
Interest received  33.23  34.65
Inter Corporate deposits refunded (Net)  1.26  2.45
Net cash (used) in Investing Activities  (1,113.05)  (2,045.15)

C] Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Capital (including premium) (Net)  61.20  –
Proceeds from Term borrowings  2,353.70  3,119.39
Repayment of Term Borrowings  (926.47)  (2,047.10)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net) 1,123.94  53.49
Dividend Paid (Including Tax thereon)  (22.89)  (22.96)
Interest Paid (Net)  (1,073.57)  (748.86)
Net cash generated from Financing Activities 1,515.91  353.96
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 287.47  (565.11)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  108.29  673.40
Cash and Cash equivalents persuant to amalgmation (refer note no. 36)  147.00  –
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 542.76  108.29

CASh FLOw STATEMENT FOR ThE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCh 2012
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NOTES TO CASh FLOw STATEMENT

1 Purchase of fixed assets are stated inclusive of movements of Capital Work in Progress between the 
commencement and end of the year and is considered as part of investing activity.

2  Cash and Cash equivalents includes :
(` Crore)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Cash and Bank Balances 1,294.84  1,139.85
Less : Earmarked Balalces/Deposit with banks * 715.12 978.32
Less : Deposit with maturity period of more than 3 months ** 36.96  53.24
Total Cash and Cash equivalents 542.76 108.29

 * Earmarked balances / deposits with bank includes balances / deposits held as margin money or security 
against borrowings, guarantees and other commitments, which being, restricted for its use, have been 
excluded from cash and cash equivalent and grouped under the investment activity.

 ** Fixed Deposits with maturity period of more than three months have been excluded from cash and cash 
equivalent and grouped under the investment activity.

3 The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 
'AS-3' Cash Flow Statements".

4 Pursuant to scheme of amalgamation between Alok Industries Ltd and Grabal Alok Impex Ltd with appointed 
date of 1 April 2011, the assets and liabilities of Grabal Alok Impex Limited were taken over as per the 
Pooling of Interest method as on 1 April 2011.

 This arrangement of amalgamation is a non-cash transaction and considered as such, in the above cash 
flow statement. (Refer note no 36 of financial statement)    

5 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Deloitte haskins & Sells  For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director

Surendra B. Jiwrajka Jt. Managing Director
R. D. Kamat  Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal Chief Financial Officer
Partner  Partner K. h. Gopal President (Corporate Affairs) & 

Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai                                Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: 18 May, 2012                    Date: 18 May, 2012 Date: 18 May, 2012

CASh FLOw STATEMENT FOR ThE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCh 2012
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NOTE 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

generally accepted accounting principles in India, the applicable Accounting Standards and the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956.

b) Use of Estimates

require estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 

reporting period. Differences between, the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the results are known / materialise.

c) Revenue Recognition

i) Revenue on sale of products is recognised when the products are dispatched to customers, all 

reasonably expected. Sales are stated net of trade discount, returns and sales tax collected.

ii) Revenue in respect of insurance/other claims, interest etc. is recognised only when it is reasonably 
certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

d) Fixed Assets

i) Own Assets:

  Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including directly attributable cost. They 
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

ii) Assets taken on lease:

  Operating Lease:

  Assets taken on lease under which, all the risk and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by 

expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

iii) Assets given on lease

  Lease rental are recognised as income over the lease term.

e) Investments

decline, other than temporary, in the value of investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair 
value whichever is lower.

f) Depreciation / Amortisation

i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner 

on technical assessment and depreciation is provided accordingly Depreciation on additions to assets 
or on sale / disposal of assets is calculated from the beginning of the month of such addition or up to 
the month of such sale / scrapped, as the case may be. Assets costing less than ` 5,000/ – are fully 
depreciated in the year of purchase.

ii) Cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.

iii) Trademarks / Brands are amortised over a period of ten years from the date of capitalization

i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012



INNOVATIVE TEXTILE SOLUTIONS

 137Innovative Textile Solutions

transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised 

ii) Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated using the exchange rate prevailing at 

account. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost.

However, pursuant to the amended Accounting Standard 11 on The Effects of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates, exchange differences arising on restatement of long term monetary items are dealt with 
in the following manner:

Exchange differences relating to long-term monetary items, arising during the year, in so far as those 
relate to the acquisition of a depreciable capital asset are added to / deducted from the cost of the asset 
and depreciated over the balance life of the asset.

In other cases such differences are accumulated in a “Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation 

monetary item, however that the period of amortization does not extend beyond 31 March, 2020.

h)  Inventories

Items of Inventories are valued on the basis given below:

i) Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Stores and Spares and Trading goods: at cost determined on First 
– In – First – Out (FIFO) basis or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

ii) Process stock and Finished Goods: At cost or net realisable values whichever is lower. Cost comprises 
of cost of purchase (as above), cost of conversion (absorption cost) and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventory to their present location and condition.

i)

ii)

using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial valuation under projected unit credit method are 

in the period of occurrence of such gains and losses. Past service cost is recognised immediately to 

service cost and as reduced by fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is 
limited to past service cost; the present value is available refunds and reduction in future contribution 
to the scheme.

j) Accounting of CENVAT credit

Cenvat credit available is accounted by recording material purchases net of excise duty. Cenvat credit 

k) Government Grants

Grants, in the nature of interest subsidy under the Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS), are 
accounted for when it is reasonably certain that ultimate collection will be made. Government grants not 

receipt.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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l) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as 
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 
to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

m) Income taxes

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are accounted for 
in accordance with Accounting Standard 22 (AS-22) on “Accounting for taxes on Income”. Current tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be paid / recovered from the tax authority using the applicable tax 
rates. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for future tax consequence attributable to timing difference 
between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversing in one or more subsequent 
periods and are measured at relevant enacted/ substantively enacted tax rates and in the case of deferred 
tax asset on consideration of prudence, are recognised and carried forward to the extent of reasonable / 
virtual certainty as case may be. At each balance sheet date, the Company reassesses unrealised deferred 
tax assets to the extent they become reasonably certain or virtually certain of realisation, as the case may 
be. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
“Accounting for credit available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961” issued 
by ICAI

n) Intangible Assets

assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

o) Impairment of Fixed Assets

At the end of each year, the company determines whether a provision should be made for impairment loss 

the asset exceeds its recoverable value. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is 
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

p) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent Assets are neither 

q) Accounting for Derivatives

i) The company uses derivative instruments like foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency 
options and Interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates, interest 
rates and currency risks. The objective of these derivative instruments is to reduce the risk or cost to 
the company and is not intended for trading or speculation purposes.

ii) Interest Rate Swaps, Foreign Currency Options and Currency Swaps, entered into by the Company 
for hedging the risks of foreign currency exposure (including interest rate risk) are accounted based on 
the principles of prudence as enunciated in Accounting Standard 1 (AS-1) “Disclosure of Accounting 
Policies”. Thus, mark to market loses (net) are accounted for by the company, net gains are ignored.

iii) In respect of foreign currency forward contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency exposure in 
respect of recognized monetary items, the premium or discount on such contracts is amortized over the 
life of the contract. The exchange difference measured by the change in exchange rate between the 
inception dates of the contract / last reporting date as the case may be and the balance sheet date is 

recognised as income / expense of the period.
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iv) The Company designates foreign currency forward contracts taken with respect to highly probable 

the recognition and measurement principles set out in the Accounting Standard (AS) 30 “Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. Accordingly, the Company records the gain or loss on 

account. (Refer Note No. 33(ii)).

2. SHARE CAPITAL

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

(a) Authorised Shares
100,00,00,000 (previous year 90,00,00,000) Equity 
shares of `10/ – each

 1,000.00  900.00

 1,000.00  900.00

82,62,69,357 (previous year 78,77,84,357) Equity 
shares of `10/ – each fully paid up

 826.27  787.78

Add : Forfeited Shares (13,921 shares of ` 10/ – each 
` 5 paid up)

 0.01  0.01

 826.28  787.79
 TOTAL  826.28  787.79

NOTES :      

a) During the year 3,84,85,000 (previous year Nil) equity shares are issued as under:

i] 1,60,00,000 Equity shares of `10/ – each at a permium of ` 41/ – each alloted on conversion of 
warrants issued by Grabal Alok Impex Limited, the amalgmating company. Such warrants were 
sold by the original warrant holder to Jiwarajka Investment Private Limited, a promoter group 
company, which excercised such warrants.

ii] 2,24,85,000 Equity shares alloted to the Shareholders of Grabal Alok Impex Limited pursuant to 
the Scheme of Amalgamation (Refer Note No 36) for consideration other than cash.

b) Of the remaining shares :

i] 7,45,396 equity shares were allotted as Bonus shares by way of capitalisation of General Reserve.

ii] 62,550 equity shares being forfeited shares were reissued during 2001.

c) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the begining and end of the reporting period

Particulars  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

 787,784,357  787,798,278

Allotment of Equity shares on conversion of warrants  16,000,000  –
Allotment of Equity shares pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation  22,485,000  –

 –  (13,921)
 826,269,357  787,784,357

    

  The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/ – per share. Each 
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per shares. The company declares and pays dividend 
in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
sharesholders in the Annual General Meeting.
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  In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares wil be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be 
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.    

e) Shares reserved for issue under options (Refer note no 29)    

f) Grabal Alok Impex Limited, the amalgamating company, (Refer note no 36) had issued and allotted 200 
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds  of USD 1,00,000 each aggregating to USD 20 million outstanding 
as at the balance sheet date, which was convertible into shares, at any time on or after 15 April 2007 
and prior to the closure of business on 06 March 2012, unless previously redeemed, converted or 
purchased and cancelled. Such FCCBs have been redeemed after the balance sheet date, on 05 April 
2012.

g) During the year ended 31 March 2012, an amount of ` 0.30 per share (previous year ` 0.25 per share) 
was recognised as proposed dividend to equity share holders.     

h) Shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the share capital

Sr.No. Name of the Shareholder  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

No of shares 
Held

% No of shares 
Held

%

i] Niraj Realtors & Shares Private Limited 71,637,204.00  8.67 59,842,184.00  7.60

ii] Caledonia Investment PLC 36,207,135.00  4.38 47,825,714.00  6.07

iii] Caledonia Investment PLC (FDI) 24,211,903.00  2.93 45,184,354.00  5.74

3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Capital Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  10.23  10.23

Add : on amalgmation*  1.49  –

 11.72  10.23

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  2.20  2.20

Add : on amalgmation*  6.90  –

 9.10  2.20

Securities Premium Account

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  880.39  880.39

Add : on amalgmation*  60.15  –

Add : Received during the year (Refer note on 
warrants in note no 2 above)

 65.60  –

Less : Premium on redemption of FCCB  (12.49)  –

 993.65  880.39

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  220.38  604.68

 (51.90)  (384.30)

 168.48  220.38

General Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  274.99  249.99

Add : on amalgmation*  5.63  25.00

 280.62  274.99
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PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Options granted during the year  4.67  –

Less : Deferred Employee Compensation 
expenses

 (2.40)  –

 2.27  –

Cash Flow Hedging Reserve (Refer Note No 
33(ii))

 (16.78)  –

Balance brought forward from previous year  921.61  180.91

Add : on amalgmation*  54.85

 380.53  404.36

Less : Appropriations

(i) Transfered to General Reserve  –  (25.00)

(ii) Transfered from/(to) Debenture Redemption 
Reserve

 51.90  384.30

(iii) Proposed Dividend – Equity Shares  (24.79)  (19.69)

(iv) Corporate Dividend Tax thereon  (4.02)  (3.27)

(v) Excess Provision of dividend and tax thereon  0.08  –

 1,380.16  921.61

 TOTAL  2,829.22  2,309.80

* Refer note no 36

4. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

 Current  Non 
Current

 Current  Non 
Current

a) Debentures (Secured) (Refer Note I below)  –  800.00  –  500.00

b) Term Loans

 – Secured (Refer Note II & III below)

(1) From banks

  - Rupee Loans  920.71  5,568.45  857.32  4,662.17

  - Foreign currency loans  555.87  350.15  12.83  571.82

 1,476.58  5,918.60  870.15  5,233.99

(2) From Financial Institutions

  - Rupee Loans  13.13  58.59  12.19  71.72

  - Foreign currency loans  20.96  145.22  20.33  144.55

 34.09  203.81  32.52  216.27

 1,510.67  6,122.41  902.67  5,450.26

(1) From banks

  - Foreign currency loans  119.64  86.62  16.88  95.34
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– Secured

 2.43  4.03  2.07  5.80

 TOTAL  1,632.74  7,013.06  921.62  6,051.40

NOTES :      

I. a) Debentures outstanding at the year end are redeemable as follows

Particulars Nos 31-Mar-12
 (` Crore)

31-Mar-11
 (` Crore)

Date of 
Redemption

12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Feb-20
12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Aug-19
12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Feb-19
10.75% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 334  33.34  33.34 18-Oct-18
12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Aug-18
12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Feb-18
10.75% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 333  33.33  33.33 18-Oct-17
12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Aug-17
12.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 300  30.00  30.00 3-Mar-17
12.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 366  36.66  36.66 2-Mar-17
12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Feb-17
10.75% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 333  33.33  33.33 18-Oct-16
12.00% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 375  37.50  – 1-Aug-16
11.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 600  60.00  60.00 29-Jun-16
12.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 367  36.67  36.67 2-Mar-16
12.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 300  30.00  30.00 2-Mar-16
11.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 700  70.00  70.00 28-Jun-15
12.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 367  36.67  36.67 3-Mar-15
12.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 300  30.00  30.00 3-Mar-15
11.50% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 700  70.00  70.00 28-Jun-14
Total  800.00  500.00

  b) All the debentures in a) above are secured by  pari passu charge on the immovable property 
situated at Mouje Irana, Taluka Kadi, District Mehsana in the state of Gujarat. Further, Debentures 
of `
and Debentures of `
the Company (excluding Land and Building).

(` Crore)
Banks Financial

Institutions
TOTAL

 1,021.42
(640.96)

 –
–

 1,021.42
(640.96)

 2,753.28
(2,487.69)

 84.02
(106.93)

2,837.30
(2,594.62)

Subservient charge on all movable and current assets of the 
Company @

3,620.48
(2,975.49)

 153.88
(141.86)

3,774.36
(3,117.35)

Total  7,395.18  237.90  7,633.08
 (6,104.14)  (248.79)  (6,352.93)

  * Includes loans agreegating to ` 218.47 crore (previous year 218.89 crore) which is further secured by 
personal guarantees of promotor directors / group Companies
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` 860.17 crore (previous year 998.90 crore) & Financial Institution 
loans aggreegation to ` 30.47 crore (previous year 38.59 crore) which is further secured by personal 
guarantees of promotor directors / group Companies

  @ Includes Banks loans agreegating to ` 237.47 crore (previous year 159.80 crore) which is further 
secured by personal guarantees of promotor directors / group Companies

(` Crore)
Particulars Rate of Interest* 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years

Years
Total

Rupee Term Loan From 
Bank

12% – 15.75%
(10.25% – 14.25%)

 1,642.75
(705.62)

 1,568.05
(1,196.90)

 820.31
(1,179.17)

 1,537.34
(1,580.48)

 5,568.45
(4,662.17)

Foreign Currency Term 
Loan From Banks

2.53% – 5.34%
(2.50% – 8.00%)

 34.45
(479.54)

 46.81
(27.39)

 62.79
(38.56)

 206.10
(26.33)

 350.15
(571.82)

Rupee Term Loan From 
Financial Institutions

9.00% – 12.50%
(9.00% – 12.00%)

 13.74
(13.13)

 15.63
(13.75)

 13.91
(15.63)

 15.31
(29.21)

 58.59
(71.72)

Foreign Currency Term 
Loan From Financial 
Institutions

2.70% – 5.31%
(3.92% – 6.00%)

 8.66
(18.63)

 136.56
(7.56)

 –
(118.36)

 –
–

 145.22
(144.55)

Total  1,699.60  1,767.05  897.01  1,758.75  6,122.41
(1,216.92) (1,245.60) (1,351.72) (1,636.02) (5,450.26)

  * Rate of interest is whitout considering interest subsidy under TUF Scheme

(` Crore)
Particulars Rate of Interest 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years

Years
Total

Foreign Currency Term 
Loan From Banks

2.53% – 3.75%  17.32  17.32  17.32  34.66 86.62

(2.95% – 3.00%)  (17.32)  (17.32)  (17.32)  (43.38) (95.34)

(` Crore)
Banks

 6.46
 (7.87)

  (` Crore)
Particulars Rate of Interest 1-2

Years
2-3

Years
3-4

Years 4 Years
Total

9.50% – 13.00%  2.44  1.26  0.33  – 4.03
(9.50% – 13.00%)  (2.43)  (2.44)  (0.93)  – (5.80)
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5. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Depreciation  702.43  527.77

 702.43  527.77

Deferred Tax Asset (DTA)

Mark to Market loss on Derivative Contract  58.26  –

Share Issue expenses  3.31  7.35

Other disallowances  14.09  12.76

 75.66  20.11

 626.77  507.66

* Includes Opening Deferred tax Liability (Net) of Grabal Alok Impex Limited of ` 16.78 crore on account of 
amalgmation (Refer note no 36)

6. LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

 16.69  17.52

Mark to Market provision on derative instruments (Refer Note No 33(iii))  159.70  60.04

Others (Refer note No 35)  –  1.79

TOTAL  176.39  79.35

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Debenture (Secured) (Refer note a below)

8% Redeemable Non convertible Debentures  –  250.00

Cash Credit accounts, working capital demand 
loan etc. (Secured) (Refer note b below)

From Banks 
(Includes ` 720.15 crores (Previous year `
380.34 crores) loan in foreign currency)

 2,668.40 875.59

From Financial Institutions
(Includes ` Nil ( Previous year ̀ 89.08 crores) 
loan in foreign currency)

 130.74  89.08

Cash Credit accounts, working capital demand 
loan etc. (Unsecured)

From Banks  157.53 69.94

From Financial Institutions  – –

Commercial Paper (Unsecured)

From Banks 103.00  360.00

From Financial Institutions 335.00  360.00
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PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

 438.00  720.00

Inter Corporate Deposit (Unsecured) (refer note 
no. 28)

 11.75  –

Short term loan

Secured (Refer note b below)

- Rupee Loans

   From Banks  635.00  576.98

   From Financial Institutions  85.00  75.00

 720.00  651.98

- Foreign currency loans

   From Banks  –  44.65

 –  720.00  44.65  696.63

Unsecured

- Rupee Loans

   From Banks  –  144.95

 –  –  144.95  144.95

 TOTAL  4,126.42  2,846.19

Note
a) Debentures are secured by pari passu charge on the immovable property situated at Mouje Irana, 

Taluka Kadi, District Mehsana in the state of Gujarat.

b) Disclosure of security 

Banks Financial
Institutions

TOTAL

Working capital loans :
(i) Hypothecation of company's current assets and 

mortgage of certain immovable properties belonging 
to the company / Guarantor.

assets (excluding land and building) of the company

 2,324.47
(446.14)

 40.35
(20.58)

 2,364.82
(466.72)

Subservient charge created / to be created on all moveable 
and current assets of the company.

 343.93
(429.45)

 90.39
(68.50)

 434.32
(497.95)

TOTAL  2,668.40  130.74  2,799.14
 (875.59)  (89.08)  (964.67)

Short Term Loans
Subservient charge on all movable and current assets of 
the Company

 537.00  85.00  622.00

 (621.63)  (75.00)  (696.63)
Fixed Deposit placed with the bank.  98.00  –  98.00

 –  –  –
TOTAL  635.00  85.00  720.00

 (621.63)  (75.00)  (696.63)
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8. TRADE PAYABLE
  (` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Total outstanding due to :
– Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises*  –  –
– Others  506.42  562.92
(Including acceptances ` 2.20 crore (previous 
year ` 50.94 crrore)

 506.42 562.92
 506.42 562.92

* As per information available with the company

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
  (` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note 4 for details)  1,632.74  921.62
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  9.35  17.59
Unpaid dividends (see note i & ii below)  1.05  0.84
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account  –  0.22
Other payables

Advance from customers  46.14  51.32
Creditors for Capital Goods  32.79  18.71
Towards statutory Liabilities  6.09  10.06
Premium on redemption of FCCB  43.14  –

Advance from Related parties (Refer Note No 28)  261.73 –
Temporary overdrawn bank balance (see note iii below)  14.28  30.13
Forward Contract Payable  10.89  –

TOTAL  2,058.20  1,050.49

NOTES

and Protection Fund.

(ii) During the year company has transferred ` 0.03 crore (Previous year ` 0.06 crore) to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund.

(iii) Temporary overdrawn bank balances are as per books consequent to issue of cheques at the year end, 
though the banks have positive balances as on that date.

10. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

  (` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

 7.51  3.07
Mark to Market provision on derivative instruments (Refer Note No 33(iii))  36.65  12.92
Proposed dividend  24.79  19.69
Corporate dividend tax  4.02  3.27
Provision for taxation (Net of Advance Tax)  2.63  19.24
Others (Refer note No 35)  –  13.68

TOTAL  75.60  71.87
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12. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Trade)

(` Crore)
PARTICULARS  AS AT 

31-Mar-12
 AS AT 

31-Mar-11

Alok Inc.  0.04  0.04
[50 Equity Shares of USD 200 each]
Alok Industries International Limited (refer note no 35)  –  0.22
[50,000 Equity Shares of USD 1 each]
Alok International Inc. (` 43,225/-)  0.00  0.00
[1,000 Equity Shares of USD 1/ – each]
Alok Apparel Private Limited  1.00  1.00
[10,00,000 Equity Shares of `10/ – each]
Alok Retail (India) Limited  0.05  0.05
[50,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/ – each]
Alok Land Holdings Private Limited  0.50  0.50
[5,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/ – each]

Infrastructure Limited)
Alok Infrastructure Limited  0.05  0.05
[50,000 Equity Shares of `10/ – each]

Limited)
Alok H & A Limited  36.05  36.05
[3,60,50,000 Equity Shares of `10/ – each]
Alok Singapore Pte. Ltd. (` 49/-)  0.00  –
[1 (previous year Nil) Equity share of USD 1 each]

Ltd.)
Alok International (Middle East) FZE  1.31  –
(1 (previous year Nil) Equity share of UAE Dirhams of One 
Million)

 39.00  37.91
In Joint Venture – Unquoted
Aurangabad Textiles & Apparel Parks Limited  17.25  17.25
[10,19,200 Equity Shares of `10/ – each]
New City Of Bombay Mfg. Mills Limited  75.13  71.50
[44,93,300 Equity Shares of `10/ – each]*
* Stamp duty on lease deed of ` 3.63 crore paid during the 
year as per share subscription agreement

 92.38  88.75
Others – Unquoted

` 90.14 (previous year 
` 45.14))

 0.00  0.00

[2 (previous year 1) Equity share of USD 1 each]
Shirt Company (India) Limited -  0.20
[Nil (previous year 11,333) Equity Shares of `10/ – each]
Dombivali Nagri Sahakari Bank Limited  0.05  0.05
[10,000 Equity Shares of ` 50/ – each]
Kalyan Janata Sahakari Bank Limited  0.03  0.03
[10,000 Equity Shares of ` 25/ – each]
Saraswat Bank Limited (` 25,000/-)  0.00  0.00
[2,500 Equity Shares of ` 10/ – each]
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PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Grabal Alok International Limited (` 1,121.25/-) (refer note 
no. 35)

 –  0.00

[Nil Equity Shares (previous year 25) of USD 1 each]
 35.33  –

[1,94,59,382 (previous year Nil) Equity Shares of `10/ – 
each ]

` 36,500/-)  0.00  0.00
[3,650 Equity Shares of 10 each]

 35.41  0.28
Others – Quoted
Grabal Alok Impex Limited (refer note no. 36)  –  3.99

Other Non-current investments
Share Application Money in Subsidiary company :
Alok Apparel Private Limited  9.00  9.00

 9.00  9.00
 TOTAL  175.79  139.93

1) Quoted Investment : Aggregate cost / carrying value  –  3.99
  : Aggregate market value  –  6.08
2) Unquoted Investment : Aggregate cost / carrying value 166.79  126.94

13. LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Considered good
Capital advances  121.97  154.65
Lease & Security deposits  8.89  9.36
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference 
Account

 0.95  –

Other Loans & advances
Prepaid Expenses  41.34  35.23
Advance Tax (Net of provision for tax)  17.62  15.29
MAT Credit entitlement  66.27  110.39

 257.04  324.92
Considered Doubtful
Capital advances  3.76  –
Less : Provision  3.76  –  –  –
TOTAL  257.04  324.92
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14. CURRENT INVESTMENTS (at cost) [Others]
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Investments in debentures or bonds
Bonds

 2.00  2.00
  [20 Bonds of ` 10,00,000 each]

 2.00  2.00
Investments in Mutual funds – Unquoted

Axis Infrastructure Fund 1  1.94  7.20
[19,378 (previous year 72,035) units of ` 1000/ – each]
SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund  –  17.00
[Nil (previous year 78,08,875.48) units of ` 10/ – each]
Peerless Liquid Fund collection A/C  –  1.00
[Nil (previous year 9,35,506.20) units of ` 10/ – each]
IDFC Money Manager Fund Daily Dividend  –  0.05
[Nil (previous year 49,652.93) units of ` 10/ – each]

 1.94  25.25
 TOTAL  3.94  27.25

15. INVENTORIES
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-11

Raw Materials  435.09  587.63
(Includes material in transit ` 62.09 crore (previous year `
138.62 crore)

 2,220.77  868.77
Finished Goods  641.86  466.33
Stock in Trade (Traded Goods)  2.72  13.59

 3,300.44  1,936.32
Stores & Spares  72.45  59.40
Packing Material  7.02  6.90
TOTAL  3,379.91  2,002.62

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-12

Debts Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due 
date

 41.97  26.75

Less : Provision  14.18  27.79  6.95  19.80

Other Debts  2,131.32  1,722.83
Less : Provision  6.96  2,124.36  2.44  1,720.39

 2,152.15  1,740.19
Unsecured

Considered Good  2,152.15  1,740.19
Considered Doubtful  21.14  9.39

TOTAL  2,173.29  1,749.58
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NOTE :

i) Sundry Debtors includes ` 70.72 crore (previous year ` 38.23 crore) towards contractual obligations on 
account of Export Incentives Receivables.

ii) Debtors include dues from parties aggregating to ` 1.22 crore (previous year ` 3.10 crore) in which a 
director is a director/partner

ii) Refer note No. 28 for related party balances

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-12

Cash on hand  0.50  0.70

Balance with Bank

(i) In current accounts  515.20  27.28

(ii) In EEFC accounts  0.98  0.41

(iii) In deposit accounts (Refer Note (i) and (ii) below)  61.99  132.30

(iv) In earmarked accounts

– Unpaid dividend accounts  1.05  0.84

– Balances / Deposits held as margin money or security against 
borrowings, guarantees and other commitments (Refer Note (i) and 
(iii) below)

 715.12  978.32

TOTAL  1,294.84  1,139.85

NOTE :

(i) Balances with banks includes deposits amounting to ` 22.64 crore (previous year ` 39.22 crore) and 
margin monies amounting to ` 77.63 (previous year ` 71.49 crore) which have an original maturity of 
more than 12 months.

  Balances with banks includes deposits amounting to ` 2.16 crore (previous year ` 9.92 crore) and 
margin monies amounting to ` 2.81 crore (previous year ` 15.42 crore) which have a maturity of more 
than 12 months from the Balance Sheet date

 (ii)  Includes ̀ 33.49 crore (previous year Nil) kept in bank deposits and ̀ 8.55 crore (previous year ̀ 41.29
crore) margin money pending utilisation towards project 

(iii)  Includes ` 437.57 crore (previous year ` 845.45 crore) pledged with banks towards loan availed by 
subsidiary company. 

18. SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured, considered good)

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-12

Loans & advances to Related parties (Refer Note No 28)  120.50  69.64

Others

 933.22  110.74

Advance to Staff (see note i below)  9.13  10.50

Balance with Central Excise, Customs and Sales Tax authorities  279.32  201.07
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PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-12

Prepaid Expenses  49.18  28.13

Inter Corporate Deposits  3.69  4.95

 TOTAL  1,395.04  425.03

NOTE :

(i) Advance to staff includes ` 0.18 crore (previous year `
[maximum amount outstanding during the year ` 1.27 crore (previous year ` 1.35 crore)]

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Unsecured) 

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT 
31-Mar-12

 AS AT 
31-Mar-12

Considered Good
Forward Contract Receivable  –  4.28
Interest Subsidy Receivable  86.00  121.73
Unutilised DEPB Licence  25.98  7.74
Insurance Claim Receivable  1.11  0.01
Balance with Central Excise Authorities  0.05  0.16
Rent Receivable  0.23  –
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account  0.03  –

 113.40  133.92
Considered Doubtful
Interest Subsidy Receivable  9.31  9.31
Less : Provision  9.31  9.31

 –  –
TOTAL  113.40  133.92

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS Year Ended
31-Mar-12

Year Ended
31-Mar-11

a) Sale of product
Sales – Local  6,066.31  4,261.53
Sales – Export  3,029.55  2,217.43

 9,095.86  6,478.96
b) Sale of services

Job work charges collected  30.90  12.77
c) Sale of Scrap  8.05  9.18
 TOTAL  9,134.81  6,500.91

21. OTHER INCOME

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS Year Ended
31-Mar-12

Year Ended
31-Mar-11

Interest Income
On Long Term Investments  5.04  2.30
On Current Investments  28.19  32.35

 33.23  34.65
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PARTICULARS Year Ended
31-Mar-12

Year Ended
31-Mar-11

Dividend Income :
On Long Term Investments  0.02  –
On Current Investments  2.55  2.37

 2.57  2.37
Gain on sale of investments (Net)

On Long Term Investments  –  1.02
On Current Investments  –  0.14

 –  1.16
 9.65  –

Provision for doubtful debts written back  2.15  1.54
Sundry Credit Balance written back  3.09  0.43
Rent Received  1.06  0.78
Insurance claim received  12.40  –
Other non operationg Income  1.45  0.16
 TOTAL  65.60  41.09

22. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS Year Ended
31-Mar-12

Year Ended
31-Mar-11

CLOSING STOCK AS ON 31 MARCH 2012

Finished Goods  641.86  466.33

Stock in trades (Traded Goods)  2.72  13.59

 2,220.77  868.77

 2,865.35  1,348.69

LESS : OPENING STOCK AS ON 1 APRIL 2011

Finished Goods  466.33  299.66

Stock in trades (Traded Goods)  13.59  –

 868.77  826.48

 1,348.69  1,126.14

 TOTAL  1,516.66  222.55

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  Year Ended
31-Mar-12

 Year Ended 
31-Mar-11

 242.96  182.48

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  13.74  11.91

Employee Stock Option Compensation Expenses  2.27  –

 8.31  5.37

 267.28  199.76
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24. FINANCE COSTS
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  Year Ended
31-Mar-12

 Year Ended 
31-Mar-11

Interest expense  1,065.33  685.95

(Net of interest subsidy of ` 131.11 crore (Previous 
year ` 131.88 crore) and recovery of ` 140.02 crore 
(Previous year ` 81.47 crore))

Interest on late payment of taxes  2.04  3.07

Other Borrowing costs  82.18  47.25

TOTAL  1,149.55  736.27

25. OTHER EXPENSES
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  Year Ended 
31-Mar-12

 Year Ended 
31-Mar-11

Stores and Spares Consumed  97.89  50.63
Packing Materials Consumed  130.36  80.70
Power and Fuel  656.05  392.09
Processing Charges  65.44  47.93
Labour Charges  66.27  59.39
Excise Duty  6.27  4.14
Donation  1.21  0.81
Freight, Coolie and Cartage  106.51  98.25
Legal and Professional Fees  35.41  28.70
Rent  15.63  12.19
Rates and Taxes  5.54  4.59
Repairs and Maintenance

Plant and Machinery  16.91  14.61
Factory Building  2.08  0.59
Others  5.25  3.55

 24.24  18.75
Commission on Sales  37.29  21.63
Loss on exchange rate difference / derivative (Net)  248.56 34.19
Provision for Doubtful Debts  12.87  6.37
Provision for Doubtful Advance  3.76  9.31
Bad debts and advances written off  12.07  –
Loss on sale of investment(Net) 0.12  –
Directors Remuneration  7.20  7.20
Directors Fees and Commission  5.04  5.06
Auditors Remuneration

Audit Fees  1.46  1.30
 0.05  0.03

 1.51  1.33
Loss on sale of assets (Net)  –  1.74
Insurance  12.11  12.87
Miscellaneous Expenses  129.95 108.08
(Miscellaneous Expenses includes Printing and 
Stationery, Bank Charges, Advertisement etc.)
TOTAL  1,681.30  1,005.95
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26 Contingent Liabilities in respect of :

 (` Crore)

 Sr. No. Particulars Current Year Previous Year
A Customs duty on shortfall in export obligation in accordance 

with EXIM Policy

(The company is hopeful of meeting the export obligation 
within the stipulated period)

Amount
Unascertained

Amount
Unascertained

B Pending Litigation 0.05 0.05
C Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company 73.48 24.69
D Corporate Guarantees given to bank for loans taken by 

Subsidiary Companies
977.62 213.35

E Bills discounted 214.79 242.94
F Taxation Matters :

a) Income tax demand mainly on account of alleged 
short deduction of taxes for AY 2010-11 and AY 2011-

appeal with the Commissioner of Income Tax (A) and 
is hopeful of favourable decision.

1.69 -

b) Income Tax demand during the previous years of 
` 5.91 crore mainly on account of alleged short 
deposition of TDS amounts arising from wrong TAN 
numbers mentioned while uploading the TDS return 
and certain payments not considered by the Tax 
authorities, although duly paid by the company and 
short deduction of tax in respect of certain payments 
with respect to AY 2006-07 to 2009-10. The company 

154 providing details of amounts paid to the bank. 

majority of the amount and for the balance of ` 0.23 
crore mainly pertaining to short deduction of taxes, 
the company is hopeful of favourable decision.

0.23 5.91

c) Demands of Works Contract Tax contested not 
acknowledged as debts as the company is hopeful of 
favourable decision.

0.59 0.59

d) Income tax amounting to ` 11.29 crore, mainly on 
account of disallowance of interest and expenditure 
incurred towards exempt income. The company has 

(A) and is hopeful of favourable decision.

11.29 -

27 Capital Commitments

 (` Crore)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital 
Account and not provided for (Net of advances)

445.15 464.55

28 Related Party Disclosure

A) Name and Transaction / balances with related parties

I. Name of related parties and nature of relationship

  As per Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18) “Related Party Disclosures”, Company’s related parties 
disclosed as below:
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(i) Associate companies
Alspun Infrastructure Limited Next Creation Holdings LLC
Ashford Infotech Private Limited Nirvan Builders Private Limited

(ii) Entities under common control
Alok Denims (India) Private Limited Green Park Enterprises
Alok Finance Private Limited Jiwrajka Associates Private Limited

Alok Knit Exports Limited Jiwrajka Investment Private Limited
Alok Textile Traders Niraj Realtors & Shares Private Limited
Ashok Realtors Private Limited Nirvan Exports
Buds Clothing Co. Nirvan Holdings Private Limited
D. Surendra & Co. Pramatex Enterprises
Gogri Properties Private Limited Pramita Creation Private Limited
Grabal Alok Impex Limited (Refer Note 36 
on amalgamation)

Triumphant Victory Holdings Limited.

(iii) Subsidiaries
Alok Inc. Alok Infrastructure Limited
Alok Industries International Ltd. (Refer 
note no 35 on transfer of shares to Alok 
Infrastructure Limited)

Alok Apparels Private Limited

Alok Retail (India) Limited Alok New City Infratex Private Limited
Alok Land Holdings Private Limited Alok Realtors Private Limited
Alok Aurangabad Infratex Private Limited Alok HB Hotels Private Limited
Alok H&A Limited Alok HB Properties Private Limited
Alok International, Inc. Springdale Information and Technologies 

Private Limited
Alok European Retail, s.r.o. Kesham Developers & Infotech Private Limited
Alok International (Middle East) FZE
(incorporated on 01 August 2011)

Alok Singapore Pte Ltd.
(Incorporated on 28 December 2011)

Mileta, a.s. Grabal Alok (UK) Limited (Refer note no 36 on 
amalgamation)
Grabal Alok International Limited (Refer note no 
35 on transfer of shares to Alok Infrastructure 
Limited)

(iv) Joint Venture
Aurangabad Textiles & Apparel Parks Limited
New City Of Bombay Mfg. Mills Limited

(v) Key Management Personnel Ashok B. Jiwrajka

Directors
Chandrakumar Bubna
Dilip B. Jiwrajka
Surendra B. Jiwrajka

(vi) Relatives of Key Management Alok A. Jiwrajka
Personnel Suryaprakash Bubna

II. Transactions with related parties.

  (` Crore)
Transaction Associate

companies
Entities
under

common
control

Subsidiaries Joint
Venture

Companies

Key
Management

Personnel

Relatives
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Total

a) Unsecured Short Term Borrowing

 Accepted during the year  (on 
amalgamation)

- - - 11.75 - - 11.75

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
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Transaction Associate
companies

Entities
under

common
control

Subsidiaries Joint
Venture

Companies

Key
Management

Personnel

Relatives
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Total

 Balance as at 31 Mar - - - 11.75 - - 11.75

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

b) Short Term Loans and Advances

 Balance as at 1 April - 0.03 69.61 - - - 69.64

(-) (-) (32.62) (-) (-) (-) (32.62)

 Granted during the year - 10.13 3,998.06 - - - 4,008.19

(-) (252.25) (1,482.83) (-) (-) (-) (1735.08)

 Repaid during the year - 10.15 3,947.18 - - - 3,957.33

(-) (252.22) (1,445.84) (-) (-) (-) (1698.06)

 Balance as at 31 Mar - 0.01 120.49 - - - 120.50

(-) (0.03) (69.61) (-) (-) (-) (69.64)

c) Non Current Investments

 Balance as at 1 April - - 37.91 88.75 - - 126.66

(-) (-) (117.76) (87.00) (-) (-) (204.76)

 Invested during the year - - 23.91 3.63 - - 27.54

(-) (-) (-) (1.75) (-) (-) (1.75)

year
- - 22.82 - - - 22.82

(-) (-) (79.15) (-) (-) (-) (79.15)

 Balance as at 31 Mar - - 39.00 92.38 - - 131.38

(-) (-) (37.91) (88.75) (-) (-) (126.66)

d) Share Application Money – Non 
Current Investments

 Balance as at 31 Mar - - 9.00 - - - 9.00

(-) (-) (9.00) (-) (-) (-) (9.00)

e) Trade Receivables

 Balance as at 31 Mar - 0.09 143.46 0.04 - - 143.59

(-) (26.97) (38.78) (0.09) (-) (-) (65.84)

f) Trade payables

 Balance as at 31 Mar - - 6.78 18.75 - - 25.53

(-) (18.55) (1.04) (0.02) (-) (-) (19.61)

g) Other Current Liabilities

Balance as at 31 Mar - - 261.73 - - - 261.73

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

h) Advance to Vendor – Short term Loans 
and Advances

Balance as at 31 Mar - - 0.02 - - - 0.02

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

i) Sale of product

 Sales of Goods (Including job work 
charges)

- - 242.74 0.92 - - 243.66

(-) (-) (137.94) (1.41) (-) (-) (139.35)

j) Expenditure

- - 2.48 61.19 - - 63.67

(-) (2.87) (1.07) (82.87) (-) (-) (86.81)

 Purchase of Fixed Assets - - 201.66 - - - 201.66

(* From three Directors jointly) (-) (0.62) (245.48) (-) (4.54*) (-) (250.64)

 Rent - - 3.12 - - - 3.12

(-) (-) (0.59) (-) (-) (-) (0.59)

 LC Charges - - - - - - -

(-) (-) (2.36) (-) (-) (-) (2.36)
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Transaction Associate
companies

Entities
under

common
control

Subsidiaries Joint
Venture

Companies

Key
Management

Personnel

Relatives
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Total

 Sales Promotion Expenses - - 2.67 - - - 2.67

(-) (-) (2.44) (-) (-) (-) (2.44)

 Legal & Professional Fees - - 12.08 - - - 12.08

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

 Marketing Service Charges - - 12.98 - - - 12.98

(-) (-) (8.84) (-) (-) (-) (8.84)

 Exchange rate difference - - 68.98 - - - 68.98

(-) (-) (94.37) (-) (-) (-) (94.37)

 Remuneration - - - - 12.20 0.20 12.40

(-) (-) (-) (-) (12.20) (0.20) (12.40)

k) Dividend Paid - - - - 1.54 - 1.54

(-) (-) (-) (-) (1.54) (-) (1.54)

l) Income

 Dividend - - - 2.00 - - 2.00

(-) (-) (-) (2.21) (-) (-) (2.21)

 Rent - 0.23 0.52 - - - 0.75

(-) (0.03) (0.68) (-) (-) (-) (0.71)

m) Guarantee given - - 763.19 - - - 763.19

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

III. Out of the above items, transaction in excess of 10% of the total Related Party transactions are 
as under:

  (` Crore)

Transaction Current Year Previous Year
a) Unsecured Borrowing

Accepted during the year (on amalgamation)
Joint Venture Company

New City of Bombay Mfg. Mills Limited 11.75 -
b) Loans and advances

Granted during the year
Subsidiary-

Alok Infrastructure Limited 3,539.23 1,090.93
Alok Industries International Limited - 298.50

3,539.23 1,389.43
Repaid during the year
Subsidiary-

Alok Infrastructure Limited 3,499.01 1,090.84
Alok Industries International Limited - 236.45

3,499.01 1,327.29
c) Investment

Invested during the year
Subsidiary-

Grabal Alok International Limited 22.60 -
Joint Venture-

New City of Bombay Mfg. Mills Limited - 1.75
Aurangabad Textiles & Apparel Parks Limited 3.63 -
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Transaction Current Year Previous Year

Subsidiary-
Alok Industries International Limited - 79.15
Grabal Alok International Limited 22.60 -

d) Turnover (including job work charges)
Subsidiary-

Alok International Inc. 141.77 44.68
Grabal Alok (UK) Ltd. 64.80 79.92
Alok Singapore Pte. Ltd. 25.33 -

231.90 124.60
e) Expenditure

Purchase of Goods:
Joint Venture Company

New City of Bombay Mfg. Mills Limited 60.61 81.71
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Under Construction):
Subsidiary-

Alok Infrastructure Limited 201.66 245.48
Rent
Subsidiary-

Kesham Developers Private Limited 2.86 0.59
LC Charges
Subsidiary-

Grabal Alok (UK) Ltd. - 2.36
Sales Promotion Expenses
Subsidiary –

Grabal Alok (UK) Ltd. 2.67 2.35
Legal & Professional charges
Subsidiary –

Grabal Alok (UK) Ltd. 12.08 -
Marketing Service Charges
Subsidiary –

Alok International Inc. 12.98 8.84
Exchange Rate Difference
Subsidiary-

Grabal Alok (UK) Ltd. 68.98 94.37
Remuneration:
Key Management Personnel-

Ashok B. Jiwrajka  3.05 3.05
Surendra B. Jiwrajka  3.05 3.05
Dilip B. Jiwrajka  3.05 3.05
Chandrakumar Bubna  3.05 3.05

12.20 12.20
f) Dividend Paid

Key Management Personnel-
Ashok B. Jiwrajka 0.50 0.50
Dilip B. Jiwrajka 0.51 0.51
Surendra B. Jiwrajka 0.53 0.53

1.54 1.54
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Transaction Current Year Previous Year
g) Income

Dividend:
Joint Venture Company

New City of Bombay Mfg. Mills Limited 1.80 1.80
Aurangabad Textiles & Apparel Parks Limited 0.20 0.41

2.00 2.21
Rent received:
Entities under common control-

Alok Denim (India) Limited 0.18 -
Subsidiary-

Alok Retail (India) Limited 0.40 0.63
Alok H&A Limited 0.10 -

0.50 0.63
h) Guarantee Given

Subsidiary-
Alok Industries International Limited 665.03 -

B) Details in accordance with clause 32 of the listing agreement with the stock exchanges are as under :

i) Loans and advances to subsidiary companies

Name of the Company Balance as 
at 31 March 

2012

Maximum
balance

during the 
year 11-12

Balance as 
at 31 March 

2011

Maximum
balance

during the 
year 10-11

Alok Infrastructure Limited 40.34 904.61  0.12 519.73
Alok Inc. - 0.21  0.21 0.21
Alok Industries International Limited 26.22 218.21  62.28 336.75
Alok Apparels Private Limited 28.26   30.39   - 24.96
Alok Retail (India) Limited 21.60 21.60 - 0.85
Alok H&A Limited - 81.26 - 55.42
Grabal Alok (UK) Limited 0.05 30.20 1.59 1.59
Alok Realtors Private Limited - 2.14 - 3.60

C) Joint Venture

In compliance with the Accounting Standard 27 on ‘Financial Reporting of interest in Joint Ventures’ as 

jointly controlled entities, which are incorporated in India.

(` Crore)

Name of the Companies % of 
share

holding

Amount of interest based on provisional unaudited 
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012

Assets Liabilities Income Expense Contingent
Liability

New City of Bombay Mfg. Mills 
Limited

49.00% 44.35 9.13 65.84 62.41 -
(35.57) (2.38) (65.57) (61.20) (-)

Aurangabad Textile and 
Apparel Park Limited

49.00% 9.79 1.27 31.42 30.61 -
(8.41) (0.69) (26.94) (26.47)  – @
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29 Employee Stock Option Scheme(ESOS)

In 2011, the shareholders of the Company approved the Employee Stock Option Scheme (“Alok Industries 
Limited – ESOS 2010 Scheme”) vide postal ballot, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (ESOP & ESOS) Guidelines, 1999. Such scheme provides for grant of options up to 2,50,00,000 

price for such options can be up to 50% discount to the market price as per the discretion of the compensation 
committee. 1,07,91,500 options were granted during the year and 1,05,87,950 options were outstanding as 
on 31 March 2012. Such options vest over a period of two years, 50% at the end of one year from the date 
of grant and 50% at the end of two years from the date of grant.

Details of options granted duly approved by the Remuneration and Compensation Committee under the 
said scheme are as under:

Grant Date No. of Options
granted

Options
surrendered / 

lapsed

Closing
Balance

Exercise Price Vesting period

20 April 2011 12,80,000 18,000 12,62,000 18.90  Up to 20 April 2013
20 April 2011 95,11,500 1,85,550 93,25,950 21.42 Up to 20 April 2013
Total 1,07,91,500 2,03,550 1,05,87,950

The Company has followed the Intrinsic Value-based method of accounting for stock options granted, based 
on Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, and accordingly, compensation cost of ` 4.67 crore has been recorded during the 
year on such grant. The compensation cost recognised as a charge during the year was ` 2.27 crore. Had 
the compensation cost for the Company’s stock based compensation plan been determined in the manner 
consistent with the fair value approach as described in the Guidance note, the Company’s net income would 
be lower by ` 4.20 crore and earnings per share as reported would be lower as indicated below:

Particulars Year-2012
Basic and Dilutive Earnings per share
 – As reported (In `) 4.69
 – Adjusted (In `) 4.64

The Company has adopted Black Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options. 
The fair value of each option granted in 2012 is estimated on the date of grant based on the following 
assumptions:

Particulars Year-2012
Expected life (years) 1 year from the 

date of vesting
Risk free interest rate (%) 7.83%
Volatility (%) 39%

30 Earnings per share (EPS)

(` Crore)
31 March 2012 31 March 2011

a. Nominal value of equity shares per share ( In Rupees) 10 10
b. Basic and Diluted EPS

380.53 404.36
Weighted average number of equity shares – Basic 811,187,390 787,784,357
Basic EPS 4.69 5.13
Add: Effect of dilutive stock options (Nos.) 46,286 -
Weighted average number of equity shares – Diluted (Nos.) 811,233,676 811,187,390
Diluted EPS 4.69 5.13

i)

  Amounts recognized as expenses towards contributions to provident fund, superannuation and other 
similar funds by the Company are ` 10.58 Crore (Previous Year ` 8.08 crore) for the year ended 31 
March 2012.
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ii)

  a) Gratuity Plan: The Company makes annual contribution to the Employee’s Group Gratuity 
Assurance Scheme, administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (‘LIC’), a funded 

vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an 

  b) Compensated absences: Employees’ entitlement to compensated absences in future periods 
based on unavailed leave as at balance sheet date, as per the policy of the Company, is expected 

   The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan for the year ended 31 March 2012 as 
required under AS 15 (Revised)

   (` Crore)
Particulars Gratuity

(funded) as on 
31 March 2012

Gratuity
(funded) as on 
31 March 2011

15.08 10.52
Current Service Cost 4.15 3.31
Interest Cost 1.51 1.11

(0.63) 0.46
- -

(0.33) (0.32)
19.78 15.08

Change in Fair Value of assets
Opening in Fair value of assets 4.49 2.76
Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.34 0.22
Actuarial gain 0.26 0.08
Contribution by Employer 2.32 1.75

(0.33) (0.32)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 7.08 4.49
Net Liability 12.70 10.59

   (` Crore)

Particulars Year ended
 31 March 2012

Year ended
 31 March 2011

Current Service Cost 4.15 3.31
1.51 1.11

Expected Return on Plan Assets (0.34) (0.22)
Net Actuarial Loss (0.89) 0.38
Total Included in Employment Expenses 4.43 4.58
Actual Return on Plan Assets 0.60 0.30
Category of Assets as on 31 March
Insurer Managed Fund

7.08 4.49

   The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity are set out below:

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
 31 March 

2011
Discount rate 8.70% 8.05%
Rate of increase in compensation levels of covered 
employees

9.00% 9.00%

Expected Rate of return on plan assets * 7.50% 7.50%
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   * Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of 
return expected to prevail over the estimated term of the obligation on the type of the investments 
assumed to be held by LIC, since the fund is managed by LIC. The estimates of future salary 

and other relevant factors.

   Experience Adjustments

   (` Crore)

Particulars Year Ended
31 March

2012
31 March

2011
31 March

2010
31 March

 2009
31 March

 2008
19.78 15.08 10.52 6.67 -

Plan Assets 7.08 4.49 2.76 2.24 -
(12.70) (10.59) (7.76) (4.43) -

Experience Adjustments on 
plan Liabilities

1.09 (0.67) 0.16 - -

Experience Adjustments on 
plan Assets

0.26 0.08 0.07 - -

   Asset Allocations

   Since the investments are held in the form of deposit with LIC, these are not volatile and the market 
value of assets is the cost value of assets and has been accordingly considered for the above 
disclosure.

32 Segment Reporting

a) Primary Segment: Geographical Segment

  The company is in the business of manufacturing of Textile products. Considering its high level of 

  The geographic segment consists of:

  a) Domestic (Sales to Customers located in India)

  b) International (Sales to Customers located outside India)

   Revenue directly attributable to segments is reported based on items that are individually 

expenses, segment results, assets used, except debtors, in the company’s business or liabilities 

   (` Crore)

Particulars Current
Year

Previous
Year

Segment Revenue
Operating Revenue – Sales

Domestic [Net of Excise duty of ` 233.95 crore (Previous year 
`112.48 crores)]

5,840.41 4,158.23

International 3,029.55 2,217.43
8,869.96 6,375.66

Job Charges Collected (Domestic) 30.90 12.77
Total segment revenue 8,900.96 6,388.43
Segment Assets
Sundry Debtors

Domestic 1,799.53 1,548.41
International 352.62 191.78

2,152.15 1,740.19
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b) Secondary Segment: Business Segment

  The company is operating in a single business i.e. Textile and as such all business activities revolve 
around this segment. Hence, there is no separate secondary segment to be reported considering the 
requirement of AS 17 on “Segment Reporting”

33 i. Due to unusual depreciation in the value of the Indian Rupee (INR) against US Dollar (USD) during the 

  (ii) Mark to Market (MTM) losses on foreign exchange derivatives taken by the Company, has been 
presented as an exceptional item with corresponding changes for the previous year.

ii. The Company, during the year, based on the announcement of the ICAI (Accounting for derivatives), 
has accounted for derivative forward exchange contracts taken towards highly probable forecast 

measurement stated in AS-30 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement‘. Consequent 
`16.78 crore 

and reserves and surplus are lower by an equivalent amount. Fair value (net loss) of the derivative 
` 16.78 crore as at March 31, 2012, which is expected to 

iii. Fair values (Mark to market values) (loss) of Foreign currency options , Interest rate swaps and forward 
contracts (other than those considered for hedging) as at 31 March 2012 aggregating to ` 179.57 crore 
(previous year ` 72.96 crore) has been accounted for by the Company. Such fair values are based on 
the report of counter parties. MTM losses on such derivatives of ` 106.61 crore have been recognised 
during the year.

iv. Derivative contracts entered into by the company and outstanding as on 31 March 2012 for hedging 
currency and interest rate related risks. Nominal amounts of derivative contracts entered into by the 
company and outstanding as on 31 March 2012 amount to ` 3,477.99 Crore (previous year ` 2,841.73 
Crore). Category wise break-up is given below.

  (` Crore)

Sr. No. Particulars  31 March 2012 31 March 2011
1 Interest Rate Swaps

476.73 280.68
1,150.00 743.27

150.00 -
1,776.73 1,023.95

2 Currency Options * 1,201.21 1,342.26
3 Forward Contract 500.05 475.52

Total 3,477.99 2,841.73

  * Represents monthly currency option for receivables, maturing over a period of 5 years

v. The year end foreign currency exposure that has not been hedged by derivative instruments or 
otherwise are as below :

  a) Amount receivable in foreign currency on account of the following

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Foreign

Currency
Amount

in foreign 
currency

Rupees

(Crore)

Amount
in foreign 
currency

Rupees

(Crore)
Debtors USD - - 1.37 61.12

EUR 0.19 12.99 0.09 5.51
GBP 0.00* 0.05 0.01 0.48

Fixed Deposits USD 0.65 33.50 - -

   *GBP 6,647
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  b) Amount Payable in foreign currency on account of the following

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Foreign
Currency

Amount
in foreign 
currency

Rupees
(Crore)

Amount
in foreign 
currency

Rupees
(Crore)

Secured Loans USD 27.69 1,416.91 21.49 959.31
JPY 184.87 115.42 182.81 98.76

EUR 4.39 300.24 1.69 106.78

Interest accrued but not 
due on loans

USD

EUR

0.01

0.03

0.76

2.09

0.01

0.02

0.43

1.44
Unsecured Loan USD 4.65 237.91 - -

JPY 2.06 1.29 - -

EUR 1.78 121.41 1.77 112.22

Sundry creditors USD 2.90 148.49 5.96 266.23
JPY - - 4.31  2.33

EUR 0.06 3.82 0.02 0.97

CHF 0.00* 0.16 - -

   *CHF 27,571

compulsory convertible bonds issued by Alok Industries International Limited (“Alok BVI”) and Grabal Alok 
(UK) Ltd, a company incorporated in the United kingdom (subsidiary) of the company, of USD 56.5 million 
each, with a green shoe option of USD 25 million. These bonds are secured by subservient charge on 
current and movable assets of the company which was created by executing a Deed of Hypothecation on 
28 October 2010 in favour of AXIS Trustee Services Limited, Mumbai, India.

35 During the year, the company has transferred investments in the form of equity capital and cumulative 
redeemable preference shares in Alok Industries International Ltd (“Alok BVI”) & Grabal Alok International 
Ltd (“Grabal BVI”), its two wholly owned subsidiary companies to Alok Infrastructure Limited (“Alok Infra”), 
another wholly owned subsidiary as a strategy to consolidate all investible assets under one umbrella. 
During the previous year, vide a novation agreement, the Company had taken over the obligation of Grabal 
Alok (UK) Ltd, (then an associate company of Alok BVI & Grabal BVI in the United Kingdom) towards its 

and Grabal BVI to Alok Infra, Alok Infra has taken over such obligation of Alok Industries Ltd. during the 
current year.

36 During the year, the Honourable High Court, Bombay sanctioned the scheme of amalgamation (‘scheme’) 
between the Company (transferee) and Grabal Alok Impex Limited (transferor) with appointed date of 1 April 
2011. Grabal Alok Impex is in the business of manufacturing embroidery textiles. The scheme has been 
effective from 1 March 2012.

The Company issued 2,24,85,000 equity shares of ` 10 each to shareholders of Grabal Alok Impex Limited 

differences in accounting policies of two companies. The Company has 

Particulars ` Crore
Carrying value of Fixed assets (including CWIP ` 18.94 crore) 193.51

Carrying value of Investments (including ` 31.34 crore in Transferee company through 62.59

Inventories 46.00
Debtors 37.50
Cash & Bank balances 147.00
Loans & Advances 16.85
Total Assets 503.45
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Particulars ` Crore
Current liabilities & Provisions 55.82
Long term borrowings 113.15
Short Term Borrowings 145.79
Deferred Tax Liabilities 16.78
Share warrants 20.40
Total Liabilities 351.94

Shares issued 22.49
Reserves taken over 129.02

Pursuant to the scheme, with effect from the Appointed Date up to and including the Effective Date, the 
transferor company is deemed to have been carrying on all business and activities in trust for Alok Industries 
Limited. Pending completion of relevant formalities of transfer of certain assets and liabilities pursuant to the 
Scheme, such assets and liabilities remain under the name of the Grabal Alok Impex Ltd.

On amalgamation of the Company and Grabal Alok Impex Ltd, Grabal Alok (UK) Ltd, an associate company 
of both companies, has now become a majority owned subsidiary of Alok Industries Ltd.

`
` 7.58 crore for the year and hence are not strictly comparable.

37 In line with the amended Accounting Standard (AS) 11 – ‘Effect of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’, the 

i. ` 114.47 crore (previous year ` 23.48 crore) being 

ii. Carried forward ` 0.99 crore (previous year ` (0.22) crore) in the ‘Foreign Currency Monetary Item 
Translation Difference Account’ being the amount remaining to be amortised as at 31 March 2012.

38 Addition information

Sales for the year in broad heads

 (` Crore)

Division 2011-12 2010-11
a) Sale of Product

Cotton & Cotton yarn

Raw Cotton –Traded 117.48 429.78
Cotton Yarn 200.95 120.54
Cotton Yarn –Traded 3.84 2.85

322.27 553.17

Apparel Fabric

Woven Fabric 3,660.06 2,718.87
Woven Fabric –Traded 9.58 -
Knitted Fabric 266.49 241.56
Embroidery Fabric 162.94 -

4,099.07 2,960.43

Home textile

Madeups 1,090.95 889.50
Terry Towel 159.46 110.61

1,250.41 1,000.11

Garment

Garments 153.09 93.18
Handkerchief 20.81 21.39
Accessories –Traded 43.40 59.49
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Division 2011-12 2010-11
217.30 174.06

Polyester Yarn

Chips 749.00 158.90
POY 656.60 326.32
Texturised Yarn 1,310.02 1,146.25
FDY 470.59 142.55
Polyester Staple Fibre (PSF) 17.17 13.24
PTA –Traded - 13.11

3,203.38 1,800.37

Others

Packing Material 9.78 -
Others 1.70 -

Total  9,103.91  6,488.14

Raw Material Consumption for the year in broad heads
(` Crore)

Division 2011-12 2010-11

Cotton & Cotton yarn

Raw Cotton 766.94 456.55

Cotton Yarn 610.78 302.36

1,377.72 758.91

Apparel Fabric

Woven Fabric  1,498.11  1,038.67

Knitted Fabric  33.72  26.52

1,531.83 1,065.19

Polyester Yarn

PTA 2,767.75 1,352.79

Chips 28.58 24.52

POY 6.70 22.63

Melt 10.31 -

2,813.34 1,399.94

Others

Packing Material 25.45 -

Total  5,748.34 3,224.04

Purchase of Traded Goods for the year in broad heads
(` Crore)

Division 2011-12 2010-11
Cotton & Cotton yarn
Raw Cotton 108.11 274.02
Cotton Yarn 3.33 2.69

111.44 276.71
Apparel Fabric
Woven Fabric 8.98 -
Garment
Accessories 41.03 54.33
Polyester Yarn
PTA –Traded - 11.58
Total  161.45  342.62
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Inventory of Work-in-progress as at 31 March 2012 in broad heads
(` Crore)

Division 2011-12 2010-11
Cotton & Cotton yarn
Cotton Yarn 33.65 27.77
Apparel Fabric
Woven Fabric 1,850.98 686.02
Knitted Fabric 5.80 7.24
Embroidery Fabric 20.53 -

1,877.31 693.26
Home textile
Madeups 226.32 84.00
Terry Towel 24.57 23.80

250.89 107.80
Garment
Garments 14.51 12.80
Handkerchief 3.16 1.36

17.67 14.16
Polyester Yarn
Chips 10.83 8.40
POY 9.66 2.59
Texturised Yarn 17.27 13.95
FDY 0.83 0.63
Polyester Staple Fibre (PSF) 0.06 0.21

38.65 25.78
Others
Packing Material 2.60 -
Total 2,220.77 868.77

39 (I) CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS
  (` Crore)

 2011-12  2010-11
 – Capital Goods purchased 749.95 399.33
 – Stores & Spares purchased 68.33 47.31
 – Raw Material purchased 1,281.58 939.55
 – Packing Materials purchased 6.89 7.15

2,106.75 1,393.34

(ii) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(` Crore)

Nature of Expenses  2011-12  2010-11

Commission on sales  15.01  9.96

Interest on Fixed Loan  48.28  33.26

Legal and Professional Fees  17.03  1.74

Marketing service charges  12.98  8.84

Sales Promotion Expenses  3.49  10.25

Claim for damaged goods  4.66  2.96

Travelling expenses  1.28  0.11

Bank Charges  4.31  4.68

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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Nature of Expenses  2011-12  2010-11

Exchange Loss  68.98  94.37

Miscellaneous Expenses  10.00  7.16

Total 186.02 173.33

(iii) Value of raw materials, stores and spares consumed during the year.

  (` Crore)
2011-12 2010-11

Imported Indigenous Imported Indigenous
Value % of Total 

Consumption
Value % of Total 

Consumption
 Value % of Total 

Consumption
Value % of Total 

Consumption
Raw Materials 1,381.43 24.03% 4,366.91 75.97% 671.95 20.84% 2,552.09 79.16%

Stores and Spares 64.87 66.27% 33.02 33.73% 32.56 64.30% 18.07 35.70%

Packing Materials 6.89 5.28% 123.47 94.72% 7.15 8.86% 73.55 91.14%

(iv) Earning in Foreign Currency

  (` Crore)

2011-12 2010-11

– FOB Value of Exports 2767.98 2032.34
– Interest received on Fixed Deposits 0.18 0.06

(v) Dividend Remitted in Foreign Exchange

Year of Dividend 2011-12 2010-11
Equity share

No. of shareholders 10.00 -
No. of shares held by them 13,600.00 -
Dividend remitted during the year (`) 3,400.00 -
Year to which dividend relates F.Y. 2010-11 -

Signatures to Notes 1 to 40
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director

Surendra B. Jiwrajka Jt. Managing Director
R. D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal
Partner Partner K. H. Gopal President (Corporate Affairs) & 

Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai                                Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Mumbai: 18 May 2012                Mumbai: 18 May 2012 Mumbai: 18 May 2012

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the 

Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) as at 31st March 2012, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 
on that date, both annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
Management and have been prepared on the basis of the separate financial statements and other financial 
information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated 
Financial Statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. These 
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by the Management, as well 
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

3. Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note no. 39 (b) of the financial statements regarding 
goodwill recognised on consolidation of Grabal Alok (UK) Limited during the year. For the reasons stated 
therein, no provision for impairment is considered necessary at this stage.

4. Financial statements of certain Subsidiaries, which reflect total assets of ` 184.41 crore as at 31st March, 
2012, total revenue of `155.98 crore and net cash inflows amounting to ` 254.15 crore for the year then 
ended, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, have been audited by one of us.

5. We did not audit the financial statements of certain Subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of ` 1865.17 crore as at 31st March 2012, total revenues of ` 94.93 crore and net cash outflows 
amounting to ` 42.84 crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 
furnished to us and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these Subsidiaries 
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

6. We have relied on the unaudited financial statements of Subsidiaries and Joint Venture companies, whose 
financial statements reflect total assets of ` 706.03 crore as at 31st March 2012, total revenue of ` 1085.91 
crore and net cash inflows amounting to ` 364.24 crore for the year ended on that date and financial 
statements of Associate companies in which the share of profit of the Group is ̀  0.08 crore, as considered in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements. These unaudited financial statements as approved by the respective 
Board of Directors of the companies have been furnished to us by the Management and our report in so far 
as it relates to the amounts included in respect of the Subsidiaries, Joint Venture companies and Associate 
companies is based solely on such approved unaudited financial statements.

7. We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance 
with the requirements of Accounting Standard 21 (Consolidated Financial Statements), Accounting Standard 
23 (Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements) and Accounting Standard 
27 (Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures) as notified under the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006.

8. Based on our audit and on consideration of the separate audit reports on individual financial statements 
of the Company and certain subsidiaries and on the other financial information of the components and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, read with para 6 above, give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

a. in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2012;
b. in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year ended 

on that date and
c. in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended 

on that date.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W

R. D. Kamat
Partner
Membership No.36822  
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 18 May 2012

For Gandhi & Parekh
Chartered Accountants 
Firms Registration No. 120318W

Devang B. Parekh
Partner 
Membership No. 105789
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 18 May 2012

 AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman

Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director

Surendra B. Jiwrajka

R. D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal

Partner Partner K. H. Gopal
Company Secretary

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  NOTES  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 I  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds

  Share Capital 2  826.28
3  2,034.09  2,004.27

Minority Interest  –  4.62
Non-current Liabilities

4  8,516.96  7,164.48
5  627.07  507.84
6  176.71

Current Liabilities
7  5,340.01

  Trade payables 8  605.23
  Other current liabilities  2,908.52  1,563.20

10  119.47
 TOTAL  21,154.34  16,475.67

 II  ASSETS
Non-current Assets

   Tangible assets 11  8,811.20  7,470.27
11  41.00  43.58
11  924.38

 606.27  156.42
12  1,589.42

  Deferred tax assets (net) 5  9.02  7.54
13  390.32  440.11

Current Assets
14  3.94  27.41
15  3,697.12

  Trade receivables 16  2,204.00  1,814.20
17  1,397.80
18  1,364.06

  Other current assets  115.81  136.38
 TOTAL  21,154.34  16,475.67

III
accompanying notes forming part of the 

1 to 44

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2012
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In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman

Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director

Surendra B. Jiwrajka

R. D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal

Partner Partner K. H. Gopal
Company Secretary

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  NOTES  Year Ended
31-Mar-12

 Year Ended
31-Mar-11

REVENUE
20  10,018.67  6,727.38

 233.95  112.48
Revenue from Operations (net)  9,784.72

21  95.51  67.07
Total Revenue  9,880.23
EXPENSES

Cost of Materials consumed  5,793.09  3,261.84
Purchase of Traded Goods  1,117.20

22  (1,692.18)  (267.67)

23  312.84  244.22
24  1,234.70  782.15

Depreciation and amortisation expense 11  749.14
Other expenses 25  1,877.36  1,120.36

 Total Expenses  9,392.15  6,140.86
 488.08  541.11
 121.27
 366.81  501.24

Tax Expenses
– Current tax  (172.93)  (81.16)

` 44.12 crore (` 26.53 crore 
pertaining to the previous year (previous year ` 42.42 
crore))

– Deferred tax  (100.97)
Total Tax expenses  (273.90)  (178.50)

 92.91  322.74

 0.08
 –  (0.31)

 92.99  311.54
EARNINGS PER SHARE (in `) 34

Basic  1.15
Diluted  1.15

1 to 44

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2012
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(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  Year Ended 
31-Mar-12

 Year Ended
31-Mar-11

A] Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 366.81  501.24

Adjustments for:

Diminution in the value of investment  8.88  16.88
 2.27  –

Exchange rate difference  (6.34)
 (0.60)  (0.36)

 1,108.77  668.26
 (34.88)  0.03

 0.12  (1.16)
 2,209.50  1,709.52

Adjustments for
 (1,381.63)

 (687.74)
 123.87
 478.43

 (321.06)  1,024.79
 (128.45)

 (450.46)  896.34

 (1,551.10)
 14.05

 (341.57)  (214.13)
 135.57  127.24
 236.57  (318.04)

 0.60  0.36
 35.86  62.04

 –  (0.16)
 (3.44)

 (1,439.16)  (2,672.87)

Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Capital (including premium)  –

 350.00  (227.57)
 2,430.53  4,144.40

 (2,751.40)
 1,428.24

 (24.52)  (23.33)
 (1,130.38)

 2,160.47  1,248.73
 270.85  (527.80)

 158.62  –

 595.45  165.98

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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commencement and end of the year and is considered as part of investing activity.

2
(` Crore)

PARTICULARS 31 March 2012 March 31, 2011

 87.16  53.24
 595.45  165.98

excluded from cash and cash equivalent and grouped under the investing activity.

equivalent and grouped under the investing activity.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman

Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director

Surendra B. Jiwrajka

R. D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal

Partner Partner K. H. Gopal
Company Secretary

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

ii Principles of Consolidation

  

circumstances.

  b) The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in subsidiary companies over its share 

Company in the subsidiary companies and further movements in their share in the equity, 
subsequent to the dates of investments.

iii Use of Estimates

  
require estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 

iv Revenue Recognition

  

is reasonably expected. Sales are stated net of trade discount, returns and sales tax collected.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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v Fixed Assets

  a) Own Assets :

They are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

  b) Assets taken on lease:

  

  c) Assets given on lease:

vi Investments

decline, other than temporary, in the value of investments. Current investments are carried at cost or 

  

on technical assessment and depreciation is provided accordingly. Depreciation on additions to 

`
– are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

  b) Cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.

and impairment loss, if any, is provided for.

viii Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

  
transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of foreign currency transactions are 

  b) Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated using the exchange rate prevailing 

the cost of the asset and depreciated over the balance life of the asset.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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her

beyond 31 March, 2020.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS :

balance sheet date.

account until the disposal of net investment in the said non integral foreign operation.

ix Inventories

  

  

comprises of cost of purchase (as above), cost of conversion (absorption cost) and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.

  a)

  b)

occurrence of such gains and losses. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent 

calculation is limited to past service cost, the present value is available refunds and reduction in 
future contribution to the scheme.

  c)

bonus.

xi Accounting of CENVAT credit

  Cenvat credit available is accounted by recording material purchases net of excise duty. Cenvat credit 

xii Government Grants

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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xiii Borrowing Costs

xiv Income taxes

  Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are accounted 

applicable tax rates. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for future tax consequence attributable to 

rates and in the case of deferred tax asset on consideration of prudence, are recognised and carried 

Company reassesses unrealised deferred tax assets to the extent they become reasonably certain or 

xv Intangible Assets

The intangible assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

xvi Impairment of Fixed Assets

value of the asset exceeds its recoverable value. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting 
periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

xvii Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

xviii Accounting for Derivatives

  

or cost to the company and is not intended for trading or speculation purposes.

gains are ignored.

in respect of recognised monetary items, the premium or discount on such contracts is amortised 
over the life of the contract. The exchange difference measured by the change in exchange rate 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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ccount until the forecasted 

2 SHARE CAPITAL

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Authorised
`  1,000.00

 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up

`
paid up

 826.27  787.78

` ` 5 Paid up)  0.01  0.01
TOTAL  826.28

NOTES :

i] 1,60,00,000 Equity shares of ` `

c) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period

(` Crore)

PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

No of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  787,784,357
Add : Shares allotted during the year

 16,000,000  –
 22,485,000  –

 –
No of shares outstanding at the end of the year  826,269,357  787,784,357

d)

  The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `

in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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g) During the year ended 31 March 2012, an amount of ` 0.30 per share (previous year ` 0.25 per share) 

h) Shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the share capital

(` Crore)

Sr.no. Name of the Shareholder  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

No of 
shares

Held

% No of 
shares

Held

%

i]  71,637,204  8.67  7.60

ii]  36,207,135  4.38  47,825,714  6.07
iii]  24,211,903  2.93  45,184,354  5.74

3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(` Crore)
 PARTICULARS  AS AT

31-Mar-12
 AS AT

31-Mar-11
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  10.23  10.23

 1.49  –
 0.26  –

 11.98  10.23
Capital Reserve (on Consolidation)
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  11.61  10.66

 2.70  –
 0.67

 14.98  11.61
Revaluation reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  –  –

 3.86  –
 3.86  –

Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  2.20  2.20

 6.90  –
 9.10  2.20

Securities premium account
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  880.39

 60.15  –
 65.60  –

 (12.49)  –
 993.65

General Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  275.25  250.22

 5.63  –

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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 0.31  25.03
 281.19  275.25

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  220.38  604.68

 (51.90)  (384.30)
 168.48  220.38

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  9.24  11.24

 (73.51)  (2.00)
 (64.27)
 (16.78)  –

Employee Stock Options Outstanding 
Options granted during the year  4.67  –

 (2.40)  –
 2.27  –

Opening balance  594.97  (52.48)
 (80.63)  –

 92.99  311.54
Less : Appropriations

 (0.31)  (25.03)
 51.90  384.30
 (0.26)  –

(iv) Proposed Dividend – Equity Shares  (24.79)
(v) Corporate Dividend Tax thereon  (4.02)  (3.27)
(vi) Short provision of dividend and tax thereon  (0.22)  (0.40)

 629.63
 TOTAL  2,034.09  2,004.27

4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

(` Crore)
PARTICULARS  AS AT 31-Mar-12  AS AT 31-Mar-11

 Current  Non 
Current

 Current  Non 
Current

 800.00  500.00
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures  613.88  312.55

 492.74  226.47

1,365.90  5,848.08
555.87  353.06  15.28  574.75

1,921.77  6,201.14

121.47  170.05  130.73  183.18
28.12  148.36  20.57  147.00

149.59  318.41  151.30  330.18
2,071.36  6,519.55  1,243.52  6,024.23

119.64  86.62  16.88

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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2.50  4.17  2.11  5.88

2,193.50  8,516.96  1,262.51  7,164.48

 NOTES :

PARTICULARS Nos 31-Mar-12
 (` Crore)

31-Mar-11
 (` Crore)

Date of 
Redemption

375  37.50  –
375  37.50  –
375  37.50  –
334  33.34  33.34
375  37.50  –
375  37.50  –
333  33.33  33.33
375  37.50  –
300  30.00  30.00
366  36.66  36.66
375  37.50  –
333  33.33  33.33
375  37.50  –
600  60.00  60.00
367  36.67  36.67
300  30.00  30.00
700  70.00  70.00
367  36.67  36.67
300  30.00  30.00
700  70.00  70.00

TOTAL  800.00  500.00

of `
and Debentures of `

III. Disclosure of Security for term loans

(` Crore)

Nature of security Banks Financial
Institutions

TOTAL

 –
 (646.34) (–)  (646.34)
3,260.47 314.13 3,574.60

(3,301.36)
Subservient charge on all movable and current assets of the 
Company @

3,820.46 153.87
(144.56) (3,320.05)

Total 8,122.91 468.00 8,590.91
 (6,786.27)  (481.48)  (7,267.75)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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  `

`
`

`

IV. Terms of Repayment of Secured Term Loan

(` Crore)
Particulars Rate of Interest* 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years Beyond 4 

Years
Total

12% – 15.75%
(10.25% – 14.25%) (1,145.32)

 1,571.73
(1,200.58) (1,183.15)

 5,848.08

2.53% – 5.34%
(2.50% – 8.00%)

 34.57
(27.51) (38.68)

 208.66  353.06
(574.75)

 125.21  15.63
(13.75) (15.63)

 15.30  170.05

2.70% – 5.31%
(18.88)

 136.80
(7.80)

 0.24  2.42
(1.72)

 148.36

Total  2,076.05  1,771.08  901.35  1,771.07  6,519.55
 (1,768.45)  (1,249.64)  (1,356.05)  (1,650.09)  (6,024.23)

  

V. Terms of Repayment of Unsecured Term Loan

(` Crore)
Particulars Rate of Interest 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years Beyond 4 

Years
Total

3.68% – 3.75%  17.32
(17.32)

 17.32
(17.32)

 17.32
(17.32)

 34.66  86.62

VI. Disclosure of security and terms of repayment of other loans & advances

(` Crore)
Nature of security Banks

6.67

(` Crore)
Particulars Rate of Interest 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years Beyond 4 

Years
Total

 2.50  1.28  0.36  0.03  4.17
 (2.47)  (2.48)  –  (5.88)

  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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5 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(` Crore)
 PARTICULARS  AS AT

31-Mar-12
 AS AT

31-Mar-11
I) Deferred Tax Liability (DTL)

Depreciation 702.43
 (7.35)

(58.26)  –
(14.13)  (12.78)
627.07  507.84

II) Deferred Tax Asset (DTA)
11.54  0.02
(2.52)  7.52

Total 9.02  7.54

* ` 16.78 crore on account of 

6 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 17.01  17.83
 159.70  60.04

 –  1.77
Total  176.71

7 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 –  250.00

` 730.00 crore (previous year ̀  380.34 crore in foreign 
currency)

 2,740.46  1,725.37

` `
foreign currency)

 130.74

 157.53
 196.95  –

 103.00  360.00
 335.00  360.00

Short term loan

 730.00
 85.00  75.00

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 –  44.65

 577.90

 277.44  –
 5.99  –

Total  5,340.01

Note

b) Disclosure of security

(` Crore)

Nature of security Banks Financial
Institutions

TOTAL

Working capital loans :
(i) Hypothecation of company's current assets and mortgage 

Guarantor.

(excluding land and building) of the company

(450.47)
 40.35

(20.58)
 2,436.88
(471.05)

current assets of the company. (68.50)
 434.32

 –
 (845.45)

 –
(–)

 –
 (845.45)

TOTAL  2,740.46  130.74  2,871.20
 (1,725.37)  (1,814.45)

Short Term Loans
Subservient charge on all movable and current assets of the 
company

 537.00 
(621.63)

 85.00 
(75.00)

 622.00 

 –
(–) (–) (–)

 TOTAL  730.00  85.00  815.00
 (621.63)  (75.00)

  

8 TRADE PAYABLE

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 –
– Others  605.23

` 2.20 crore (previous year `
 605.23

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 2,193.50  1,262.51
 13.55  21.28

 1.05  0.84
 350.00  –

 –  0.22
Other payables

 68.86  61.62
Creditors for Expenses  139.23  8.77
Creditors for Capital Goods  35.00

 9.95
 43.14  –
 14.75
 25.12  32.13
 10.89  –

 3.48  1.26
Total  2,908.52  1,563.20

NOTES

(ii) During the year company has transferred ` 0.03 crore (previous year `

steps to increase the authorised capital.

10 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 7.63  3.23
 36.65

Proposed dividend  24.79
Corporate dividend tax  4.02  3.30

 10.53
 35.85  13.70

Total  119.47

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
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12 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Investment Property :
 1,429.05  1,202.75

 33.18  35.68
 1,462.23  1,238.43

 0.00  0.00
`

year ` 45.14)]
`  –  0.00

membership interest
 4.47  4.47

 (0.72)  (0.80)
 3.75  3.67

 –  0.02
`

`  –  (0.00)

 –  0.02
 0.10  0.08

  [100,000 (previous year 75,000) Equity shares of `10 each]
` 0.04 

crore)
 (0.07)  (0.06)

 0.03  0.02
 –  310.81

 –
 –  218.64

 2.50  2.50
  [50,000 Equity Share of `10 each]

 (0.06)  (0.06)
 2.44  2.44

 –  0.20
`

 0.05  0.05
[10,000 Equity Shares of `

 0.03  0.03
[10,000 Equity Shares of `

`  0.00  0.00
`

`  0.00  0.00
[3,650 Equity Shares of ` 10 each]

 6.30  225.07
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Others – Quoted fully paid
 –

`
 –

In Associates Company
 3.84  –

 65.49
  [5,00,000 Shares ` 10 each]

 16.22  –
` 10 each]

 –  53.45

 85.55

 –
 –

Others
 35.33  –

`

 37.88  33.06
 (37.88)  (24.80)

 –  8.26

  22 senior units of the equity capital  6.70  5.85
 (6.70)  (5.85)

 –  –

  
    –  16.16

 0.01  0.01
 35.34  24.43

Total  1,589.42
 –
 –  6.08

 1,589.42

NOTE :

` `

13 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES (Unsecured)

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Considered good
Capital advances  222.76  256.34

 16.56  17.47

 0.95  –
 17.90  15.40
 66.27
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Prepaid Expenses  65.88  40.51
 390.32  440.11

Considered doubtful
Capital advances  3.76  –

 3.76  –
 –  –

 TOTAL  390.32  440.11

14 CURRENT INVESTMENTS (at cost)

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Investments in debentures or bonds
 2.00  2.00

[20 Bonds of ` 10,00,000 each]

 –  0.16
`

 1.94  7.20
`

 –  17.00
`

 –  1.00
`

 –  0.05
`

 TOTAL  3.94  27.41

15 INVENTORIES

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 446.05  604.47
` ` 138.62 crore)

 2,278.38
 671.11  510.21
 221.29  68.03

 73.27
 7.02  7.33

 TOTAL  3,697.12

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured)

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Debts Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date  102.31
 20.70  8.72
 81.61  55.37

Other Debts  2,129.35  1,761.33
 6.96  2.50
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 2,122.39  1,758.83
 TOTAL  2,204.00  1,814.20

Considered Good  2,204.00  1,814.20
Considered Doubtful  27.66  11.22

 TOTAL  2,231.66  1,825.42

NOTE :

(i) Sundry Debtors includes ` 70.72 crore (previous year `

(ii) Debtors include dues from parties aggregating to ` 1.22 crore (previous year `

17 CASH & BANK BALANCES

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Cash on hand  0.66  1.37

 563.38  76.48
 0.98  0.41

 116.51  140.12

 1.08  0.84
 715.19

 TOTAL  1,397.80

NOTE :

` 22.64 crore (previous year `
margin monies amounting to ` 77.63 (previous year `
more than 12 months.

` 2.16 crore (previous year `
margin monies amounting to ` 2.81 crore (previous year `
than 12 months from the Balance Sheet date

` ` 8.55 crore (previous year `

` 437.57 crore (previous year `
subsidiary company.

18 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured)

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Considered good
 9.22  32.86

Others
 971.61  124.57

 9.36  10.82
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 282.25  204.33
Prepaid Expenses  69.29  30.75

 3.69
 9.13  20.60

Deposits others  9.51  10.13
 TOTAL  1,364.06

Considered doubtful
 20.60
 20.60  19.27

-
 TOTAL  1,364.06

NOTE :

` 0.18 crore (previous year `
[maximum amount outstanding during the year ` 1.27 crore (previous year ` 1.35 crore)]

19 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Unsecured)

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Considered Good

 –  4.28

 88.09  123.35

 25.98  7.85

 0.32  0.07

 1.11

 0.05

 0.03  0.55

 0.23  –

 115.81  136.38

Considered Doubtful

 9.31

 9.31

-

 TOTAL  115.81  136.38

20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Sale of product

 6,165.75  4,362.34

Sales – Export  3,813.27  2,342.70

 9,979.02  6,705.04

Sale of services

 31.19  13.16

Sale of Scrap  8.46

 TOTAL  10,018.67  6,727.38
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21 OTHER INCOME

(` Crore)
 PARTICULARS  AS AT

31-Mar-12
 AS AT

31-Mar-11

 5.04  3.78
 31.08  58.67

 1.40  0.07
 37.52  62.52

 0.02  0.20
 0.58  0.16
 0.60  0.36

Gain on sale of investments (net)
 –  1.02
 –  0.14
 –  1.16

 34.88  –
 2.21  1.54

 12.40  –
 2.34  0.42
 3.40  0.43
 2.16  0.64

 57.39  3.03
 TOTAL  95.51  67.07

22 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

(` Crore)
 PARTICULARS  AS AT

31-Mar-12
 AS AT

31-Mar-11
CLOSING STOCK AS ON 31 MARCH 2012 *

 671.11  510.21
 2,278.38

 221.29  68.03
 3,170.78  1,478.60

LESS : OPENING STOCK AS ON 1 APRIL 2011
 510.21
 900.36  856.24

 68.03  –
 1,478.60

 TOTAL  (1,692.18)  (267.67)

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(` Crore)
 PARTICULARS  AS AT

31-Mar-12
 AS AT

31-Mar-11
Salaries, Wages and Bonus  279.20  230.70

 22.27  8.52
 2.27  –

Employees Welfare Expenses  9.10  5.00
 TOTAL  312.84  244.22

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012



INNOVATIVE TEXTILE SOLUTIONS

Innovative Textile Solutions

24 FINANCE COSTS

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

 1,144.89  727.71
` 131.11 crore (previous year ` 131.88 crore) 

and recovery of ` 140.02 crore (previous year ` 81.47 crore))
 2.04  3.07

 87.77  51.37
TOTAL  1,234.70  782.15

25 OTHER EXPENSES

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS  AS AT
31-Mar-12

 AS AT
31-Mar-11

Stores and Spares Consumed  98.34
 130.97  81.17
 667.25

Processing Charges  66.62
 68.22  60.27

Excise Duty  6.27  4.15
Donation  1.21  0.81

 112.90  100.25
 37.88  30.74
 26.57

 6.11  6.55

Plant and Machinery  16.91  14.67
 2.18  0.67

Others  9.93  5.06
Commission on Sales  43.17  23.01

 282.51
Provision for Doubtful Debts  17.35  35.00

 2.43  –
 12.18  –

 7.20  7.20
 5.27  5.06

 2.08  1.63
 0.04  0.04

 13.04  13.07
 0.12  –

 –  0.03
Diminution in value of investment  8.88  16.88
Miscellaneous Expenses  231.73  148.55

 TOTAL  1,877.36  1,120.36
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Sr.
No.

Name of the subsidiary companies Country of 
Incorporation

Ownership
Interest

31-Mar-12

Ownership
Interest

31-Mar-11
1 India 100% 100%
2 India 100% 100%
3 India 100% 100%
4 India 100% 100%
5 India 100% 100%
6 India 100% 100%
7 India 100% 100%
8 India 100% 100%

India 100% 100%
10 British Virgin 

Island
100% 100%

11 USA 100% 100%
12 USA 100% 100%
13 Czech

Republic
100%

14 Czech
Republic

100%

15 India 100% 100%
16 India 100% 100%
17 India 100% 100%
18 British Virgin 

Island
100%

UK
20

2011)
Singapore 100%

21 Dubai 100%

company.

Sr.
No.

Name of the associates Country of 
Incorporation

Ownership
Interest

31-Mar-12

Ownership
Interest

31-Mar-11
1 India
2 India

company.
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(` Crore)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
ASSETS

 4.72  2.07 
 0.43 

Sundry Debtors  29.08  18.04 
 4.32 

 15.59  18.68 
LIABILITIES

 10.17  2.46 
Provision  0.05  0.43 

 0.18  0.18 
INCOME
Sales  95.34 

 1.93  2.75 
 0.18  0.05 

EXPENSES
Manufacturing and Other Expenses  93.01  87.56 
Depreciation  0.19  0.11 
Provision for Tax  1.10 

Sr.
No.

Name of the associates Country of 
Incorporation

Ownership
Interest

31-Mar-12

Ownership
Interest

31-Mar-11
1 United

Kingdom
- 41.72%

2 India 50.00% 50.00%
3 India 50.00% 50.00%
4

during the year)
India - 33.20%

5 USA 33.00% 33.00%

company.
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30 Contingent Liabilities in respect of:

(` Crore)

Sr.
No.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Customs duty on shortfall in export obligation in accordance 

(The company is hopeful of meeting the export obligation 

B 0.05 0.05

C  73.71 28.07

D Bills discounted

E

decision.

 – 

`
mainly on account of alleged short deposition of TDS amounts 

the TDS return and certain payments not considered by the 
Tax authorities, although duly paid by the company and 

of ` 0.23 crore mainly pertaining to short deduction of taxes, 
the company is hopeful of favourable decision.

0.23

as debts as the company is hopeful of favourable decision.

`

decision.

 – 

G.  – 

31 Capital Commitment

(` Crore)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital  527.17 
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32 Related Party Disclosure

a.  Names of related parties and nature of relationship

  

I Associate companies

II Entities under common control

Buds Clothing Co. Pramatex Enterprises

III Joint Venture

IV Key Management Personnel

V Relatives of Key Management Personnel

b. Nature of transactions

(` Crore)
Transaction Associates Entities

under
common

control

Joint
Venture

Companies

Key
Management

Personnel

Relatives
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Total

a) Advance Share Application Money
 –  –  –  –  –  – 

(227.57) (227.57)
 –  350.00  –  –  –  350.00 

(227.57) (227.57)
Balance as at 31st March  –  350.00  –  –  –  350.00 

(b) Long Term Borrowing
 –  312.55  –  –  –  312.55 

(451.40) (451.40)

amalgamation
 –  223.25  –  –  –  223.25 

Translation difference during the year  –  78.08  –  –  –  78.08 

Balance as at 31st March  –  613.88  –  –  –  613.88 
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Transaction Associates Entities
under

common
control

Joint
Venture

Companies

Key
Management

Personnel

Relatives
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Total

(312.55) (312.55)
(c)  Unsecured Short Term Borrowing

amalgamation)
 –  –  – 

Balance as at 31st March  –  –  – 

d) Short Term Loans and Advances
 –  3.84  –  –  –  3.84 

(5.46) (5.46)
Granted during period  0.63  18.72  –  –  – 

(22.50) (22.50)
 –  14.26  –  –  –  14.26 

(24.05) (24.05)
Translation difference during the year  –  –  –  – 

Balance as at 31st March  0.63  –  –  – 
(3.84) (3.84)

e) Non Current Investments
 72.54  –  –  –  –  72.54 
(0.13) (0.13)
 (0.02)  3.60  –  –  –  3.58 

(72.41) (72.41)
Translation difference during the year  –  0.23  –  –  – 0.23

Balance as at 31st March  72.52  3.83  –  –  –  76.35 
 (72.54)  (72.54)

f) Share Application Money –
Non Current Investment

 –  16.16  –  –  –  16.16 

 –  0.08  –  –  – 0.08
(0.16) (0.16)

 –  16.24  –  –  –  16.24 

Balance as at 31st March  –  –  –  –  –  – 
(16.16) (16.16)

g) Trade Receivables
Balance as at 31st March  22.48  0.03  –  –  22.60 

h) Trade payables
Balance as at 31st March  –  14.75  –  –  24.31 

(0.06) (0.06)
i) Other Current Liabilities

Balance as at 31st March  –  14.75  –  –  –  14.75 

j) Sale of products
Sales of Goods  56.14  –  0.48  –  –  56.62 

(0.71) (0.71)
k) Expenditure

 –  –  31.22  –  –  31.22 
(0.03) (42.26)
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Transaction Associates Entities
under

common
control

Joint
Venture

Companies

Key
Management

Personnel

Relatives
of Key 

Management
Personnel

Total

 –  –  –  –  –  – 
(0.62) (0.05) (5.21)

 –  –  –  – 

 –  –  –  12.20  0.26  12.46 
(12.20) (0.26) (12.46)

 –  26.61  –  –  –  26.61 

Electricity Expenses  –  0.02  –  –  –  0.02 
(0.08) (0.08)

Design Charges  –  0.14  –  –  –  0.14 
(0.24) (0.24)

 2.11  –  –  –  –  2.11 

 –  31.05  –  –  –  31.05 

l) Dividend Paid  –  –  –  1.54  –  1.54 
(1.54) (1.54)

m) Income
 –  0.23  –  –  –  0.23 

(0.03) (0.03)
n) Contingent Liabilities

Guarantee Given  –  –  –  –  –  – 

c.

Transactions  Current Year
Amount

Previous Year
Amount

a) Advance Share Application Money

 100.00  – 
 70.00  – 

 100.00  – 
 80.00  – 

 350.00  – 
Repaid during the year

 –  32.54 
 – 
 –  48.65 
 –  68.77 
 –  41.22 
 –  227.57 

b) Long Term Borrowing
Received during the year

` 223.25 crore 
on amalgamation)

 407.86  – 

Repaid during the year
 –  138.85 

c) Unsecured Short Term Borrowing
On amalgamation

 – 
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Transactions  Current Year
Amount

Previous Year
Amount

d) Short term Loans and Advances
Granted during the year

 – 
 4.70  – 

 – 
 –

 12.68  – 
 4.70  – 

 – 
 21.27  – 

e) Non Current Investment
Invested during the year

 – 
 3.60  – 

f) Share Application Money – Non Current Investment
Received during the year

 0.08  0.16 

 – 
g) Turnover (including job work charges)

 – 
 56.14  – 

 –  80.60 
h) Expenditure

Purchase of Goods
 41.67 

Transactions  Current Year
Amount

Previous Year
Amount

Rent
 0.10  – 
 0.10  – 

Remuneration:
 3.05  3.05 
 3.05  3.05 
 3.05  3.05 
 3.05  3.05 

 12.20  12.20 
Electricity Expenses

 0.02  – 
Design Charges

 0.14  0.48 

Recovery of Expenses
 2.11  – 

i) Dividend Paid:
 0.50  0.50 
 0.51  0.51 
 0.53  0.53 
 1.54  1.54 
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Transactions  Current Year
Amount

Previous Year
Amount

j) Income
Rent Received

 0.18  – 
 0.05  – 
 0.23  – 

k) Guarantee Given on loan given to Grabal Alok Impex 
Limited

 – 

  Note:

year and as at 31 March 2011 have been considered accordingly in the current year related party 

33 Employee Stock Option Scheme(ESOS)

Grant Date No. of Options 
granted

Options

lapsed

Closing Balance Exercise
Price

Vesting period

1,280,000 18,000 1,262,000

185,550  21.42 

TOTAL 10,791,500 203,550 10,587,950

` 4.67 crore has been recorded during the 
` 2.27 crore. Had 

`

Particulars Year-2012

Basic and Dilutive Earnings per share

`)              1.15 

`)              1.10 
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Particulars Year-2012
Expected life (years) 1 year from the 

date of vesting
7.83%

34 Earnings per share (EPS)

(` Crore)
31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11

a.                 10                 10 
b.

         311.54 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares – Basic    787,784,357 
Basic  Earnings per share (Rupees)              1.15              3.95 

         46,286  – 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares – Dilutive    811,233,676    787,784,357 
Diluted Earnings per share (Rupees)              1.15              3.95 

  (a)

` 10.75 crore (previous year ` 8.13 crore) for the year ended 31 March 
2012.

  (b) The Company contributed ` 8.17 crore (previous year `

ii.

  

  (a) Gratuity Plan: 

for qualifying employees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at 

  (b) Compensated absences: 

is actuarially valued.

(` Crore)

 PARTICULARS Gratuity
(funded) as 

on 31-Mar-12

 Gratuity  
(funded) as 

on  31-Mar-11

           15.40            10.77 
Current Service Cost              4.34              3.53 

             1.55              1.15 
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 PARTICULARS Gratuity
(funded) as 

on 31-Mar-12

 Gratuity  
(funded) as 

on  31-Mar-11
            (0.71)              0.27 

 –  – 
            (0.33)             (0.32)
           20.25            15.40 

Change in Fair Value of assets
Opening Fair value of assets              4.71              2.85 

             0.36              0.23 
             0.26              0.08 

Contribution by Employer              2.40              1.87 
            (0.33)             (0.32)

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets              7.40              4.71 
Net Liability            12.85            10.69 

PARTICULARS Year ended 
31-Mar-12

 Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Current Service Cost              4.34              3.53 
             1.55              1.15 

  (0.36) (0.23)

 –  – 
Total Included in Employment Expenses              4.56              4.64 
Actual Return on Plan Assets              0.60              0.30 
Category of Assets as on 31 March

             7.40              4.71 

PARTICULARS Year ended 
31-Mar-12

 Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Discount rate 8.70% 8.05%

7.50% 7.50%

return expected to prevail over the estimated term of the obligation on the type of the investments 

and other relevant factors.

   Experience Adjustments

PARTICULARS Year ended
31-Mar-

12
31-Mar-

11
31-Mar-

10
31-Mar-

09
31-Mar-

08
 20.25 15.40 10.68 6.67  –

 7.40 4.71 2.86 2.24  –
 (12.74) (10.60) (7.82) (4.43)  –

0.71 0.16  –  –

 0.26 0.08 0.07  –  –
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   Asset Allocations

   
value of assets is the cost value of assets and has been accordingly considered for the above 
disclosure.

36 Segment Reporting

i) Primary Segment: Geographical Segment

  The company is in the business of manufacturing of Textile products. Considering its high level of 

(` Crore)

Particulars Current
Year

 Previous 
Year

Segment Revenue

` `
112.48 crore)]

       3,813.27        2,342.70
           13.16

Total segment revenue        9,784.72        6,614.90
Segment Assets
Sundry Debtors
Domestic        1,535.47

         668.53          204.53
 TOTAL        2,204.00        1,814.20

ii) Secondary Segment: Business Segment

  The Group is operating in a single business segment i.e. Textile and as such all business activities 
revolve around this segment. Hence, there is no separate secondary segment to be reported considering 

37 During the year, the company has transferred investments in the form of equity capital and cumulative 

` 35.85 crore (previous year ` 15.47 

38
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Sr.
No.

Due ` Crore

1 With in one year  12.17
2  44.53
3  70.87

Total  127.57

` 26.57 crore (previous year `

39

scheme has been effective from 1 March 2012.

  The Company issued 22,485,000 equity shares of `

PARTICULARS ` crore
`

` 31.34 crore in

 46.00
Debtors  37.50

 147.00
 16.85

Total Assets  503.45
 55.82

 113.15

 16.78
 20.40

Total Liabilities  351.94
Shares issued

Total Liabilities 503.45

`
` 7.58 crore for the year.

`

to ` 448.00 crore is considered necessary.
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40

41

42

  

` 16.78 crore 

`

M
contracts (other than those considered for hedging) as at 31 March 2012 aggregating to `
(previous year `
the report of counter parties. MTM losses on such derivatives of ` 106.61 crore have been recognised 
during the year.

iv Derivative contracts entered into by the company and outstanding as on 31 March 2012 for hedging 

company and outstanding as on 31 March 2012 amount to ` 3,554.72 crore (previous year `

Sr.
No.

Particulars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11

1
 476.73  280.68

 1,150.00  743.27
 150.00  –

 1,776.73
2  1,201.21  1,342.26
3  500.05  475.52
4  76.73

Total  3,554.72  2,908.71
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v. The year end foreign currency exposure that has not been hedged by derivative instruments or 

Particulars Foreign
Currency

Current Year  Previous Year
Amount

in foreign 
currency

Rupees
(Crore)

 Amount 
in foreign 
currency

 Rupees 
(Crore)

Debtors  –  –  35.41
 5.51

GBP  0.06  0.01  0.48
 –  –  12.25  31.81
 –  –  2.62  7.00

 0.01  –  –
 0.02  1.10  –  –
 0.65  33.50  –  –

Particulars Foreign
Currency

Current Year  Previous Year
Amount

in foreign 
currency

Rupees  Amount 
in foreign 
currency

 Rupees

 26.56  1,185.78
 184.87  115.42  182.81

 300.24  106.78
 –  –  3.11  8.07

not due on loans
 0.01  0.76  0.06  2.80

 0.03  0.02  1.44
 2.00  102.31  7.00  312.55
 1.52  1.77  112.22

Sundry creditors  7.74  345.72
 –  –  4.31  2.33

 0.06  3.82  –  –
 0.16  –  –

43

` 114.47 crore (previous year ` 23.48 crore) being 

` `

44

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Gandhi & Parekh Ashok B. Jiwrajka Executive Chairman

Dilip B. Jiwrajka Managing Director
Surendra B. Jiwrajka

R. D. Kamat Devang B. Parekh Sunil O. Khandelwal
Partner Partner K. H. Gopal

Company Secretary
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15 PS. 

PROXY FORM
ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED

the Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, the 14th day of August 

2012 at 12.00 noon

– 396 230, UT of Dadra and Nagar Haveli,

     Signature(s) of Member(s)

aforesaid meeting. The proxy need not be a member of the Company.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
ALOK INDUSTRIES LIMITED

  
Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on 

Tuesday, the 14th day of August, 2012 at 12.00 noon at the 

 Signature(s) of Member(s)
       Proxy attending the meeting

g.
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